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MOMENT

Moment is opportunity, a disjunctive change of chance
and the key to transition of things. A moment pops up and
vanishes in a flash. For an enterprise to achieve sustainable
development, it must master different moments and take
actions appropriately and diligently along with the trend of
the times to generate a domino-type chain, thus rendering
the enterprise to grasp the key of sustainable development
and lay a foundation for sound development.

In 1980, Chairman Ho, accompanied by his wife,
jointly established Karrie Group in Kwun Tong. The first
moment that the Group grasped was to relocate its
plant center up north. Then, the Group diversified its
products to cover metals and PC casings businesses. The
milestone watershed of Karrie was its listing on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
1996. Furthermore, to expand its capacity to meet the
ever increasing customer demand, it set up plants in
Guanjingtou and Yuquan, Fenggang respectively. However,
Karrie never slowed down its pace, nor was it content
with things as they were. Instead, it continued to invest
in automation machinery production. The fact that Karrie
is able to gain the trust and recognition of global leading
technology corporations was due to its capability to
discern moments with sharp insight and respond swiftly
with flexibility, thereby excel itself from its peers.

The trend of the times creates moments and Karrie also
needs to take such advantage to develop its business,
expands its productivity, continues to facilitate automation
speedily and vigorously, experiences changes and growth
constantly to establish an industry-stable foundation. By
also making use of its strong industrial resources (such as
plant sites and productivity), it creates a new arena for
Karrie's business and hew out a new profit channel.

“Gentleman keeps a low profile and bides a time before
moments come.” Hence, when Karrie encounters a
turning point, it can always sublimate and extend to
different levels and phases. Karrie makes remitting efforts
to improve itself, bides its time until moments come
and ultimately evolve such to become motive power to
continue endeavoring itself to create investment values for
its shareholders.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFEH

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

10th Floor

Southeast Industrial Building
611-619 Castle Peak Road
Tsuen Wan

New Territories

Hong Kong

WEBSITE
http://www.karrie.com

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia

Mr. ZHAO Kai

Mr. CHAN Raymond (was appointed on 1 June 2016)
Mr. LEE Shu Ki (resigned on 1 March 2016)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. HO Cheuk Ming

(Non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman)
Mr. HO Kai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. SO Wai Chun
Mr. FONG Hoi Shing
Mr. YAM Chung Shing

(was appointed on 1 November 2015)
Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond

(resigned on 1 November 2015)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. SO Wai Chun
Mr. FONG Hoi Shing
Mr. HO Cheuk Ming
Mr. YAM Chung Shing
(was appointed on 1 November 2015)
Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond
(resigned on 1 November 2015)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming
Mr. YAM Chung Shing
(was appointed on 1 November 2015)
Mr. SO Wai Chun
Mr. CHAN Sui Sum, Raymond
(resigned on 1 November 2015)
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. TANG Wing Fai
AUDITOR

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

WINSTON & STRAWN

42nd Floor, Bank of China Tower
1 Garden Road

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank
83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

China Construction Bank (Asia)
28th Floor, CCB Tower

3 Connaught Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited

1 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

17th Floor, Two Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
8/F, One International Finance Centre
1 Harbour View Street, Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

FERREH

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2016

Announcement of 2015/16 results
27 June 2016

Last day to register for 2015/16 Final Dividends

31 August 2016

Annual General Meeting
26 August 2016

2015/16 Final Dividend Payment Date
19 September 2016

Financial Year End
31 March 2016

SHARE CAPITAL

TE-XREMBEFR
—E-RE /- NEEEEQNMEH
—E-XREXNAZT+tH

—E-RE / -REEXRYPRESEEZTAY
—E-RFENA=+—H

BRRBFRE
—E-RFENAZT+RHAH

—E-RE /- AFEERHBREIRER
—E-XFEAATAB

BEELEB
—E-XRFE=ZA=+—H
% 7=
As at
i
31 March 2016 30 June 2016
—E—XE —TE—RE

=A=+—H NA=TH

Authorised (HK$)
Issued (HK$)

ETE (FBTT)
2% (BT)

400,000,000 400,000,000
199,619,520 199,619,520
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KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
AND SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION

As at 30 June 2016, the Company had 1,996,195,200
shares in issue of which approximately 25.15%" was held
by the public. As at that date, the Company had a total
of 877 registered shareholders. The following table shows
the distribution of ownership according to the Register
of Members and the Participant Shareholding Report
generated from the Central Clearing and Settlement
System as of 30 June 2016:

FERREH

REEBERR D iz

RZEBE—XNFRNAZ+H: ARQE H£3BT
f% 17 1,996,195,2008% - Hh A RF K & 4915
25.15%" - HERB - AR A B FMREST7
HoBERREMEPREERIREZER -
—RNERNAZTHRREN2EERERS - KM
BH TUTRESMREREELRE

Number of % of % of

registered number of Number of total issued

Category shareholders  shareholders shares  share capital

MR R L LB HERT

<yl #8 R R LA % BRHE B 17 EL %

New Sense Enterprises Limited 1 0.11% 487,608,000 24.43%

Castfast Properties Development Co., Ltd. BRREMEREERAA 1 0.11% 330,000,000 16.53%

The Wedding City Co. Limited BYRBERAR 1 0.11% 260,000,000 13.02%

Ho's family @ ARRK? 3 035% 413,270,000 20.70%

Directors © R 3 0.35% 3,304,000 0.17%

Individuals EAREE 679 77.42% 22,055,138 1.11%

Institutions, corporates and nominees BEREE.

PEREERAEA 189 21.55% 479,958,062 24.04%

Total &t 877 100.00%  1,996,195,200 100.00%
Note: st

(1 Public shareholding represents shares held by the public, (1 NEEHERERRK (B New Sense Enterprises Limited »

excluding those held by New Sense Enterprises Limited,
Castfast Properties Development Co., Limited, The Wedding
City Co., Limited, Ho's family and Directors of the Company.

Ho's family comprises Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, Non-executive Director
and Deputy Chairman and Ms. Ho Po Chu.

Directors represent Directors of the Company excluding Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.

RERMERRARAR BOWARAF  [ARR
ERARTEEMFHROBEIIN ARALAFE
H R B E

@) ARKEA T FERITHAR IS EALL  JFRTE
ERBITEMERALERMERL AR -

() EERK (RAEBEERMERLEEIN) RREZ
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KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS
FERREH

As at 30 June 2016 Shareholders Shares of HK$0.1 each

R-E-REXA=TH R BREEIETRA

Number of Shares Held Number % of total Number % of total

FERAHE AB  HAHESL B {HA¥ELH

1—2,000 513 58.5% 40,100 0.0%

2,001—10,000 49 5.6% 259,110 0.0%

10,001—20,000 37 4.2% 600,000 0.0%

20,001—50,000 61 7.0% 2,127,956 0.1%

50,001—100,000 51 5.8% 3,983,952 0.2%

100,001—200,000 44 5.0% 6,830,214 0.4%

200,001—500,000 44 5.0% 13,927,568 0.7%

500,001—1,000,000 21 2.4% 14,645,564 0.8%

1,000,001—2,000,000 14 1.6% 18,219,182 0.9%

2,000,001—5,000,000 19 2.2% 58,877,404 2.9%

Over 5,000,000 + 24 2.7%  1,876,684,150 94.0%
877 100.0%  1,996,195,200 100.0%

MARKET CAPITALISATION miE

As at 31 March 2016 R=TB-RE=A=+-—H

(Closing Price: HK$0.48) (WKH{E:0.48%8 )

HK$958,173,696 958,173,696/5 7T

As at 30 June 2016 RZE—XRFEXA=TH

(Closing Price: HK$0.55) (YW ifE : 0.55% T)

HK$1,097,907,360 1,097,907,360/% 7T

Share Price Movement and Trade Volume in Financial Year 2015/16

—B-H/ —AMBEEZREEBRAX
Share Price (HK$)
ME ()

050 f
045
040
035 F

030 f

Share Price (HK$)
ffE (BT)

4 050

4 045

4 040

4 035

4 030

Trade Volume Apr'15 July Oct Jan"16

(Shares in million)
Kxzg (BER)

Trade Volume
(Shares in million)
mxE (B8

40M

Apr'15 July Oct Jan'16
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KEY INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Main Board
1050

BOARD LOT
2,000 shares

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the Hong
Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the

Company:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8628

Fax: (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries, please contact:

Mr. Henry Choi

Chief Financial Officer

Karrie International Holdings Limited
10th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building
611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2411-0913

Fax: (852) 2415-1608

Email: ir@karrie.com

FERREH

1% 42 A 555
BEEHERIMBRAA
e

1050

BFRE

2,000

iR 3R BR %5

BEREMNER BTERhHzEE EBERNE
BB R S BRARES  FIAE EB
MEMNETEROBEFEL DR :

BEBRREFLFELARA A
BB BT

2R ANER183%
ARMAL7##1712-1716F

T % : (852) 2862-8628
{8 & : (852) 2529-6087

REERE
AR E A A

BB LA

BEEVHE

=AM EBRERER AR
BB

FREE
SILAKE611-61958
REIEKREI0E

T 5 (852) 2411-0913
fEHE : (852) 2415-1608
BEE : ir@karrie.com
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CORPORATE CALENDAR
EEXEHRE

O

2015

The first Fullhouse Kitchen restaurant was opened at Discovery Park, Tsuen Wan in August 2015,
which operates with higher flexibility and smaller scale and supplying food from central kitchen as its

8H AUG core
& [Fullhouse KitchenZ2BAR —ZT—RF /\ ARSERMBFIMFA SR - UEE /A RELAR REEH
ERE
Awarded the “Good MPF Employer Award” logo by “Good MPF Employer Award” Scheme of
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
EReRENN B TREE] Za8BmK B FEE]ER
108 OCT  Awarded the “Hong Kong — Guangdong Cleaner Production Excellent Partner (Manufacturing)” by
the Environment Bureau of Hong Kong Government and the Economic and Information Commission
of Guangdong Province
EEERNRERKERAKBENES(MEESHFAEE [BRBREEBBNGE (BER) | 1B
Celebration of Karrie Group 35th Anniversary and Mainland Plant 30th Anniversary
BREEKY=THhBEFERNMER=THEF
In responding to the local government’s urban, plant and village policy, on 29 December 2015, the
128 DEC  Group entered into a contract of grant with The Bureau of Land and Resource, Dongguan, in relation
to the land use right and change the use of land to commercial and residential purposes from
industrial use at the consideration of approximately RMB52,000,000
REBMWHTBN=Z8BEZBR R_E—HAF T+ A tNB AEEEREZHE L ERBA]
VriERELEER &ﬁﬁﬁAE%ﬂomommE&im%$ HI¥ARRARETAR
2016
Awarded the award certificate by NEC Platforms, Ltd., our client, in affirming and recognizing the
A Group's efforts in storage product business in the past 15 years
14 JAN
EZFNEC Platforms, Ltd. BER =R - WRTEEEBETAFREFREMEB NS NELS
Eﬂ:unu
Fullhouse was awarded the “2015 Hong Kong Emerging Service Brand Award” by Hong Kong Brand
A Development Council and The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong
2H FEB
FullhousePREEH<BE M ERB>R<BBPEREB S S>BERN [20015F5BFERBmEX
5
Fullhouse was awarded the “Hong Kong Smart Gifts Design Award 2016 — Household Gift Bronze
48 APR Award” by The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association

FullhouseRER<BE L OB E>REN [BE T LR MR KE 2016 - RER M E ]
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CORPORATE CALENDAR
fEXEHRE

54 MAY

Karrie was awarded the “10 Years Plus Caring Company” (Years 2005-2016) logo by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service
EAERSHEREB SEE [10FPlusg REAZ] (2005-20165F ) 125

Karrie was granted the continuous use of “Manpower Developers 1st” logo by Employees Retraining
Board; My Affection Limited and Fullhouse under the Group were also granted the continuous use of
“Manpower Developers” logo in recognizing the continuous practice of “training and development”
by the Group

EANREEBFEIBEE AL E st ] 1R kB E T 815K 218 R 2 8 KFullhouse TR & &
ERIATCE] 2B URTEEFREERE [ AABIIRERINIE

Fullhouse Egglet, the first light meal shop in Malaysia, was opened with Fullhouse character modeling
egglet as its principal products

5 2R 78 28 & ] BAFullhouse A ¥ 3 U 2 & (F E 3 3T AU Fullhouse Egglet® & JE M &

Awarded by Lenovo for “2016 Supplier Conference — Perfect Quality”

EEBRE 20162 REEAAE - REFmE K]

64 JUN

The merging of Fenggang Guanjingtou Plant into Fenggang Yuquan Plant was mostly completed
BrEEHERESHEREERBFEEBAE DTN

The Fenggang Yuquan Plant was awarded the 2015 BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership
Awards Programme by Federation of Hong Kong Industries: 5 Years+ EcoPioneer and EcoPartner

REERMESTETXASRE2015PREBLERFRALAR  SF+2HRREBRELRR
B K H

ok
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEEE

Share Price Movement from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2016
—E-—FNA-HBE-E-AE=ZA=+-HZREEZHE

Share Price (HK$)
BB (&)

0.7 F

06

05 |

04

03 F

02

Share Price (HK$)
f&E (&)

4 07

4 06

4 05

4 04

4 03

4 02

2012 2013

Revenue HK$ million

WABEBET

2,898

2,591
2,290 2,291
2,033

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Basic earnings per share HK cents

FREAR A AL

3.8

b _«
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3% 7 EIf 12 i A /R 4 &

2014 2015 2016

Profit attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million

EEFEARLZNEEBT

117

76

39
34
29

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Dividends per share HK cents

BRRE A

3.5
3.3

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEE

Turnover percentage by Products

RERBINERFRADR

Turnover percentage by Geographical Location
(based on the country in which the final destination
of shipment is located or services are provided)
RERFEHEINEXETI R (RERRNER
MRS RH T ERRSE)

I Metal and Plastic Business

RS BBER

1l Electronics Manufacturing Services Business [ ] Japan B Hong Kon ™ The PRC
BrHENRTER g =k e

[ | gpnsumer and Services Business [ | Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and the PRC)
BEE RGBS EER DM (TEEER BERHRE)

[ Real Estate Business ™ North America M Western Europe
B b T JEEM PaER

1% 0%

52%

47%

1%

29% 29%

3%
14%

2016 2015 % Changes
—E—RE —E—RF gHasL
HK$ million B &EE T
Revenue WA 2,898 2,591 +12%
Gross profit EH 352 284 +24%
Operating profit =iyl 150 94 +60%
Profit attributable to equity A ARG R A
shareholders 117 76 +54%
Total assets EEEE 2,078 1,966 +6%
Shareholders’ equity IR A 2 1,017 988 +3%
In Million AR
Number of shares egraE =] 1,996 1,996 -
Per Share Data BREHR
HK Cents JEN
Basic earnings B A 5.9 3.8 +55%
Diluted earnings BE 205 A 5.9 3.8 +55%
Total cash dividends RIS B 3.5 3.3 +6%
HK$ BT
Net asset value per share BREEFE 0.5 0.5 -
Financial Ratios Bt =
Gross profit margin (%) 2R EF (%) 12.1 11.0 +10%
Net profit margin (%) BT (%) 4.0 2.9 +38%
Net current ratio FmE LK 1.2 1.0 +20%
Net quick ratio R B LY 0.8 0.6 +33%
Net gearing ratio (%) FIRTTIEE LR (%) 12.0 14.3 -16%
Interest coverage FERELL = 15.0 13.6 +10%
Dividend payout (%) IR B H R (%) 59.3 86.8 -32%
Revenue to net bank borrowings W A BLFIRTTE B % 23.7 18.4 +29%
Non-current assets to total JEMB A E R
equity (%) BE L R (%) 90.8 100.5 -10%
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEEE

Definitions E&
' ' Profit attributable to equity shareholders L BmErA ARG RN
Basic earnings | . 1bu quity SR EL AN F T* ALl .
per share Weighted average number of shares IN#EF R 8K
' i Profit attributable to equity shareholders p NG Emia ARG
Difuicoe) eaalngs A LT — TR E R E - —
per share Diluted weighted average number of shares B hniE TR E
Net asset value Net assets = LS S BEFE
& EFE =
per share Number of shares as at year end FERRE
Gross profit Gross profit o . I (o ES 1000
margin (%) — x 100% BEREN (%) KA x 100%
Net profit Profit for the year \ F 2 5 A
. 1009 AR (% x 100%
margin (%) Revenue X % st () WA °
Current assets _ e & E
t rati F I Eh L : =
Net current ratio Current liabilities T o mEBE
Current assets less inventories = REBEERFE
Net quick rati R IRB) R - =
et quick ratio Current liabilities raLilge s REAE
Bank borrowings and obligations RITEERBMARET
Net gearing under finance leases less cash and ERTEE EERE D K
ratio (%) bank deposits FE & (%) RITIFHK
Total equity EmiRE
Earnings before interest expenses, tax, MBRFIE S - A -
Interest coverage depreciation and amortisation FERE = P18 N SH R i A
Interest expenses FE X H
Dividend Dividend per share . =31 g S5 )
100% R B R (% — x 100%
payout (%) Earnings per share X ° ! (%) A& 4 A °
Revenue WA
R to net — L ONCE R T e
bg\rlwinggrrgvafwgs Bank borrowings and obligations under AR (TE B b BITEERBMERET
finance leases less cash and bank deposits o AEERE S RIBITFER
Non-current Non-current assets B EER JEMENE E
assets to total Total equity R RELX(%) = iRE
equity (%)
\_ J
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS
The Group is principally engaged in

- Metal and Plastic (“M&P") Business: manufacturing
and sale of metal and plastic products, including
computer server casings, moulds, plastic and metal
parts and predominately self-brand household
products;

- Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS™) Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape data
storage, “point-of-sale” (“POS”) system, medical
products, office automation products and other
computer peripherals;

- Consumer and Services Business: building of
“Fullhouse World” Brand, provision of relevant
services, such as catering services, sales of themed
gifts, wedding gown and photography; and

- Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real
estate project investment, property lease and
development.

1. Business Review
/. Results

Revenue of the Group increased by
HK$306,982,000 to HK$2,897,605,000
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (year
ended 31 March 2015: HK$2,590,623,000).
Profit after tax amounted to approximately
HK$116,671,000 (year ended 31 March
2015: HK$75,706,000), increased by
HK$40,965,000 when compared with last
year, including the corresponding losses
incurred, as a result of the integration or
closure of consumer and services business,
were approximately HK$16,553,000.

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERWE

AANZBUEMARKREZT([EFE([ESF
EREFMNEREZRER 2R ([AAF])
REMBA T((HSE.J)@:I:—? RNE=H
=t —BLEHEFER-

EEXRBRER
REBEERE

- heBBEB(hAeBRB]) HERH
EhehERBRER BEMRRSEEKI
HoEAR BRESBHUHRUERGDE
RBZREEMS:

— EFEXERIER([EFRI)) &

&ﬁé%ﬁﬂ BEERETS  [WERK] R

CBEER PRAEXNEEGREEME
«(ﬂi&Futﬁ

- HEERRBERD BIUREER]m
o REESRRE  HEXTERR BER
# MBS HARE &

- BFHEXRB EHNE BHEEBEABRK
B WMEHEHENRER-

(—) #¥¥KEFE
/ -y
BE-_ZFT-X"F=ZA=1—
BIEFEEAXEBRZ X8
HF T306,982,000% =&
2,897,605,0008 t (=&

AF=ZA=+—HLEFE:
2,590,623,000/ Jr) ° fi 12 % A
#4116,671,0008 T (BE—-F
—RAE=ZRA=Z+—"BLFE:
75,706,000/ 70) ' & EF & EF+
740,965,000 7T o it E A B IE A
BANBEEAEBEERRGSEESLE
Emal R EEL16,553,000%8

ﬁo
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During the year, the revenue and results of
the industrial business still maintained its
upward trend since last year. Furthermore,
the on-going automation deepening
applications had resulted in production
efficiency as well as effective cost control.
Despite average salary remained a
continuous rising trend, production costs
were effectively under control and the
performance of deepening application
of machinery automation was directly
reflected in the results. During the vyear,
the operating profit of the industrial
business increased by approximately 51%
to HK$210,799,000 (year ended 31 March
2015: HK$139,568,000 (restated)), while
for consumer and services business, which
was under accelerated integration of its
operation with unsatisfactory efficiency
during the year, the operating loss was up
by HK$1,051,000 to HK$49,796,000 (year
ended 31 March 2015: HK$48,745,000
(restated)), of which approximately
HK$16,553,000 was resulted from the
integration of consumer and services
business.

In addition, the real estate business recorded
an operating loss of HK$10,632,000
during the year (year ended 31 March
2015: operating profit of HK$3,155,000
(restated)), which was mainly due to the
valuation loss in investment properties of
HK$11,281,000 from the revaluation of the
investment properties in Yixing (year ended
31 March 2015: valuation gain in investment
properties of HK$4,698,000).
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Il Industrial Business — M&P and EMS

)

Revenue for 2015/16 increased
by approximately 12% to
HK$2,870,001,000 when compared
with last year, which was mainly due

to:

(a)

Revenue of the M&P
business for the year ended
31 March 2016 increased
by approximately 40% to
HK$1,500,133,000 (year
ended 31 March 2015:
HK$1,074,753,000) when
compared with last year. The
increase in revenue was mainly
due to the increase in sales
for both the new server casing
projects for which some had
commenced mass production
as well as the newly-developed
server casing moulds.

Revenue of the EMS
business for the year ended
31 March 2016 decreased
by approximately 8% to
HK$1,369,868,000 when
compared with last year
(year ended 31 March 2015:
HK$1,489,483,000). The
decrease in revenue was
mainly due to the decrease in
sales of magnetic tape data
storage and office automation
products.
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Automatic Heat Sticking Robotic Laser
Machine for Bass Nut Welding Machine
B AR HIZE BN SR

More than 250 sets of 6-axis
industrial robots are operating

250 8 NS A FETER

Production Automation
16 Karrie International Holdings Limited @E@ E’] fK



Progressive Tooling
NEZRA

HAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERHRE
Automatic Label
Sticking Machine
B BREIR %
Speed ¢ Precise ¢ Accuracy
R -iE - 2
Automatic Fiber Cable
Bonding Machine
=L

~—

&
Automatic

Installation Machine
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The growth in revenue and profit
of the industrial business of the
Group were quite satisfactory for
two consecutive financial years.
Such significant achievements were
due to the significant decrease
in operating costs, improvement
in competitiveness and customer
support and trust earned as a
result of the continuous automated
performance and also the highly
efficient management team.

Meanwhile, the Group made
another breakthrough in production
automation, and achieved satisfactory
progress in metal staking, plastic
automated pad printing, semi-
automated silk screening as well
as server enclosure assembly
process. The continuous progress
of automation is the fundamental
strategy of the industrial business.

The Group also successfully secured
the orders from clients in the next few
years regarding important projects of
new generation of models. As such,
the Group can continue to develop
its production from original model
projects to new model projects,
thereby stabling the base for future
orders. Moreover, the Group also
gained recognitions and awards from
various clients. While receiving clients’
encouragements, the Group also
continues to make efforts in meeting
customer requirements. The Group
bears in mind our visions of “Become
the most sophisticated mechanical
parts manufacturing solution and
value-added electronics assembly
services provider within global
industry”.
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M= Our Vision

BRAETREYERNELAENKRS R Become the most sophisticated mechanical
parts manufacturing solution and value-added

= 1 .
EERRERTARBREHER electronics assembly services provider within
global industry.

3 AP rY f5E Our Mission

THEBCERRTRREETR Design for manufacturing

RHEER GRS EET RN Hﬁff% <7 «‘ [ »Integrated world class manufacturing solution and services
S
FERIL :n:—?i—ﬁ_ " -J Reengmeermg to excellence

ll

BREREEAFEER '\ Evironment & Enterprise Sustainability

cl 4
BRKAE R G\Q \ 0 Cost effective management

EBEBACEZERE ’ Total stakeholder satisfaction

Y {EE Our Value

F# Proactive

AR7& Services

77 Commitment
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The newly constructed No.5 plant
and No.1 staff dormitory in Fenggang
Yuquan are put into use. Other
supporting facilities such as the staff
activity center and staff canteen are
completed one after another and are
put into use. The relocation of the
ancillary department in Fenggang
Guanjingtou Plant was successfully
completed, and all production
departments and machinery equipment
relocated to Yuquan were put into daily
operation and production in a stable
and successful manner. The relocation
of Guanjingtou Plant had largely been
completed during the year, and there
was no impact on the production and
operation of the Group during the
year.

The merging of the production
lines at the plants in Guanjingtou
and Yuquan made the Group's
production more concentrated;
thereby optimizing our department
organization structure, lowering costs,
and benefiting our production from
economies of scale. As the Group has
just largely completed the relocation,
the results are yet up to expectation,
and it believes its future production
effectiveness will gradually emerge.

The Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) system update was launched
by 2015 year end for improving the
data management from order to
settlement, allowing the management
to know the operation effectiveness
and conditions of each production
unit in a faster and clearer manner,
and enabling the continuous
improvement on data systematization
of the Group.
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The relocation to Fenggang Yuquan Plant has been largely completed

B E R BE A BEE 8

Office Building Staff Lounge
NN - 8T8

Guest Reception & Dining Area Staff Activity Center
EEEFRER BIEHH L

Snooker Room Staff Dormitory
KIRE BIESE
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(7)  The Group has been principally
engaged in the industrial sector for
over three decades. It seizes various
opportunities for its sustainable
developments, always open and
receptive in investing plants and
machinery equipment, and maintains
sufficient advanced production
capacity to develop innumerable new
projects for clients. Therefore, it is
not by chance that it has become
a trustworthy and reliable partner
of the global leading technology
corporations.

Consumer and Services Business

For the “Fullhouse World” business, by
reorganizing its structure, the Group
continues to optimize its schemes, reduce
costs and enhance operation efficiency in
reducing losses. The Group turns its future
development direction in operating a
more flexible and smaller scale “Fullhouse
Kitchen” restaurant, supplying food from
central kitchen as its core, and selling in-
house designed household products and
customized gifts from its Fullhouse World,
in which it could further promote the
“Fullhouse World"” brand. The first Fullhouse
Kitchen restaurant was opened at Discovery
Park, Tsuen Wan in August 2015. The Group
is still assessing its operation efficiency
and mode of operation as a blueprint for
expanding and promoting the “Fullhouse
World" brand to other locations. Facing the
weakening economy and fierce competition
in Hong Kong, the wedding services of the
Group are still at its consolidation stage,
anticipating another breakthrough.

Since it is necessary to integrate the
consumer and services business and close
down those businesses with low operation
efficiency, the Group incurred a loss of
approximately HK$16,553,000 for the
integration during the year. If excluding such
loss, the operating loss of consumer and
services business this year decreased by 32%
to HK$33,243,000 (year ended 31 March
2015: HK$48,745,000 (restated)) when
compared with last year.
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In fact, the main purpose of operating the
restaurant business of Fullhouse World and
selling the in-house designed household
products and customized gifts of “Fullhouse
World” is to establish the “Fullhouse
World” brand, in which it will bring pleasant
association and eternal memories for
consumer through their recognition. The
“Fullhouse World"” rainbow chopping board
was awarded the “Hong Kong Smart Gifts
Design Award 2016 — Household Gift Bronze
Award” by The Hong Kong Exporters’
Association. Furthermore, “Fullhouse World”
was also awarded the Hong Kong Emerging
Service Brand Award by Hong Kong Brand
Development Council and The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong,
demonstrating that the “Fullhouse World”
brand has infinite innovation, popularity and
high regard.
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The in-house designed household products of
Fullhouse World are both practical and creative and
widely accepted. They were also awarded the “Hong
Kong Smart Gifts Design Award 2016 — Household
Gift Bronze Award” by The Hong Kong Exporters’
Association
MEERBRRAREERRERNEZEE, AXE
0, FRERSHOANSHEE B8 28 aBRTA
H2016 - KB 18 mif22]

Fullhouse World was awarded the Hong Kong
Emerging Service Brand Award by Hong Kong

Brand Development Council and The Chinese
Manufacturers” Association of Hong Kong
MEEREEEREERBREBHEREHS S
MEE [ BB ERB @]
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V.

Real Estate Business

To better utilize land resources, the local
government has been encouraging local
enterprises to relocate their plants from new
urban areas to industrial zones. Under the
agitation of the local government’'s urban,
plant and village policy, the Group will
relocate its plant in Guanjintou to Yuquan,
and the land evacuated in Guanjintou had
already been changed its use to commercial
and residential purposes (mainly for
residential purpose) from industrial use. On
29 December 2015, the Group and The
Bureau of Land and Resource Dongguan
entered into a contract of grant regarding
the land use right and change the use of
land at the consideration of approximately
RMB52,000,000. The relevant State-owned
Land Use Right Certificate was obtained in
March 2016, pursuant to which the main
detailed information of its development is as
follows:

V.

V)2 374

BTREERLTHER HBHFEBEMET
T 55 B) 2 1b 2 08 A 5 FT IR = A R
ERBETERE - 7 BNEE
—ERNENBREZT AEEEH
EHEBREMRBELER MEHHE
WELHWER IXRBRNABER
B(AEFERE) RZZTE—AHF
+ZAZ+ B AEEEEEM
Bt ERBI T ERELEA
/R EHAR®52,000,0007T
FRETHAR IR _E—RNF=
BEEHBEERAE L+ it F A& -5
o EREBEBHFEZFBOT

Total land area:
48+ Hh A

Plot ratio:

Term:

FH:

Estimated total gross floor area:

fHETAEmmE A

Estimated date of construction:

a8 T HE:

Value of land:

T fhE:

Ownership of land:

THHEBRE:
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Approximately 61,864 square metres
#)61,864F 75 K

The period of land use right is 70 years for residential purpose or
40 years for commercial purpose

EEREN T HERER/IOF BEXEBEFHRIF

>120,000 square metres (of which >110,000 square metres are
for residential purpose )
>120,000F 75K (7 >110,000F 5K AFERAR)

2017
—E—tF

Approximately RMB410,000,000 as at 29 December 2015
R-ZFE—AF+T-A-1+NAHB #HAK®410,000,0007T

The Group is interested in 100% of land
AEEEZ100%EA L1



Design simulation plan of the reconstruction development project of Guanjingtou Plant for
commercial and residential use (mainly for residential purpose)

EREREREARERMUEERET)ZERER ZRHERE

Comparison plan between the location map of former Guanjingtou Plant and the
reconstruction development project for commercial and residential use

REHBERE 2 EBESRIFRHERCEREARHLE
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The main benefits of Guanjingtou Plant
Revitalisation Program are as follows:

(i) Fenggang is a geographically
favorable location as it is adjacent to
Shenzhen and has a transportation
network extending in all directions.
The change of land use as a
residential project development will
substantially escalate the value of
assets and the profitability of the
Group; and

(ii) The merging of the production lines
in Guanjingtou Plant and Yuquan
Plant will make our production more
concentrated to improve production
efficiency and cost saving.

Furthermore, certain conditions precedent
under the cooperation agreement in
relation to the PRC Real Estate Development
Project entered into on 27 April 2015
(the "Cooperation Agreement”) have not
been satisfied, therefore, it is required for
the parties to enter into supplemental
agreements in several times to further
extend the long stop date to 31 August
2016.

Eventually, the Group will take Fenggang
as a development pioneer and apply its
experience in Fenggang for the Yixing
Development Project of the Group in the
future.
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Conclusion

Opportunities flicker and vanish in a flash. Over
the past thirty-five years, in facing different
opportunities, the Group was able to perceive
them with its sharp edge, responded quickly with
flexible actions to move forward without lagging
behind its peers. We also seized opportunities to
reform resolutely with bold courage. Therefore,
the Group was able to cope with the crisis,
developed its businesses, expanded its production
capacity and promoted its automated production
capacity as well as streamlining its structures in
a vigorous and speedy manner. Also, the Group
was able to transform itself and grew through
different opportunities. During this year, the Group
strengthened its investments and applications of
automation continuously and laid a solid industrial
foundation. The Group also leveraged on the
powerful industry opportunities to improve the
utilization of the Group's resources (such as the
plant sites and production capacity), opened up
new areas for its businesses and created new
profitability channels.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a set of “New Dividend
Policy” in the announcement of results for the
first quarter of 2006/07, which outlines the factors
that should be taken into account in determining
any dividend for distribution, such as the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company,
cash flows and investment budgets. After careful
consideration of the aforementioned factors,
and given that the Board hopes to maintain the
Company's track record of paying dividends to
our shareholders for the 20th consecutive year,
the Board has decided to recommend to pay a
final dividend of HK2.75 cents per share to our
shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 2 September
2016.

(=)
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3. Geographical Distribution

The Group has always adopted a diversified
approach in transporting its goods and does not
rely on one single market. Details of the Group's
geographical distribution are set out in the segment
reporting in note 5 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of this annual report.

4, Prospects
l Industrial Business

) To maintain the competitiveness
of the industrial business of the
Group, the Group will continue
the various developments of its
industrial business, particularly
the advancement of production
technology, enhancement of quality
management, deepening research
and development of automation
and structural integration of
human resource structure of the
Group. The Group will continue to
drive the lean manufacturing and
data management; it will remove
superfluous position set up and jobs
with overlapping functions, and also
strengthen the promotion of talents
recruitment, thereby making industrial
production more effective.
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In the coming year, the deepening
automation development will focus
on the application of computer
numeral controlled welding, sheet
metal bending and staking with
robots. The Group will continue to
strengthen research and development
on automation technology with
SMEBERASEWAER A, so as
to expand its application to other
processes, and strive to optimize
the cost and quality of product. The
Group regards them as one of the
significant strategies to continue the
deepening automation which has
demonstrated the “speed, precise,
accuracy” capability in production.
Meanwhile, we move forward into
the China Manufacturing 2025
to practice the basic principles of
innovation-driven, quality goes
first, green development, structure
optimization, and talent-oriented.

Through strengthening the
relationships with existing partners
and developing new customers,
the Group also develops and
manufactures various peripheral
products. While successfully obtaining
orders of its new generation servers,
the Group will leverage on its
advantage of powerful production
capacity to maintain the momentum
of continuous growth of the industrial
business of the Group and stabilize its
foundation businesses.
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1.

1.

Real Estate Business

After completing the relocation of
Guanjingtou Plant, the Group targets to
commence construction in 2017 and expects
a pre-sale in 2018. The Group has always
been responding to the local government’s
urban, plant and village policy. Besides the
Guanjingtou Plant, the Group is actively
communicating with the local government
to consider revitalizing the Fenggang Yantian
Plant. However, the revitalization of Yantian
Plant is still under conceptual consideration
with no finalized schedule at the moment.

It has been more than one year since
entering into the Cooperation Agreement on
27 April 2015 and the Group is negotiating
with other parties to vary certain terms in
the Cooperation Agreement to facilitate the
cooperation. In the event of reaching any
agreement on this aspect (which is expected
to take place in July 2016), the parties to
the Cooperation Agreement will enter into a
further supplemental agreement.

Consumer and Services Business

Facing with the challenges of Hong Kong
economic instability, the future development
of Fullhouse World is still to operate with
flexibility and small scale of Fullhouse
Kitchen restaurant, thereby reducing the
number of staff and avoiding expensive
rent. In the meantime, taking central kitchen
as a distribution, we can set up Fullhouse
Kitchen restaurant in every zone, with focus
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on children and families. These Fullhouse
Kitchen restaurant also becomes the POS
of in-house designed household products
and customized gifts from “Fullhouse
World”, and promote the “Fullhouse World”
brand. We also consider it as a similar
model in China to set up small restaurants
through franchising or self-operated
shops to increase the POS of various in-
house designed household products and
customized gifts, and complementing with
the benefits provided by the resorts and
hotels of other important strategic partners
are expected to achieve win-win results in
the growth of marketing.

It also operates under this model in Malaysia
to set up small shops of Fullhouse Egglet
selling Fullhouse character modeling egglet.
The first shop was opened in May 2016,
and it is expected to open more shops in
different locations in Malaysia. Meanwhile,
each shop will also become the POS of in-
house designed household products and
customized gifts of “Fullhouse World” to
promote the brand.
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Fullhouse World integrates its in-house
Windmill designed household products with catering to
create delicious food specialties
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Fullhouse Egglet, opened in Malaysia, is using Fullhouse
character modeling egglet as its principal products

5 71 75 25 3 2% Fullhouse Egglet, LAFullhouse A #7352
EFEEST

Overall outlook

This year marked the twentieth anniversary of
the Group since its listing. Through different
businesses, the Board strives to grasp the
opportunities from time to time, copes with the
unpredictable ever-changing environment, balances
the interests of each party, as well as maintaining
strong relationships with stakeholders to create
value together. With the “Proactive, Services,
Commitment” spirits, the Board enhances the
investment values of the Company constantly to
bring fruitful results to the shareholders.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Generating Ability

With the improvement of the industrial operations, the
financial position remains healthy. Net bank borrowings” as
at 31 March 2016 were approximately HK$122,113,000
and the net gearing ratio (being the proportion of total
net bank borrowings over total equity) was 12% (as at
31 March 2015: net bank borrowings were approximately
HK$141,135,000 and net gearing ratio was 14%).

# Represents bank borrowings and obligations under finance
leases ("interest-bearing borrowings”) less cash and bank
deposits
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Non-current Assets to Shareholders’ Fund Ratio
maintaining at the level of 1

The non-current assets to total equity ratio as at 31
March 2016 maintained at the level of 91% (as at 31
March 2015: 101%). With the expansion of our industrial
business, the Group increased its investments in plant and
machinery during the year, using its stable total equity as a
support.

Financing for Growth

As at 31 March 2016, net bank borrowings were
approximately HK$122,113,000. The initial estimate
of the CAPEX Budget for the financial year 2016/17
is approximately HK$145,000,000, of which
HK$130,000,000 relates to the industrial business,
HK$10,000,000 is for the consumer and services business
and HK$5,000,000 is for the investment property. The
CAPEX was mainly used for acquiring newly machinery
and equipment, plant expansion and opening of Fullhouse
Kitchen restaurants.

Resources Available

Currently, total interest-bearing borrowings are
approximately HK$398,654,000. The Group is confident
that with the cash in hand and bank deposits of
approximately HK$276,541,000 and the unutilised
banking facilities of HK$864,580,000, it is able to meet its
current operational and capital expenditure requirements
and to make strategic investments when opportunities
arise.

Exchange Rate Exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated in HKD, USD and RMB. Foreign currency risk
arises from commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations that
are denominated in a currency other than the Group’s
functional currency, which in turn exerts pressure on
the Group’s production cost. To mitigate the impact of
exchange rate fluctuation of the RMB on its business, the
Group will actively communicate with its customers in
order to adjust the selling prices of its products and may
use foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge against
foreign currency risk (if and when necessary).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.
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TEA-BREAK WITH INVESTORS

We are glad that the “tea-break with investors
(institutional or individual)” has been successfully held
for many years. The Group adheres to the principles of
"openness, fairness and equality” and believes that all
investors should have the same right to get access to the
Company's information. With these principles in mind and
considering that the tea-break remains to be an effective
and efficient way for the Company to communicate with
its investors, the Group will continue to organise tea-break
with individual investors. The next tea-break is scheduled
on 26 August 2016 from 7 p.m. to 9 p.m. at East Ocean
Seaview Restaurant, 11/F., One Peking Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Interested investors are invited to visit the Group’s website
at www.karrie.com for more details. Application form will
be downloaded from the website or obtained by calling
2411-0913 during office hours. Only investors whose
applications are confirmed can join the function. Investors
are encouraged to grasp this opportunity to communicate
directly with the management of the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group had 4,386 employees on average (an average
of 4,397 employees in the corresponding period last
year) during the year. With a good reputation in the local
community, the Group has rarely encountered major
difficulties in recruiting employees.

Employee remuneration packages are determined in
accordance with prevailing market standards and the
employee’s performance and experience. The Group
will also grant bonuses to employees with outstanding
performance based on its own audited business
performance and the appraisal and reward system.
Other employee benefits include medical insurance and
mandatory provident fund.

In addition, to cope with domestic development and the
actual need for talent-retaining, the Group establishes
a "Cooperative Home & Car Ownership Scheme” to
encourage and finance potential elites in buying a home
and a car as a means to retain talents who may otherwise
be lost in the competitive labour market.

Performance Based Incentives

The Group adopted performance based bonus system
and objective performance assessment. Employees with
outstanding performance will receive more bonus than
before the new system was implemented.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK2.75 cents (2014/15 final dividend: HK1.8 cents per
share and special dividend: HK1.0 cent per share) per share
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 2 September 2016. Together
with the interim dividend of HKQ.75 cent per share, total
dividend paid/payable for this year amounted to HK3.5
cents (2014/15: HK3.3 cents) per share. The final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“"AGM") of the Company to be held on 26 August 2016.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
currently made up of one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors whose duties include
resolving issues in relation to audit such as reviewing and
supervising the Company’s financial reporting process and
internal control systems. The audit committee and the
management have reviewed the accounting principles and
major policies adopted by the Group and have discussed
the auditing, internal control and financial reporting in
the current year with the external auditors. The audit
committee has reviewed the consolidated annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their
invaluable support to the Group, and my fellow Directors,
managers and all staff for their considerable contributions
to the Group.
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APPENDIX 1

Special Characteristics of Our
Industrial Business Model

A Hypothetical Example (Simplified
and generalized for easy
understanding)

1. Quotation Phase
— Around 12 to 15 months
prior to shipment, Customer
A sends out Request for
Quotation (RFQ) for a
project to all "qualified
suppliers”.

2. Project Confirmation Phase

— Customer A confirms the
placement of the project to
us;

— Customer A also provides
shipment forecast for the
next 18 to 24 months,
which is the normal life cycle
of a project.

3. Moulds and Prototype

Maklng Phase
According to Customer A’s
specification, we start to
perform the design works,
make the moulds and
prototype;

— This process would take
around 6 to 12 months;

— Customer A would also
work with our purchasing
department on materials
and the list of qualified
suppliers for such materials.

4. Shlpment Phase
Customer A finalizes and
revises the final shipment
schedule;
— We start manufacturing and
ship goods to just-in-time
(JIT) inventory warehouses.

5. Sales Recognition and
Payment
— Customer A takes goods
from JIT warehouses;

- We get paid after the
normal credit period.
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As in most cases the Group is the sole supplier for the HREEBRFEEFPERNEMER 2ME—HE
confirmed project and the related engineering works have H-MEBEEBEKEHMERFPINGEE  H#
largely been completed, our problem is therefore one of ZIRREETENRKETEA BREMERMT
production, and not of marketing (2003/04 Annual Report, MRNMTKEERL MIFITE(ZTT=/
page 26). TOFEFRE_T/RNE)

GENERALISED FLOW CHART OF THE SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
HEEEERGE - REFREER
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Some or all of the following characteristics apply to our
dealings with customers. Such characteristics have been
generalized/simplified to enable easy understanding:

1. We deal with projects, which can take one year
from initial project confirmation, development and
engineering works to final shipment of goods.
A project’s shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24
months.

2. We do not normally have a large order backlog
because the customers’ adoption of either the
just-in-time inventory (JIT), rolling forecast,
Electronic Data Interexchange (EDI) or a
combination of the above methods.

3. Usually we are the sole supplier for a particular
project and therefore have the obligation to ship
goods to customers even if the sales volume is
much higher than the initial projection.

4. Most of our customers are not retailers, but
manufacturers themselves. Some of them even have
factories in China. Most of the materials are either
sourced through the customers or their designated
suppliers.

5. Our customers are mostly multi-national companies.
Thus we frequently encounter such situation like
project originated in Japan, components assembled
in China while the final products shipped to Asia
or Europe. Our definition of breakdown by market
is by shipment destination rather than country of
origin of the customers.
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APPENDIX 2 M e —

Dividend and Dividend Policy:
RERREBE:
An unbroken 20 years’ record of dividend payment
= F BRI B 1 oK R
The Group’s policy to distribute 30% or more of its profits attributable to shareholders as dividend
FAEBREEREBEARREMLEFZ0% U L AERE
All dividend paid shown below is in HK cents per share

THERIKE ZREZUEBWUGFE

Interim Final Special Dividend
Interim Final Subtotal Special Special Subtotal Total Payout Ratio
b A BHRE BRE
HH xH Mt BRRE  BERE et CH) KB E

(excluding)* (Including)*
(FBEER)*  (BEER)*

1996/97 Nil & 5.40 5.40 Nil Nil % Nil & 5.40 24% N/A i A
1997/98 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil £ Nil % Nil & 1.00 13% N/A i A
1998/99 2.00 2.00 4.00 Nil £ Nil & Nil & 4.00 58% N/A i A
1999/00 2.20 2.20 4.40 Nil £ Nil & Nil & 4.40 77% N/A i A
2000/01 1.10 3.80 4.90 Nil 6.20 6.20 11.10 69% 156%
2001/02 5.00 5.90 10.90 5.00 14.10 19.10 30.00 50% 138%
2002/03 8.00 11.00 19.00 Nil 5.00 5.00 24.00 60% 75%
2003/04 8.00 12.00 20.00 Nil 4 Nil % Nil & 20.00 87% N/A i
2004/05 8.50 12.50 21.00 Nil 4 Nil & Nil & 21.00 58% N/A i
2005/06 9.00 13.00 22.00 Nil 3.00 3.00 25.00 48% 55%
2006/07 8.50 3.00 11.50 Nil 4 Nil % Nil & 11.50 38% N/A i A
2007/08 0.75 Nil & 0.75 Nil 4 Nil % Nil & 0.75 27% N/A i A
2008/09 Nil & 1.50 1.50 Nil 4 Nil % Nil & 1.50 39% N/A i A
2009/10 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil 4 Nil & Nil & 1.00 45% N/A i A
2010/11 Nil & 1.10 1.10 Nil 4 Nil % Nil & 1.10 32% N/A i A
2011/12 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil 4 Nil % Nil & 1.00 38% N/A i A
2012/13 Nil & 1.20 1.20 Nil 4 Nil % Nil & 1.20 61% N/A i A
2013/14 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil 4 Nil % Nil & 1.00 58% N/A i A
2014/15 0.50 1.80 230 Nil 1.00 1.00 3.30 61% 87%
2015/16 0.75 2.75 3.50 Nil 4 Nil % Nil & 3.50 59% N/A i A
Remarks: * Excluding special dividend # Including special dividend

R * N IERRIR R B TR RILAR B
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No. of days H#
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Bf s =

Inventory & Debtor Turnover Days

FEREWRIRASH

100
90 —3— Inventory Turnover 15 &3 5]
Lr Debtor Turnover &Y b8 &5 5
80
70 S
60
50
40
30
10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16
(No. of days) (H ) 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16
Inventory Turnover
FEREH 48 59 40 45 64 50
Debtor Turnover
JFE U5 bR 478 % 53 72 52 54 40 41

Inventory turnover (Base on year end inventory value/Cost

of Sales) x 365 days

Debtor turnover (Base on year end debtors/Revenue) x 365

days

FEBEH (AFREFEEHEKA) x 3650

FE N IR B 5 B (A F AR EURIR, & %58 ) x 365H

Inventory Turnover Days 77 & & & i

(No. of days) (A &) 14/15 15/16  Change #1ig
Raw Materials [} 23 16 -30%
Work-in-progress 2 £ & 11 7 -36%
Finished Goods &K & 30 27 -10%
Total & &t 64 50 -22%
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APPENDIX 4 M 8% P9
Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin
BREINRAFESE

(%)

30

25 —— Gross Profit Margin 2B EF(%)

L Net Profit Margin 2B 4175(%)

20

15

10

£ 1% £
0 T
10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16

(%) 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16
Gross Profit Margin
EREF 6.7 8.2 10.6 14.3 11.0 12.1
Net Profit Margin
BT 0.9 1.3 1.7 1.6 2.9 4.0
HKS$(million) (5 2% T)
Revenue
WA 2,591 2,290 2,291 2,033 2,591 2,898
Profit for the year
FEmH 23 29 39 33 76 117
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APPENDIX 5 Bt &% F
Capex
EEEERE
Profit attributable
to equity shareholders
Capex H=FFA A
BN FEMR @ T
HK$000 B Industrial Business HK$'000
FHT TEEG FIET
250,000 [ Real Estate Business 250,000
[ b EE 75
Consumer and Services Business

200,000 - HEE LR EEL 200,000

150,000 2 150,000

100,000 * 100,000

*
50,000 . 50,000
» *
0 — 0
11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17*
Capex
BRI 112,299 107,078 106,450 164,956 126,264 145,000
-#k- Profit attributable to

equity shareholders 28,608 39,308 34,291 76,298 117,076 ?
i a ARG

* Budget only
*HE
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
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(m

ABOUT THE SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

The sustainability report is a disclosure document
highly regarded by enterprises as a means to
enhance the transparency of non-financial
disclosure information. Embracing our motto
“KARRIE ON PERPETUAL MOTION, BENEFITS
SERVED TO THE PUBLIC”, the Group has
been active in giving back to the society and
environmental protection. It is of paramount
importance to have effective communication
and understanding between the Group and its
stakeholders, including shareholders, partners,
employees, suppliers, regulators and the public in
coming up with benchmarks and regarding key
issues.

The Group started to prepare the sustainability
report ever since its listing in 1996 and starting
from the 2008/2009 annual report, the report
has been incorporated into annual reports as a
separate section. During this year, our separate
sustainability report is prepared in compliance with
the hierarchies set forth in Sustainability Reporting
Guidelines G4.0 issued by the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI), some extracts of which are set out in
this annual report. After such separate sustainability
report is available, it will be published on the
website of the Company.

VISIONS ON CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

In our opinion, “corporate social responsibility”
refers to “the continuing commitment by a business
to operate ethically and contribute to economic
development while improving the quality of life
of the workforce and their families as well as
of the local community and society at large”.
Among our missions, “Environment and Enterprise
Sustainability” and “Total Stakeholder Satisfaction”
reflect the Group's stress on good corporate
citizenship.
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The Group believes that, as a citizen of the society,
business shall take from the society and pay back
to the society, and due consideration should be
given equally to the interests of stakeholders, so as
to achieve a continual harmonious growth together
with the society. The Group always cares about its
staff, ethics, corporate governance, environmental
protection, occupational safety and health and
charitable service, to ensure the long term
sustainable development of the business.

In the long run, due performance of social
responsibility will definitely improve the Group's
reputation, save cost, enhance the scope of
decision making and strengthen the corporate
governance ability. Moreover, the Group holds
that performance of social responsibility may
not necessarily be contrary to the interests of
shareholders. For example, the implementation
of energy conservation policy for reducing carbon
emission is environmentally friendly and conductive
to cost-saving, which will be eventually manifested
on shareholders’ interests.

Mechanism for developing and reviewing
corporate social responsibility

The Group has adopted Electronic Industry Code
of Conduct (“EICC") to ensure that it could
continuously satisfy the legal requirements and
customers’ needs in respect of the protection of
employees’ interests, business ethics, environmental
protection, occupational health and safety, as
well as making continuous improvement to fulfill
corporate social responsibilities.

Social charity

Since 2005, the Group has appropriated 0.3%
of earnings in the prior year annually for charity
or social responsibility purpose. The established
volunteer group for charitable works and different
teams develop social responsibility activity projects
and prepare relevant expenditure budgets for the
current year annually, and then they are handed
over to the management for approval to ensure the
proper use of the expenditure.
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Employee caring

The Group collects feedbacks and requirements
from different departments regarding
administration, human resources and training
issues annually, and develops annual plan for each
year. In addition, it occasionally establishes focus
groups based on the actual and social needs to
collect feedbacks, benchmarking good practices
of the peers, and puts appropriate items in place.
Moreover, suggestion boxes are placed in the
headquarter and PRC factories to allow our staff to
voice out their opinions anytime; and a Staff Care
Committee is established to increase the satisfaction
of our staff by providing various channels for
effective communication, complaint and feedback
as well as actively listening to the voices of our
staff and solving the work and life issues mostly
concerned by our staff.

Corporate management

The Group has established the Executive Committee
to improve decision-making efficiency. The day-
to-day operations of the Group are now in the
hands of a group of professional team. The Group
is committed to improving transparency, hence
it discloses in annual report detailed explanation
of corporate strategies and the rationale behind;
and meets investors annually through the “tea-
break” program to facilitate the direct dialogue
between the investors and the management. Our
staff can also keep abreast of our corporate plans
and development directions through brainstorming
sessions and chairman sharing activities and hence
the transparency of the company is enhanced.
Starting from 2008, the "Sustainability Report” has
been incorporated into the annual reports, which
allows the public and investors to have a better
knowledge of what we have done for sustainable
development and corporate social responsibility.
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Environmental protection, occupational safety and
health

The Group has already obtained 1SO14001
environment management system certificate back
in 2001, and has conducted internal audit and
external audit annually, on the Group's policy
direction and effectiveness on environmental
protection. We also actively participate in
environmental protection programs organised by
social groups and environmental organizations,
such as the “"Hong Kong — Guangdong Cleaner
Production Partner” logo and Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence etc. Outstanding
results were achieved and benchmarking good
practices of the peers was attained.

A Cleaner Production and Energy-saving Committee
established in 2005 is responsible for the overall
planning of the Group’s energy-saving solution and
supervising its implementation, including the use of
computer resources, cleaner production plan, use
of production machinery and equipment, electricity
usage in office, implementation of environmental
measures, customer issues and ISO environmental
protection and energy-saving solution.

The human resources and administration
department of the Group and the industrial safety
team in the PRC are responsible for following
up and supervising the occupational safety and
health practice of each department. By adopting
the OHSAS 18001 occupational health and safety
management system in 2010, the Group has
established and implemented its occupational
health and safety management system and carried
out follow-up works like safety education, trainings
and drills.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
AHARRERE

RIR BR =T B2 F T H

AEBER-_ZTZT—FEFISO140013R
RERRAFE UYTHEFHIETR
%&M\% AR AN S B R IR (R 5 H 8 X
RAREMZGE FREEG2EMEEEE N
RIRABFIEFNIRREHTE - W[E
BEREEKEIER BEERREBET
EE WEEBENKE T RFRERY
HOE o

RZZTEZTRFKILIB %EF&%@E%%
@Jﬁ /gzl»‘%.ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁ% RREBH

CTHNABRRENERNER BREE
u‘|‘§|J SERBRZENER HLAEAE
RIRRAERITRER RISORIRETBE

2o A

EKIO

AEBANEBRERITHRAMAMTEL S
Zﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzg%ﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬁ%ﬁ?%@
FEI{E: RZZF—ZFF 3] AOHSAS 18001
E&%ﬁ;}i&ﬁi\%ﬁmﬁ LA ST K i
THRERRZ2EEER T2#HE &
I EBIIRENRE TIE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 F #

47



48

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
AHERREE

(I1) STAFF CARING

Respect for staff and providing equal
opportunities

Adhering to the principle of being people-oriented
and respecting staff's interests, the Group does
not impose any discrimination, involuntary labor,
physical punishment and improper treatment
towards its staff. The Group respects the freedom
of the formation of legal unions allowed under
laws, and does not employ any child labor, while
the employees’ working hours as well as wages and
benefits are complied with the requirements under
the regulation. With well-established policies, the
Group prohibits the occurrence of aforesaid issues
which breach labor and human rights, and also has
management procedures in place to implement
supervision. Meanwhile, promotion is made to
the staff to allow them to get acknowledged
of their rights, while training is provided to the
management, so that respect on human rights and
the practical knowledge of equal opportunities are
applied in the working environment. All staff has
comprehensively received trainings on policies and
procedures of human rights.

The Group has stated in recruitment advertisements
that we are an equal opportunities employer
and welcome the application from any qualified
candidates, and strive to only count on talent in
employment. With the fundamental principles of
“employment is based on talents”, recruitment,
remuneration, training opportunities, promotion,
dismissal or retirement would not be affected by
race, social status, nationality, religion, disabilities,
gender, sexual orientation, membership in labor
union, political belongings or age.
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The Group adopted the board diversity policy, which
sets out the objectives and principles regarding
board diversity for the purpose of achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives of balanced diversity
at the Board composition as far as practicable.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity criteria, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity,
as well as educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will nevertheless be based
on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates may bring to the Board.

Occupational safety and health

Health and safety focuses on areas such as
occupational safety, responses to emergencies,
occupational injuries and diseases, industrial
hygiene, work with high physical requirements,
machinery protection, public hygiene, restaurants
and staff quarters. The above issues are all set
forth in the EICC manual with the requirements
on written standards, performance-based targets,
indicators and implementation plans, while the
industrial safety team is responsible for the specific
assessment on the performance. In addition, safety
personnel are appointed in every department to
carry out safety checks and various drills, such as
fire-fighting safety drills.

Significant achievements have been made in the
implementation of relevant measures. For instance,
the occurrence rate of work injury is kept at a
relatively low level over years.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
AHARRERE

AEBECDRMNTEESZTIERR B9
BMYBEZEEZ TN B RRRA AER
AEBEEZEXRBERAREDEZ TNE
BB 1R B ARPREDRE RIS T
EFE%E BRESRRNMER - Fik - Xt
BERLEKRERND - METEAHEESR X
KRR B B MR FHR - REAIR
EMRERBBENREAEREST RN
HEE R AF B B B E

BEZ2HEREE

BREELZE2ATEERBELE B2
B BEGTERARK ITEFE BHFTK
SEIIE HeRDE  ARELE EENE
e LMARE WHEHREICCFTFMA - &F
EERE -BEMER BEERERAED
HIE RERWARFE ATEXLEA
BE U RMERLLZE2E  WHETE
ERERZHRE PIMEHZE2RE -

HEEENATHEBRIRY WTHEE
BB A R A B R B R AR AR KR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 F #

49



50

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
AHARREE

Concertedly build the “Karrie” brand

On top of placing awareness on the physical
health of its staff, the Group also concerns about
their mental health, putting the objectives of
balancing work and daily life into practice. In
the opinion of the Group, besides working hard,
the living standard of its staff shall be raised, so
that positive sentiments and motivation could be
formed to strengthen their capability to handle
emotion problems. Various kinds of activities
are also organised to facilitate interaction and
communication among staff with the development
of different teams such as “Castfast Youth Caring
Team”, “Staff Care Committee” and “Voluntary
group for charitable work” to organise different
kinds of activities on a regular basis, through which,
staff are provided with opportunities to participate
in and establish team spirit.

The Group held a great variety of cultural events
and festival celebrations, including the “National
Day Evening Culture Party” and “Lantern Festival”,
allowing our staff to relax and reduce pressure in a
happy gathering. The Group hosts a “Karrie Cup”
and held various ball games and chess competitions
to enhance the physical fitness of our people and
encourage them to take part in different after-work
activities.

Adhering to our objective of enhancing the
health of our staff and extending the influence of
“Karrie Health Month”, we held the “Fruity Day”
in Hong Kong to advocate eating more fruits,
and we participated in the Mini Marathon held
by the community in the PRC. In addition, the
Group also participated in the project of transient
population family planning association of China
Family Planning Association, established Castfast
Family Planning Association, carried out a variety of
propaganda, education and advocating activities,
and provided various family planning services to
help members and their families that have family
planning. Meanwhile, the Group also held mental
and physical health knowledge lectures from time
to time, such as “four-self spirit (self-respect, self-
confidence, self-reliance and self-strengthening)”
and “social gender and choosing your spouse”.
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Castfast Family Planning Association was established for
developing various propagandas, education, advocating
activities and providing a variety of family planning services.
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Concertedly build
the “Karrie” brand =i o
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“Karrie Cup”, the basketball tournament is one
of the greatest annual events of the Company.
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Fullhouse World designed a chess game for families
and children of all ages, and holds competitions for
employees and their children to participate.
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(IV) TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

In respect of training and development, the
Group has adopted certain approaches known as
“optimizing professional performance, motivating
staff's potentials, revitalizing learning culture
and embracing corporate visions”. As a result,
our "training” is primarily aimed at increment of
knowledge, enhancement of skills and expertise
in management and specific positions, while
"development” is oriented towards the sustainable
development of the Company and its staff.

The training programs for the year generally
cover such fields as practical management, laws
and regulations, sales and marketing, customers
and catering services, supply chain management,
corporate social responsibility, ISO, human resources
management, finance and accounting, occupational
health and safety, environmental protection,
production automation, engineering techniques
and food safety. In order to secure its long-term
development targets, the Group has been offering
plenty of training opportunities for its management
and staff at various levels to enhance their
management skills and expertise.

The Group recognizes that a successful enterprise
has to keep its pace with the times and improve
its awareness on management. In view of this, it
sends management personnel from Hong Kong
and the PRC to participate in management training
programs covering various disciplines or hold those
internally. The purpose is to assimilate the latest
management model, and lead the team and the
Group to head up the ladder of success.

In order to upgrade the services of its computer
system, the Group has fully rolled out training
programmes on SAP and QAD modules to develop
the users’ knowledge and skills in the system.
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We were invited by the university students of Hang Seng
Management College for interviews regarding their research
study report, which studies the projects of sustainable
development, the development concept and opportunities
encountered by our Company before the Stock Exchange has
directed against the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of listed companies.
%Tﬁiﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%iﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁE’\Jﬁﬂ?fiﬁ%{’EEEFuﬁ CIRFTE
BRI AR (BRI & RERRE A
TE’\TT—*#EE,&%J:‘ZIEE REBERSZIEI RS-

.

“Product Training” enables
ur staff to have a further
understanding on various
household products and
premium goods so as to
improve the service quality
and standard.
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The Group, St. James’
Settlement and Ko
Lui Secondary School
jointly held the career
talk and the on-site visit
at Fullhouse Kitchen
restaurant.
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The Group provides different kinds of training programs for

employees in Hong Kong and China, continues to offer a learning

opportunity, and enables staff at different levels to keep up with

the paces in time on various aspects including management,

technology and professional knowledge and growing their values.
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High-level food safety has been the persistent
pursuit of the Group, for which it assigned
personnel to attend other safety management
activities in the food production and hospitality and
catering sectors, as well as lectures on strict control
of food safety. The Group also recommended its
staff to attend the Hygiene Supervisor and the
Hygiene Manager Training Courses offered by the
Food and Environmental Hygiene Department,
which enable them to master the control and
supervision regarding the methods on food hygiene
and safety, so as to enhance the skills of food
supervision.

To ensure food quality consistency, the Group
established a set of standard operating procedures
and prepared cooking videos for deepening the
understanding and unifying the standard of
every frontline staff in cooking steps and dish
preparation.

In addition, the Group regularly provides frontline
staff with trainings and evaluations covering various
areas for continuously improving service quality and
standard of restaurant and ensuring the smooth
operation of restaurant. The testing of staff’s
knowledge in different aspects through evaluations
is to enhance the performance in various areas.

On the other hand, the Group participated in
various visits and exploration activities organised
by the industry to understand the management
of different corporations in retailing, food and
beverages, food processing, food safety, supply
chain management and other aspects, so as to
observe and benchmark our own level. In addition,
we also sent staff to learn the new information
system and automatic technology to prepare for our
future development.
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With respect to laws and regulations, in order to
help our employees in China and Hong Kong to
better understand intellectual property rights, we
specially invited a senior intellectual property right
consultant to organise the “Intellectual Property
Training”. Furthermore, in order to address the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the
listed companies, the Group had taken active part
in and to understand the activities in relation to the
preparation of the reporting guide.

The Group has spared no effort to nurture
youngsters for joining the workplace. In 2015,
we jointly held the life planning seminar and visits
with St. James' Settlement and various secondary
schools. It was hoped to deepen students’ interest
and understanding of the retail and catering sectors
and thereby having a better preparation for their
career planning. We hope this will promote the life
planning education of secondary students and assist
every student to understand his own interest, ability
and knowledge in the workplace to better prepare
themselves for future career and different roles of
life.

In addition, the Group continued to sponsor
its summer internship programme for college
students and the children of its employees, so
that they could experience the joy and hardship
in work. In 2015, the Group was awarded the
“Partner Employer Award” by The Hong Kong
General Chamber of Small and Medium Business
for the four consecutive years in recognition of its
performance in trainee training.
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V)

The Group was also eager to promote the
cooperation between the commercial entities and
educational institutions. In December 2015, it
was being invited for interview by the students of
Hang Seng Management College for their study
report; which studied the projects of sustainable
development, the development concept and
opportunities encountered by our Company before
the Stock Exchange has directed against the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of
listed companies.

In 2016, the Group was being invited by “World
Wide Fund For Nature” at the seminar of “How
to prepare the first Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”. We shared the structure and
the resources required by the Company regarding
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
The participants extended their warm response for
the contents we shared with deep impression.

CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group has realized the importance of good
utilization of resources long time ago and not to
exploit the rights of using resources for the next
generation. The Group adheres to the concept
of Dr. Ho Cheuk Fai, the Chairman of the Group,
with heartfelt dedication in all details, and saves
resources for the next generation. As such, the
Group's production adheres to the concept of
reducing energy or material consumption from the
sources with the adoption of various environmental
friendly measures and addition of energy-saving
equipment. With the concept of green and cleaner
production implemented in practice, the Group
continues to formulate policies for green production
and energy-saving policies, while introducing
different kinds of environmental friendly equipment
to attain the objectives of cleaner production
and environmental protection. The Group further
complies with various international regulations and
requirements, inter alias, energy audit, environment
permit and report, pollution prevention and
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resources saving, treatment of hazardous materials,
treatment of sewage and solid wastes, control on
air emission and control on content of products.
Meanwhile, as the Group is an OEM and ODM
manufacturer in respect of industrial production,
all the standards related to the quality and
environmental protection are subject to the strict
requirements of the customers, whilst the quality
and environmental protection will be inspected
by the customers on an on-site basis from time to
time. The Group actively participates in external
cleaner production and environmental protection
campaigns, while internally strengthens its staff's
awareness on the environment via training as well
as green and ecological activities. In addition, green
design approaches are thoroughly implemented, so
that the products would not pose any damages to
the environment.

In order to help the local government meet the
energy-saving and emission reducing indicators
for the “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan” period,
assume corporate social responsibility, fulfill
our duty toward the environment, and also to
comprehensively understand the standard of energy
management and status of power consumption
within the plant, examinations are conducted on
problems and insufficiencies in respect of energy
usage to identify the potential and the approaches
for energy saving, thereby reducing the amount of
energy consumption and production costs as well
as raising the economic efficiency for the company.
An energy-saving planning report for the “Twelfth
Five-Year Plan” was prepared in 2011. The Group
has formulated a series of energy management
systems, which standardise the practice of energy
management to raise the efficiency of energy usage
and effectively finalise and safeguard energy-saving
plans. On the other hand, the cleaner production
and energy-saving committee has already been
established since 2005, which unifies the energy
management of the Group, and applies energy
saving objectives into all workshops via adopting
new technology.
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Since 2001, the Group has already obtained
ISO14001 environment management system
certificate. Its headquarter in Hong Kong was
awarded with the “Low-carbon Office Operation
Programme (LOOP)” — “Silver Label” for the year
2012-2013 by World Wide Fund For Nature Hong
Kong. It was awarded “Hong Kong-Guangdong
Cleaner Production Partner (Manufacturing)” since
2009, awarded the “Cleaner Production Enterprise
in Dongguan City” in 2013; awarded the “2015
BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership
Awards Programme by Federation of Hong Kong
Industries: 5 Years+ EcoPioneer and EcoPartner”;
and was awarded the “2012 Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence — Bronze Medal in
Manufacturing” and the “2014 Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence — Certificate of Merit
in Restaurants Sector” by Environmental Campaign
Committee for the recognition of its remarkable
performance in energy-saving. At the same time,
the Group also makes arrangement to comply with
relevant international environmental regulations,
such as RoHS, REACH, WEEE, JCPSSI, Montreal
Protocol and QC 080000, so that the whole process
including design, procurement and production
can meet the requirements for environmental
protection.

Since 2010, the Group has joined the global
event of “Earth Hour” Lights Off Event initiated
by World Wide Fund and all staff respond to this
event. The Group celebrated its 35th anniversary in
2015, the management together with senior staff
participated in the tree planting activity “Fate with
Karrie”, and participated the external tree planting
activities in the PRC, with a wish to keep alive the
spirit of Karrie's endless endeavour. Meanwhile, in
response to the call of the “Energy Saving Charter”
and The “Let’s Save 10L Water” Campaigns
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sponsored by the Hong Kong Government, the
Group has promised to maintain an average indoor
temperature in the office of 24-26°C, switch off
electrical appliances that are not in use, procure
energy efficiency appliances and promote rational
use of water resources. With respect to restaurants
sector, it supports the “Cherish Food Reward”
activity organised by Friends of the Earth, and
encourage the customers finish up all the food they
ordered by giving cash coupon.

With respect to our plants in the PRC, in order to
fully implement emission reduction and energy
saving, the energy management system has been
introduced in Yuquan Plant to analyse energy,
enable to have better control on the use of energy.
In addition, the plastic plant bought over 10 fully
automatic plastic injection molding machines in
2015 to replace the servo mixed energy plastic
injection molding machines. Apart from improving
its precision, approximately 10% of energy
consumption was saved.

Looking forward to the coming year, the Group
will still strive to implement energy-saving and
green production while putting EICC environmental
protection policies into practice. In response to
the “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan” energy-saving
plan, the Group will reduce emission, better utilize
resources and carry out clean production, thereby
further lowering the indicator for the production
value to energy consumption ratio. The Group
has formulated an energy-saving plan, and it is
hoped that the amount of comprehensive energy
consumption in 2020 would decrease by 100
tonnes of standard coal per annum. By setting
the objectives, it could save energy and reduce
consumption, lower production costs and raise
market competitiveness. As a result, invaluable
resources could be retained and the environment
could be kept in good condition.
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Fenggang Yuquan Plant was awarded the “2015 BOCHK Corporate
Environmental Leadership Awards” by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries”: 5 Years+ EcoPioneer and EcoPartner.

BT RBEES T EESER 2015FREBLERRALANE]
5F +IR (R 5T BR RORRGE LKL 82

The Group celebrated its 35th anniversary last year,
Dr. Ho Cheuk Fai, our Chairman, together with his
wife, Ms. Ho Po Chu, participated in the “Fate with
Karrie” tree planting activity with senior staff.
EFFESERBFAHE FRMAEBELTRRE
AABRLTHE-F[EET2HE [EH&] EEE
& o

Fenggang Yuquan Plant was awarded the “2015 Hong Kong-
Guangdong Cleaner Production Excellent Partner (Manufacturing)"
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(V) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to the highest standards
of corporate governance, and will act accordingly
to make sure it complies with the Corporate
Governance Code and reviews and improves our
corporate governance practices from time to time,
so as to maintain good corporate governance. The
Group has well-established corporate governance
structure to enhance the accountability to
shareholders and other stakeholders.

In addition, the Group is well aware of the
importance of honesty, integrity and fairness, and
in preventing fraudulent, corruption and bribery
activities by staff, it has issued “Ethical Disciplinary
Requirements” to its staff, requesting them to
observe the policies relating to taking interests
and declaring interest conflicts. The Group has
dedicated personnel to take care of and follow
up such declaration and approval, complaints and
enquiries, and also has ethical training for new
recruits. We also have a set of Social Entertainment
Regulations in place so that the staff involved may
get to know and abide by the standards of treating
guests and maintain clear consumption records and
follow correct reimbursement procedures.

Maintaining integrity and professionalism and
strengthening internal audit so as to prevent
corruption is an important cornerstone of
a business enterprise. In order to maintain
sustainable and healthy development, in addition
to continuously improving product and service
quality, it is also an essential task to build an
integrity brand. The Group invited the Hong Kong
Independent Commission Against Corruption to
design thematic workshops on industry-specific
basis for integrity management and corruption
prevention to all staff of the Group. On the other
hand, lectures on integrity management and
corruption prevention will also be given to our
colleagues in Hong Kong and the PRC by means
of instant messaging video conference, providing
them with information on the latest corruption
prevention movements.
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In respect of suppliers and processors, the Group
has issued a letter named “Peers’ Belief” so as to
urge them not to provide any benefits to employees
during normal course of business. All of our staff is
prohibited from taking advantages of their powers
and authorities for personal interests and incurring
unfair business transactions. All employees must
maintain the highest level of honesty, and are
prohibited from obtaining any benefits with their
powers and authorities.

(For further information, please refer to the heading
of "Corporate Governance Report” in this annual
report)

CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group
clearly understands the needs to blend in with
the community, create harmony and make full
commitments to social services. Back in 2005, the
Group established in its Headquarter a “volunteer
group for charitable works”. While in the PRC,
different internal organisations including staff
association and the party branch also organise
various kinds of charitable activities.

The Group has sponsored “Nothing is impossible”
Adventure Education Program and different
activities organised by Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui
St. Christopher’s Home since 2005, which aimed at
facilitating the all-around development of children.
Through various activities like war game training,
adventureship, and adventure-based training
children are cultivated with spirit of “Nothing
is impossible” to strengthen their endurance.
Meanwhile, a Vote for Father e Mother was
added this year to acknowledge and compliment
the parents who have displayed the “Nothing is
impossible” spirit, so as to promote this spirit.
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Besides, the Group sponsored the clothing and
registration fees for students with slight mental
retardation and teachers of HHCKLA Buddhist Po
Kwong School for their participation in the 10km
or Half Marathon race in the Standard Chartered
Hong Kong Marathon for the ninth consecutive
year so as to train students’ willpower and
persistence. The Group's volunteer teams from the
PRC and Hong Kong also pay visits to Hong Kong
Sheng Kung Hui Tai Wo Neighbourhood Elderly
Centre and Fenggang Nursing Home in the PRC
during Mid-Autumn Festival and Tuen Ng Festival
annually, celebrating the festivals with elderly
and giving them gifts. Meanwhile, the Group
sponsored the World Refugee Day of “United
Nations High Commissioner for Refugees” and
the ninth charitable Refugee Film Festival for the
fourth consecutive year, and specially arranged
a refugee film sharing this year to share with
prominent guests and partners, and also to let more
friends to know the works of United Nations High
Commissioner for Refugees and the experiences of
refugees around the world.

We have set up volunteer leave since 2008, so as
to encourage our people to take an active part
in voluntary services. The Group also took part in
various social charitable activities in Hong Kong
Headquarter during the year, such as ORBIS World
Sight Day, Greeners Action’s “Red Pockets Recycling
Campaign” (Internal propaganda), the “Lunar New
Year Gift Transfer Program” by People’s Food Bank
under St. James’ Settlement, and the Community

Chest Walk for Millions.

Fullhouse World donated Fullhouse World products
to HHCKLA Buddhist Po Kwong School for it to put
on the charity sale.

During the year, the Group made charitable and
other donations amounted to HK$553,000, while
it was HK$239,000 in the last year, the volunteer
service hours in China and Hong Kong is over 372
hours.
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Vote for Father ® Mother is a new program for
Karrie's “Nothing is impossible” Program this year,
and was invited for interview by a broadcasting
station. The top ten candidates selected will
continue to pass on the Karrie spirit of “Nothing is
impossible” across the community.
REE[BNLELATRE] AHEEREE o 15158
BoUEESABFESIR BERREL+® &
BIEMAEE AR BHEETELERNER-.

For “Karrie's Night ® Refugee Film Sharing” activity, apart from the prestigious partners in different sectors, the Group also
invited distinguished guests including Ms. Bianca Lam, Associate Private Sector Fundraising Officer of United Nations High
Commissioner For Refugees, Ms. Lilian Lui, the principal of Yuen Kong Kindergarten and the celebrity, Mr. Tony Hung.

(AR HREXSZ|ED BTEANEZSFEUINI SERFTHARRREEEMAEMER A T

MpHEERRABAREK FRAZMKRELES

+ It is the 11th year that the Company
is supporting the Community
Chest Walk for Millions activity. All
participants took pictures with the
chairman and co-chairmen of New
Territories Walk for Millions after
completing the walk.
REEEBENFIHEBLRCES
1A TXLIT KR EFTRE
BETHEERBEEREGRBES -
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MISSIONS UNDERTAKINGS

The Group believes that

Development”

cannot be operated solely by
itself, while through various occasions of sharing
of experience and plant visits, more and more

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
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“Sustainable

organisations could join hand in hand the sharing
and communication and promote the sustainability

work together.

For the Year 2015-2016
2015-2016 5 &

2015/7/31

St. James’ Settlement together with
the teachers and students from
Lingnan Secondary School visited
our shops for attending the career
planning activity, instructed the
table etiquette and demonstrated
the service process.
ERREHEMAEETEMELD
ERHEFEREREEY HRERS
BRRERERE-

2015/12/29

Five teachers and students from
Hang Seng Management College
visited the company headquarter
in Hong Kong for their graduation
thesis with its title being corporate
social responsibility.

BEERSRAUMENGHEEL

2015/11/21

St. James' Settlement together
with the teachers and students
from Tang Shiu Kin Victoria
Government Secondary School
visited our shops for attending
the career planning activity.
ERXEHEHANERE LT
TEYPEMARGESLER
EREEH -

2015/12/30

St. James' Settlement together
with the teachers and students
from Catholic Ming Yuen
Secondary School visited our
shops for attending the career
planning activity.

EREEHEBRRARAIAKESD
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2016/3/22 2016/4/21

Invited by the World Wide
Fund to share at the seminar
regarding How to Prepare
the First Environmental,
Social and Governance
Report.
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The teachers and students from Shun
Tak Fraternal Association Leung Kau
Kui College visited the company
headquarter in Hong Kong, central
kitchen, My Affection and share the
work experience.
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2015/11/27

St. James' Settlement together with
the teachers and students from Ko
Lui Secondary School visited our
shops for attending and sharing the
career planning activity.
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The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and to enhance
corporate value and accountability.

For the years ended 31 March 2016 (the “Year”)
the Group has applied the principles of the recently
promulgated Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and complied with the
code provision (the “Code Provisions”) of the CG Code;
save for the deviation from Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1,
A.4.2 and A.5 of the CG Code. This report describes our
Group’s corporate governance practices and explains the
said deviations from the CG Code.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
Company does not segregate the roles of its Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr. Ho")
currently holds both positions.

Being the founder of the Group, Mr. Ho has substantial
experience in the manufacturing industry, as well as in real
estate and culture related industries. At the same time, Mr.
Ho has the appropriate management skills and business
acumen that are necessary and are the pre-requisites for
assuming the role of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer in the same person would
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allow the Group to be more effective and efficient in
developing long-term business strategies and executing
business plans. Hence, the Board considers that there is no
need to segregate the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer and both roles should continue to be
performed by Mr. Ho.
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According to Code Provision A.4.1 of CG Code, non-
executive director should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming was re-
designated as Non-executive Director on 1 June 2007 and
he was appointed as Deputy Chairman on 1 May 2011
without a specific term. Mr. Ho Kai Man was re-designated
as the Non-executive Director on 1 November 2012
without a specific term. Although Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and
Mr. Ho Kai Man are not appointed for a specific term, they
are subject to retirement by rotation according to the Bye-
laws of the Company.

Moreover, Code Provision A.4.2 of CG Code stipulates
that every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

According to the Company’'s Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, the
number nearest to one-third but not greater than one-
third shall retire from office provided that notwithstanding
anything in the Company's Bye-laws, the Chairman
of the Directors and/or the Managing Director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject
to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in
determining the number of Directors to retire in each
year. Furthermore, any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board should hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and
would then be eligible for re-election. The Chairman and/
or the Managing Director of the Group will consider to
voluntarily retire at the annual general meeting at least
once every three years in line with Code Provision A.4.2
of the CG Code. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure good
corporate governance of the Company.

ERELHESE

BREXERTZTAMEXAL  FFRTE
ENZEERBECEN TERIEMES -
ERARER_ZTELFRNA—BHEBZEARE
MITEERER_ZE——FHA—BEEZEAR
FHTESHREETE RBEEEMER AL
AR+ A HAER/RFANTES
Rt TE AR o 8 A ) 2 AR ST A MRS SR AR
RERBHEEAH EBENARBERALAR ZARNE
BEER-

CEEATAZTAKERXAAEESRES
(BERAETAHZES ) BEELB=FHER

F—Re

REARRZHAR EARRE-ERRBFX
L =N ZERELZES (HHEAK
WIk=—sh=2 B8 AKEOBAEZR=Z02—
ZEER)RRERE HARFAEEEIRERS
FEFREEIARERERERTIEETE
BERIEFAFRBRAEEARN I EME
HERMEZIZEFTIREFTENIEZKE
ERERE TERRBFAER/IL  BERKKAE
BET AT AKREERRIEFRLER
ELE=FEEERERT EMNTELEXEAT
Al zFAIMEXA4.2 - A ARRRBD K
RHER NERARRRTFEEER-

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 F #

67



68

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHRES

According to Code Provision A.5 of the CG Code, the
Company should establish a nomination committee, which
is chaired by the chairman of the Board or an independent
non-executive Director and comprises a majority of the
independent non-executive Directors. The Company
has not established a nomination committee due to the
fact that the function of the nomination committee was
delegated to the Board, which is responsible for reviewing
its own structure, size and composition in accordance
with the board diversity policy adopted by the Company
(the “Policy”) annually; considering the re-appointment
of Directors; evaluating the Policy as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. The
Board has taken sufficient measures to avoid the conflict
of interests in carrying out such functions. For instance,
the relevant Director would abstain from voting for any
resolution relating to his or her own re-appointment. As
such, the Board is of the view that the members of the
Board possess the necessary experience and knowledge to
discharge the functions of a nomination committee. The
Board shall review the composition and operation of the
Board from time to time and shall consider establishing a
nomination committee if such need arises.

The Company will continue to review its practices from

time to time to achieve high standard of corporate
governance.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &

RIEEERERT U ZTAMEXAS  NRAFEX
VHARAEIRXBILIFATEETRIF 2R
HEEE HEAHNOKE EHBUFRNITES
MK RRRIEARBEKRIIRBEEZEE - HESE
FRiTiR B R B @ Biae  HEBE AR ARS
MEFEXBZITICBRR ([BR]) BEESFR
NEFENRE ABKANK TESRESFERME
HEHMEREFE AFFEBUFATESTNEL
H-EESCRNENERERITRIER &
R EER- PN - AREERBEBLEM 1
REFZRZF HERERR WL EFER
REFENEERABRMANBRETREZ
EemBR EFe TRENESFSNHEKINE
E - YEEERBARR KIURRLZES-

RAARBEBTKRNERH UNEERKFZ
N A A
PEER-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. The Board of Directors

1.1

1.2

As at 31 March 2016, the Board consisted
of eight Directors, comprising Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer),
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia and Mr. Zhao
Kai as executive Directors; Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming as a non-executive Director and
Deputy Chairman; Mr. Ho Kai Man as a non-
executive Director and Mr. So Wai Chun, Mr.
Fong Hoi Shing and Mr. Yam Chung Shing
as the independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has the collective responsibility for
the leadership and promotion of the success
of the Group’s business by directing and
supervising the Group's affairs. An additional
one executive director, Mr. Chan Raymond,
was appointed on 1 June 2016.

The Board is committed to the Group’s
objectives of enhancing the Shareholders’
value and provision of superior products and
services. The Board is collectively responsible
for formulating the overall objective and
strategy of the Group; monitors and
evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the standard
of corporate governance of the Group. It
also makes decisions on matters such as
approving the annual results, interim and
quarterly results, connected transactions,
appointment and re-appointment of
Directors, declaring dividends and adopting
accounting policies. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing business strategies and
management of the daily operations of the
Group's businesses to the management.

1.2
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1.3 The Board conducts regular scheduled 13 EFgBFRTEHER IRNE
meetings on a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc NEERBRASNEE-
meetings are convened when circumstances
require.
The Board had met seven times for the Year EFEENAFEAERITLRE
and considered, reviewed and approved the mWEER - BHLAESEER
Group's annual results for the year ended 31 E_E-—AF=-A=1+—HBZ2F
March 2015, interim results of the Group for EENRPHEE-
the Year.
The attendance records of Board meetings NTEREAFEESTEERALIREX
and general meetings held during the Year 2 H)H E AL
are set out below:
Attendance of individual Directors at rEEESERRRASSRMEHE
Board meetings and general meetings ENHER

during the Year

No. of board No. of general

meetings meetings
attended/held attended/held
EEg BRRXE
HERE, HERE
CE YN BREXE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai fa] 2 3% % A& 717 1/2
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia BR 44 ok /N 4B 717 2/2
Mr. Zhao Kai Sl A& 717 1/2
Mr. Lee Shu Kif B ok A 717 2/2
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fa] £ B 5E 4 717 2/2
Mr. Ho Kai Man A =X X kA& 717 2/2
Independent BUIFPITEE
Non-executive Directors
Mr. So Wai Chun REE LS 717 2/2
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing 77 & 717 2/2
Mr. Yam Chung Shing® FEBEES 3/3 0/0
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond* PR 3m AR S A * 4/4 1/2
# resigned on 1 March 2016 # RZZE—R"FE=-RA—HEE
resigned on 1 November 2015 * R-ZE—RF+—A—HEfMT
e was appointed on 1 November 2015 e RZE—RF+—A—HEZME
A list of Directors and their role and function EEXERAEACRBBTENAR
was posted on the websites of the Company N A R B AT P A U o

and the Stock Exchange.
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1.4 To maximize the effectiveness of the Board
and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the
Board has established an audit committee
and a remuneration committee. Detailed
descriptions of each of these committees
are set out below. All of these committees
adopt, as far as practicable, the principles,
procedures and arrangements of the
Board in relation to the scheduling and
proceeding of meetings, notice of meetings
and inclusion of agenda items, records and
availability of minutes.

The Board has devised its specific written terms
of reference setting out its duties, responsibilities,
powers and functions which include the following:

o developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations
to the Board;

o reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

o taking responsibility for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the prevailing
accounting standards and laws, approving
the financial statements and appointing and
liaising with the Group’s external auditors;

ERELHES

14 RRESEFEAEALTBESS
REBEBZ2EREHER EF®
ERIBEZZBEERFTHEES -
TXHIZTZEGZHFARA &
EZEEeREBATEARMNES
cEHRETERREARLEHET
TR -gFBEMRHAREERE
REREHERCHEFZRA 2
FF R %2 B e

EXEgtIEER EEMBREE  HIB
HoBAE EARBE EPEEATS
15 :

. HE R@a AR RO EREARR
RER AREEFSRHER:

. BEMEREERSREEEMNE
IR FEERER:

. BERBRITHGAERERR
R BEER T2 FHmE -
HEEA SR A M R B AN & B SN A%
SEm K EEARFFR S
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reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report in its Annual Report;

liaising with all regulatory authorities and
organisations on all matters relating to the
Group, and monitoring changes in their
policies relating to and affecting the Group;
and

ensuring accountability towards and
sufficient communication with the Group’s
shareholders.

2. Board Composition

2.1

As at 31 March 2016, the Board comprises
eight Directors: three executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-executive Director,
is the younger brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Ho Kai Man, a non-executive director, is
the nephew of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and the son of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a non-
executive director and deputy chairman of
the Company. Another executive Director,
namely Mr. Chan Raymond, was appointed
on 1 June 2016.
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2.2 The attributes, skills and expertise among the
existing Directors are considered appropriate
so as to effectively lead, supervise and
manage the Group, taking into account the
scope and nature of the operations. The
Directors have a mix of core competencies
in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, production
and quality control techniques, supply
chain management, industry knowledge
and marketing strategies. Details of the
experience and qualifications of Directors
and Senior Management are set out in
the section headed “Senior Management
Profile” in this Annual Report.

Board Diversity

Pursuant to Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code,
the Company has adopted a board diversity policy,
which sets out the purpose and principles regarding
board diversity for the purpose of achieving the
Company'’s strategic objectives of balanced diversity
at the Board as for as practicable. Directors’
appointment will be based on merit and candidates
will be considered against measurable objectives,
taking into account the Company's business and
development.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity criteria, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in
addition to educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board.

ERELHESE

22 BAKEZEGHBREEMS -
REEEMABZHE RELE
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During the Year, the Board reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board and was of
the opinion that the Board is well balanced and
diversified, and with the appropriate structure, size
and necessary skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives required for the business of
the Group. The Board also reviewed and evaluated
the board diversity policy.

4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

4.1 At each annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM"), one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office
by rotation. The Directors, since his last
election or appointment who has been the
longest in office shall retire and be eligible
for re-election at the AGM. Pursuant to the
bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman
and/or the Managing Director of the Group
shall not, when holding such office, be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken
into account in determining the number of
Directors to retire in each year. To comply
with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
of the Group will voluntarily retire at the
AGM at least once every three years.

42 As at 31 March 2016, non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and
Mr. Ho Kai Man) including the independent
non-executive Directors are appointed for a
fixed term not exceeding three years and all
non-executive Directors are subject to the
requirements of retirement by rotation and
re-election by Shareholders at the AGM in
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.
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4.3 The names and biographical details of the
Directors who will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set
out in the circular to Shareholders to assist
Shareholders in making an informed decision
on their elections.

4.4  Since the whole Board participates in the
appointment of new Directors, the Company
does not establish a nomination committee.
In evaluating whether an appointee is
suitable to act as a Director, the Board
will consider the experience and skills of
the appointee; as well as personal ethics,
integrity and the willingness to commit
time in the affairs of the Group. Where the
appointee is appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the Board will also
consider his/her independence. During
the Year, the Board had also reviewed and
made recommendations in respect of the re-
appointments of retiring Directors, which
were approved by the Shareholders at the
last AGM.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance
coverage on directors and officers’ liabilities arising
from the group’s business. The Company reviews
the extent of insurance coverage on an annual
basis.

Directors’ Continuous Professional
Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given
an induction. As part of the ongoing process
of directors’ training, the Company Secretary
continuously updates all directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements. All Directors are
encouraged to attend external forum or training
courses on relevant topics which may count
towards continuous professional development
training.

ERELHES
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BRI A - DA 135 B 18 55 0 2R R B 4 L A

R -

44 HRHEFZZEIESHAEFETEE
RE2H MARFALEKILIEA
ZEg AN E2REEERSD
BAELEARBEER EFg9
EZREZER EREEFEART R
HE - ANEBRENLREEES
BeRE -E-REFRZE/R
BAMBUNNTEER EFQF
GEREBUIM REAFERNES
SN EERRBEASEBEN
ZERETEFFHE LIEH A RE

-
EENEERE

ARAEREFTRITRABRREITASHE
EBmel R EEBEEERR  ARQF
eEFRIRRARE ZEHE-

EECHEEXERRE

BRNEESHELHEN EREESR
FEEIz 80 RRNE R E
EFEMAMLMRAIREMEREER
ELRTNEREN -EZC0RHE2RES
HEINRE N A RE 2 ER G HITIIR
B ERBEEXEREI -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 F #

75



76

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELHESE

During the year, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development
activities either by attending training courses,
seminars, conferences and forums or by reading
materials relevant to the Group's business and
to Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Each
of them has provided a record of training they
received during the year to the Company. A
directors’ training course was held on 24 March
2016 concerning the Directors’ Duties, Connected
Transaction, Insider Dealing and New Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). The training each Director
received during the year is summarized as below:

AEE 2REFHEBHFEFIRE
Mg eRkwEAHEAREREX
EEBEMBEEEERZIAZ2EEE
CEXERBIAD AFE B8—UE
SRETARAMEI ZBICER -F
—REFEZAZTHARETT —EESHE
w2 ATERESZRT BEXS-
ANBRX 5 S (RRED) (F622F) °
AEEREERZBIZHBENT

Attending
training
courses,

seminars,
Reading conferences
materials and forums
HEZINZR -
weE -
HEEBEER R KkWmiE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai ] e J& 5 A= v/ v
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia PR 2 ok /)N 18 v/ /
Mr. Zhao Kai Sl & v v
Mr. Lee Shu Ki* G I S A v v
Non-executive Directors FHiITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming A2 AH %A v v
Mr. Ho Kai Man A =X X %k A& v v
Independent BUIHHITEE
Non-executive Directors
Mr. So Wai Chun BREG LA v/ v
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing Vb2 Sk v v
Mr. Yam Chung Shing® FEH LA v/ v
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond* PR B o o A v/ v/
# resigned on 1 March 2016 # R-ZZE—RF=HA—BHEIT
* resigned on 1 November 2015 * RZZE—RE+—A—H&E
e was appointed on 1 November 2015 e RZZE—hFE+—A—HAEZHE
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Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive

The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring
that directors receive adequate, clear, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner.

The chairman should:

o ensure that the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in
a timely manner;

o ensure that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established in
the Company;

o encourage directors with different views to
voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for
discussion of issues and ensure that board
decisions fairly reflect board consensus;

o ensure that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the board as a whole; and

o promote a culture of openness and debate
by facilitating the effective contribution
of directors (non-executive directors in
particular) and ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-
executive directors.

EREIREE
CETARIERTRAR

TFERAERRETRHERIZTINE
o mABEMIT G AEEESW NTHEA

E ©
TREE:
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RERRF
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EEEES
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors and one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the number of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company represents no less than
one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive
director who has served the board for more than
nine years, his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders.

BOARD COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee (“RC")

1.1 The Board has established the RC in June
2005 with terms of reference, comprising
a majority of independent non-executive
Directors, which meets at least once a
year. It is chaired by Mr. So Wai Chun and
comprises two other members, namely Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming and Mr. Yam Chung Shing.
All RC members, with the exception of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
are independent non-executive Directors.
The quorum necessary for the transaction
of business by the RC is two. The terms of
reference of RC have been updated in March
2012 to comply with the new requirements
set out in the CG Code and were posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The principal responsibilities of RC are 1.2

o to formulate remuneration policy
of the Group, review and make
recommendations to the Board in
respect of the remuneration policy;

o to consider salaries paid by
comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group;

o to conform to any requirement,
direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed
by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or
imposed by the Listing Rules or any
applicable law; and

° to determine the remuneration of the
executive Directors and the senior
management.
The RC met once during the year and 1.3

reviewed its terms of reference, the
remuneration policy of the Group and the
remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management staff. It also assessed the
performance of the Directors and evaluated
the remuneration policy. The attendance
record of the meeting of RC during the Year
is set out below:

ERELHESE
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No. of

attended/held

HERE,

= PN

Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman) BREBRLEE (FE) 171

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming Al 2 BR S A& 1/
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHEE

(was appointed on 1 November 2015) (R-Z—HF+—A—HEZT) 0/0
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond BRImAR T A

(resigned on 1 November 2015) (R=ZE—RF+—A—H#T) 11
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

EEREREEAEHMH

RELTRAMBICATRERHRESTNHE &
TEBEeFMEE ZE - PHBENAFHRM
H 2R E M WRMEE29 -

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the BECEERTA JZ#E‘J EXB1.5 EHE-
remuneration of the members of the senior management —RNFE=ZRA=1+— CREMAERE D 2 & ,‘ﬁ&
by band for the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out EIEANBFHET ZZDT
below:

Number of
Remuneration bands (HK$) persons
AR Bl () A
1 to 1,000,000 121,000,000 5
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,00122,000,000 2

2. Audit Committee (“AC")

2.1 The AC's membership, with the exception of
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director),
comprised the independent non-executive
Directors as at 31 March 2016:

Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming; and
Mr. Yam Chung Shing

The Board is of the opinion that members
of the AC have sufficient accounting
and financial management expertise or
experience to discharge their duties.
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The operations of the AC are regulated
by its terms of reference. The terms of
reference have been updated in April 2016
to comply with the new requirements set
out in the Revised Code. The updated terms
of reference of the Audit Committee were
posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The main duties of the
AC include:

o to review and supervise the Group's
financial reporting process including
the review of quarterly, interim and
annual results of the Group;

o to review the external auditors’
appointment, remuneration and any
matters relating to resignation or
termination;

o to examine the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control which
involves regular review in various
corporate structures and business
process;

o to realize corporate objective and
strategy by taking into account
the potential risk and the nature
of its urgency in order to ensure
the effectiveness of the Group's
business operations. The scope
of such reviews includes finance,
operations, regulatory compliance,
internal control systems and risk
management; and

o to discuss the risk management
and internal control systems
with management to ensure that
management has performed its duties
to have effective systems.

2.2
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C.

2.3 The AC met two times during the year and 23 BERZZESRAFERITIMAE
reviewed the interim results of the Group FUYEMTSEESEEZE_Z—1F
for the six months ended 30 September NA=THHEBEEHEE-_T—AF
2015 and the annual results of the Group —A=t—RLEFENEFEE-
for the year ended 31 March 2015. The ERZBEeNENTAEENMK
AC had also reviewed the Group's financial WEHE RNAEEZERF ARE
reporting system, internal control system, BRGMEENER  UBRER
risk management system and associated SUNBERE - BEREEGIFE
procedures to ensure their adequacy and RLBBAARNARMERFE -
effectiveness. The Company Secretary of the ERZEERAFEERLE L
Company keeps all minutes of the AC. The LU
attendance record of the meeting of AC
during the year is set out below:

No. of

attended/held

HERE

BERE

Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman) BREELEE (F/F) 2/2

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing pahisyi e 2/2

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming Al £ RS A& 2/2
Mr. Yam Chung Shing FEHEE

(was appointed on 1 November 2015) (RZ=ZZT—HAF+— A —HEZT) 1”1
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond PR B o S A

(resigned on 1 November 2015) (RZZE—RF+—A—H&F) 1”1

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY C EFETEFXS

DIRECTORS

1.1 The Company has adopted a Code for 1.1 ARAAEHEMAEEEEFHTE
Securities Transactions by Directors of the HRPWFESA ([RRFESE
Group (the “Company's Model Code”) on B - EARERE 8 AR BB 8%
terms no less exacting than the required 10 LM ARIESFETERRS
standard set out in Model Code for WIRESF Al ([RESFRI]) 2 B3
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Biko
Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

1.2 Having made specific enquiries to all 1.2 RKRA2RBEFESFLHARBERE K

Directors, they have confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out
in both the Company’s Model Code and the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2016.
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D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

1. Financial Reporting

1.1

The Board acknowledges its responsibility
for preparing the Group’s accounts which
gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group
on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumption or qualification as necessary.
In preparing the accounts for the year, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable.

The management provides explanation and
information to the Board as to enable the
Board to make informed assessments of the
financial and other information put before
the Board for approval.

The Board endeavours to ensure the making
of balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s position and
prospects and extending the coverage
of such information to include annual,
interim and quarterly reports, price-sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures
as required under the Listing Rules, reports
to regulators as well as any information
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

ERELHESE
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of
internal controls and is committed to managing
business risks and maintaining sound and
effective internal control systems to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

During the year, the Internal Audit Department
under the supervision of the Board and the
Audit Committee, has reviewed and reported
on the adequacy of effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group, covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management
control functions annually.

The Board adopted the risk management policy
including structure and system of risk management
of the Group in April 2016 with effect from
the financial year of 2016/2017. Internal Audit
Department together with the Audit Committee
will review the adequacy of the effectiveness of the
risk management at least once a year.

The Board’s annual review had considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no
material mis-statement or loss and to manage
instead of eliminating risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Internal Audit Department performs regular
audit reviews and report of the risk and key
controls of the Group to the Board and the Audit
Committee. The responsible Department Heads will
be notified of the control deficiencies noted for
rectification.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the year, the fees paid to KPMG, the
Group's external auditor HK$2,600,000 for audit
services of the Group and for non-audit related
services approximately HK$967,000, representing
mainly taxation services and other non-audit service
fees.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company strives to convey to
Shareholders pertinent information in a
clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis and to take into consideration
their views and inputs, and to address
the Shareholders’ concerned. Their
views are communicated to the Board
comprehensively.

The Company adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy and will review it on
a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
The purpose of this policy is to ensure the
Shareholders are provided with prompt
and equal access to information about
the Company (including but not limited to
its financial performance, corporate goals
and strategies, significant developments,
corporate governance and risk exposure), in
order to enable the Shareholders to assess
the Company'’s overall performance, exercise
their rights in an informed manner and
engage actively with the Company.

The Company communicates with the
Shareholders through the publication of
annual reports, interim reports, circulars,
results announcements and releases. All
communications to Shareholders are also
available on the Company’s website at
www.karrie.com.

We had provided sufficient notice for
Shareholders on all general meetings.
The AGM provides a useful platform for
Shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. The Chairman of the Board and the
Board members will make an effort to attend
to answer Shareholders’ questions. External
auditor is also available at the annual general
meeting to address shareholders’ queries
about the conduct of the audit.
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ERELHEESE

Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate
issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

All votes of the Shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll according
to the Listing Rules. The chairman of the
meeting will therefore demand a poll for
every resolution put to the vote of the AGM
pursuant to bye-law 66 of the Bye-laws.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognizes that effective
communication with investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract
new investors.

Results announcement

As from January 2009, the Company
had discontinued its practice of adopting
quarterly results announcement. Annual
reports and interim reports are prepared
and issued to all Shareholders within the
prescribed period stipulated by the Listing
Rules. All results announcements and reports
are posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange's website. The
Company can still provide the Shareholders
and investors with an adequate degree of
transparency and information of the financial
position of the Company.
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Media and analysts briefings

Briefings for media are held on the same day
immediately after the interim and annual
results released. Briefing for analysts by way
of presentation at luncheons, receptions
or telephone conferences are organized
thereafter. During the briefing, the Group's
management provides an in-depth analysis
of the Group’s performances in respect of
the relevant periods and ensures that the
financial performance and accounts of the
Group are well understood. There is also
ample opportunity for the analysts and
media to ask questions and interact with the
executive Directors and senior management.

Tea-Break with investors

Since the first quarter of 2004/05, the
Group has been arranging tea-break with
investors (institutional or individual) to build
up an interactive and direct communication
channel. This allows investors talking to the
management of the Group. Meanwhile,
the Group would give an update about the
status of the Group's development and share
of their feelings toward the Group. Last year,
a tea-break was held on 5 September 2015.

The Group regularly releases corporate
information such as awards received, and
the latest news of the Group’s developments
on its Company’'s website. The public are
welcome to give their comments and make
their enquiries through the Company’s
website, the management will give their
prompt response.
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ERELHEESE

G.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to convene
a Special General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, members holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists,
or any of them representing more than one
half of the voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition.

Procedures for which enquiries may be
put to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries to the Board in writing at the
Company'’s head office and principal place of
business or the Company’s website.
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3. Procedures for putting forward
proposals by shareholders at the
shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights of all shareholders; or
not less than 100 shareholders may make
requisition in writing to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company:

(a) to give to shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to
have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

Specific enquires or suggestions by
Shareholders can be sent in writing to the
Board or the Company Secretary at our head
office and principal place of business or
email to the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Group's affairs and assists the Board in functionary
effectively. All Directors also have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.
During the year, the Company Secretary has
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there is no change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 70, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in October 1996 and is the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company as well as
the founder of the Group. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to founding the Group
in 1980, Mr. Ho had over 10 years' experience in factory
management and in running operations specialised in
manufacturing plastic, metal and electronic products. He
is responsible for the Group’s overall corporate strategies
and objectives. He is also a director of New Sense
Enterprises Limited and Honford Investments Limited, a
corporate substantial shareholder of the Company, and
the brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a non-executive
Director and Deputy Chairman, the husband of Ms. Ho
Po Chu, who is a member of management team and the
uncle of Mr. Ho Kai Man, an Non-executive Director of the
Company.

The solid business knowledge and working experience
gained by Mr. Ho throughout the years are recognized by
the academic. He was awarded with fellow membership
of the Asian Knowledge Management Association in
September 2003 and Honorary Fellowship by Canadian
Chartered Institute of Business Administration and
Honorary Doctorate in Management by Lincoln University
in April 2007.
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Mr. Ho was appointed as member of the 10th Guangdong
Provincial Committee of Political Consultative Conference
in January 2008 and was reappointed as a member of
11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province in January 2007. He
was also awarded as the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan
City and Honorable Citizen of Yixing City. Mr. Ho currently
participates in affairs of different associations, which
include The Seventh Former Dongguan Provincial CPPCC
Members Association, Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers
Association, World Dongguan Entrepreneurs, China
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment,
Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment, Dongguan City Fenggang Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment, Overseas Friendship
Association of Dongguan, Federation of Hong Kong
Guangdong Community Organisations, Dongguan
Wedding Trade Association, Jiangsu Yixing Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment, World Ho's
Business Association Limited, Guangdong Overseas
Chinese Enterprises Association, Hong Kong Fenggang
(Dongguan) Natives Association Limited, Hong Kong Youth
Exchange Promotion United Association, Hong Kong
Jiangsu Exchange Promotion Association, The Hong Kong
Chinese Importers’ & Exporter’s Association, ShenZhen
General Chamber of Commerce, Dongguan Foundation
for the Disabled and Dongguan University of Technology
Education Foundation of Dongguan City.

Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia, aged 44, was appointed
as an executive Director in November 2010, and is the
General Manager — Human Resources and Administration
of the Group and responsible for the overall operation of
human resources, administration and IT department of the
Group. Ms. Chan is one of the members of the Executive
Committee and Internal Audit Committee of the Group.
She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Ms. Chan graduated from The City University of Hong
Kong majoring in Public Administration and Management.
She joined the Group in 1996 and has over 18 years'
experience in administration and management.
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Mr. ZHAO Kai, aged 41, was appointed as a Director of
the Company in November 2012. He has been appointed
as the General Manager and the Convener of Executive
Committee in Manufacturing Sector of the Group
with effect from 1 April 2013, responsible for overall
manufacturing management and operation of the Group.
Mr. Zhao graduated from Xihua University (formerly
known as Sichuan Institute of Technology) in the PRC with
a Bachelor Degree in Foundry Engineering. He had 15
years' experience in metal plastic, mould engineering and
project management and more than 7 years' experience in
production management and operation. Mr. Zhao joined
the Group in December 2011.

Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 49, was appointed as an
executive Director in June 2016. He is also the Marketing
Executive General Manager and a member of the Executive
Committee of Group, responsible for the Group's
marketing and business development. He joined the Group
in 1985 and has over 25 years' experience in sales and
marketing.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming, aged 62, was re-designated as
a non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the
Company with effect from 1 May 2011. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho
was appointed as an executive Director of the Company
from October 1996 to 31 May 2007, and was a Deputy
Chairman and Chief Operation Officer as well as the
Convener of the Executive Committee of the Group. He
was re-designated as a non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1 June 2007. He is responsible
for the overall supervision of the Group’s operation
business. He joined the Group in 1980 and has over 20
years' experience in factory production. He is also the
brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the executive
Directors, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, the brother-in-law of Ms. Ho Po Chu, who is
a member of the management team and father of Mr. Ho
Kai Man (one of the non-executive directors).
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Mr. HO Kai Man, aged 35, was appointed as an executive
Director from 12 July 2012 to 31 October 2012 and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director in November
2012. He joined the Group in November 2005. He has
been appointed as the Assistant General Manager,
Corporate Planning and Executive Committee member and
was responsible for handling internal and external business
and political contact, establishing of communication
platform, promoting energy-saving, environment
protection and cleaner production etc and maintaining
the Group's sustainability. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho graduated from
Auckland University of Technology majoring in Computer
Science. He had engaged in the works of various
departments of the Group so that he has familiarized
himself with the business operation of the Group. He is
the nephew of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and is the son of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming, a non-executive director & deputy chairman
of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SO Wai Chun, aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
July 2001. Mr. So has been doing business in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China for over 20 years. His
businesses are mainly specialized in financial services and
international trading. In 2000, Mr. So was appointed as
the China Representative of Forestry New Zealand Limited,
which is a subsidiary of Evergreen Forestry Limited listed in
New Zealand.

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in December 2004.
He has extensive experience in accounting, finance and
management. He holds a master degree in professional
accounting, a postgraduate diploma in corporate
administration and a higher diploma in accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an Associate of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Mr. YAM Chung Shing, aged 56, is a President of
Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment, the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan, Standing
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Dongguan City and an Executive Vice
President and Secretary of Association of the Hong Kong
Members of Dongguan’s (Hong Kong & Macau) Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference Committee.
He has invested and developed several projects. He has
extensive experience in business management and project
investment. Mr. Yam is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of Nova LifeStyle, Inc. (NASDAQ: NVFY).

MANAGEMENT

Ms. HO Po Chu, aged 67, is the Director of
Administration of the Group. She is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Ho is one of the
founding members of the Group in 1980 and has over 20
years' experience in office administration and purchasing.
She is responsible for supervising human resources and
overall administration of the Group. She is also the wife of
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the executive Directors,
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, and sister-in-law of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is
a non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman.

Mr. CHOI Wai Hin, Henry, aged 36, joined the Group
in August 2014 and has been appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer responsible for overseeing the Group's
finance and accounting functions. He is also a member
of the Executive Committee of the Group. Mr. Choi
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a bachelor degree in accountancy. He is a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked in KPMG for more
than ten years. He has extensive experience in auditing,
accounting, financial management and has been involved
in a number of initial public offering transactions and
capital market transactions.
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Mr. LO Wai Kit, aged 46, is the General Manager —
Marketing of the Group and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Group, responsible for the Group's
business development and product management. Mr. Lo
graduated from The Hong Kong Baptist University with a
Bachelor of Arts (Honors) in Sociology. Prior to joining the
Group in 2001, he had over 15 years' experience in Sales
& Marketing.

Mr. CHAN Wah Ying, aged 51, is the General Manager
— System Integration and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Group. Mr. Chan graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) with a higher certificate in
Manufacturing Engineering. Prior to joining the Group in
1992, Mr. Chan had over 13 years’ experience in quality
management in an electronic manufacturing company.

Ms. YIU Yuet Fung, aged 51, is the General Manager of
Human Resources and Administration in the PRC service
business and a member of the Executive Committee in
service business of the Group, responsible for the overall
personnel and administration management in the PRC
service business. She joined the Group in 1984 and has
over 18 years’ experience in managing the production
process of manufacturing industries, 11 years' experience
in overall personnel and administration management and
3 years’ experience in management and operation of
“Fullhouse World" restaurants in the PRC.

Mr. WONG Fok Tsun, Albert, aged 64, is the Assistant
Internal Audit Director of the Group, responsible for
setting up internal audit procedure and reporting
directly to the Board. Mr. Wong is also a member of Risk
Management Department under the Group’s present Risk
Management Policy. Mr. Wong graduated from Curtin
University of Technology, WA with a bachelor degree
in Management and Marketing. He also holds a master
degree of Accounting from the same University. He is
a fellow member of The Association of International
Accountants, UK and is an associate member of CPA
Australia. He is also a member of The Institute of Internal
Auditors Inc. U.S.A. Mr. Wong has over 20 years’
experience in internal auditing and 12 years’ experience in
financial accounting. He joined the Group in March 2003.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EBREEARZEATH

BEERLE WK AEETISALE R
TZEgKEBEz— BEASEXRBHORNER
EE-BEEEXENBERGAR HAHLEER
(RBI)NBLBU -RR_ZTZ—FMALE
BE - EEATAFHEHERMSERER -

REREE A+ AEBEEREBESAKLE
ERATEZEEXNE - RAEEEXNELETE
BR(RBABEIKRE) FARETIRSME
BB —NANZFMAKXREEFN #FHEB+=
FRETREQRARNMEETELER-

MARNA A+ -5 AREFERBEAD
BRERITREKERRBENITZEEKE
BETBERBEANERRITRERER - BR
—NN\OFEMAXREE  FHEE T N\FRREX
HERFERLR +—FANBERRITHER
EELRLEFEENEERANRELR] &

BEE2AE Nt AKREANBESR
E BRERVAMBEFEFEFNEEREAESS
BE - BALERAKRERKFHETZAREER
RIzRBRERIKE - FEREEENIDRMH
EMBAR - BEEEMMSELTRM UHA
R— A2 2ELEM - KRR REEER 2D
NREEREGENAMNGHMAEEE  TARAXE
NEREEENEE AR _— +FRIE
Rt -_FUHeit&R R _FTT=F=AM
AREHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 F #

95



96

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EREEARZEATH

Ms. LAM Po Ling, Regan, aged 53, the Assistant General
Manager of Supply Chain Management of the Group,
is responsible for the overall operation of the Group's
supply chain management. Ms. Lam graduated from The
University of Strathclyde, United Kingdom with a degree in
Master of Science in Procurement Management. She is a
member of The Chartered Institute of Purchasing & Supply,
United Kingdom (MCIPS). Ms. Lam joined the Group
since 1990. She has over 30 years’ working experience in
Purchasing, Procurement and Supply Chain Management.
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The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in

- Metal and Plastic ("M&P") Business: manufacturing
and sale of metal and plastic products, including
computer server casings, moulds, plastic and metal
parts and predominately self-brand household
products;

- Electronic Manufacturing Services ("EMS”) Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape data
storage, “point-of-sale” ("POS") system, medical
products, office automation products and other
computer peripherals;

- Consumer and Services Business: building of
“Fullhouse World” Brand, provision of relevant
services, such as catering services, sales of themed
gifts, wedding gown and photography; and

- Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real
estate project investment, property lease and
development.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business and an analysis using financial key performance
indicators, can be found in Chairman’s Statement on
pages 13 to 43 and in Report of the Directors in pages
100 to 101, Financial Highlights on pages 10 to 12 and
Sustainability Report on pages 44 to 65 of this Annual
Report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance and its compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group is
contained in Sustainability Report on pages 44 to 65 and
Corporate Governance Report on pages 66 to 89 of this
Annual Report.

The Group’s turnover by principal business segment and
geographical locations for the Year are set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEERE

DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend
of HK2.75 cents (2014/15 final dividend: 1.8 cents per
share and special dividend: 1 cent per share) per share
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 2 September 2016. Together
with the interim dividend of HKQ.75 cent per share, total
dividend paid/payable for this year amounted to HK3.5
cents (2014/15: HK3.3 cents) per share. The final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“"AGM") of the Company to be held on 26 August 2016.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group's results for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 129 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 March 2016, the Company's reserves of
approximately HK$260,681,000 representing the
contributed surplus and retained profit were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$553,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Embracing its motto “KARRIE ON PERPETUAL MOTION,
BENEFITS SERVED TO THE PUBLIC”, the Group has been
active in giving back to the society and environmental
protection. It is of paramount importance to have effective
communication and understanding between the Group
and its stakeholders including shareholders, partners,
employees, suppliers, regulators and the public in coming
up with benchmarks and regarding key issues.

Details of the Environmental Policies and Performance are
set out in the section headed “Sustainability Report” on
pages 44 to 65 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance
with regulatory requirements and the risk of non-
compliance with such requirements. The Group has been
implementing system and allocating staff resources to
ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company's subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC while
the Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
in Hong Kong. Our establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong, Bermuda and the PRC.
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EFEERE

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated
and it regularly reviews and improves its policies on
remuneration and benefits, training, occupational health
and safety.

The Group maintains good relationship with its customers.
A customer complaint handling mechanism is in place
to receive, analyse and study complaints and make
recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group adopts an integrated top-down and bottom-
up approach in identifying risks and thereby conducts risk
analysis and assessment to identify the sources, categories
and indicators of risks. The followings are the key part of
the risks and uncertainties identified by the Group:

(1) Finance:

The Group's investment in financial instruments are
subject to various risks (such as market risks) and it
may result in losses and affect the cash flow of the
Group.

2) Operation:
(i) High concentration of businesses and clients

The customers of the Group are mainly
concentrated in global leading technology
corporations. The Group may be unable to
attract new customers if no new product
has been developed. The concentration
of customers and/or the concentration
of geographical location that exceeds an
acceptable level may increase the business
risk and may reduce the market share of the
Group. The Group may also be exposed to
the risk of significant reduction in profit in
case a few important clients are lost.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Cont'd)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (Cont’d)

)

3)

Operation: (Cont'd)
(i) IT Strategy

Owing to the complications of the business
process of the Group, more time is needed
for testing for the customized reform of
the system. Lack of sufficient and effective
testing on the new IT system may lead to
a failure in coordinating with the operation
process of the Group, and thus affect its
operation effectiveness. The IT system may
not be able to update timely and effectively
to adapt to the changes of the operation
process of the Group.

Business Diversity:

The Group endeavors for business diversity.
However, it may encounter the risks of insufficient
relevant operational experience in the new business
during the process of business diversity. Moreover,
the competition of new business could be
intense, the inability to break-in, failure to achieve
the income target or market popularity rate in
emerging markets, and underestimate the impact
of business costs may adversely affect sustainability
and profitability of new business.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme was adopted on 24 August 2012
(the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option
Scheme are summarized as below:

(i)

(a) The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions which the
eligible participants (as defined in the Share
Option Scheme) have made or will make to
the Group or invested entity.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

(i) (Cont’d)

(b) The Share Option Scheme will provide the
eligible participants with an opportunity to
have a personal stake in the Company with
a view to motivating the eligible participants
to utilise their performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group or invested entity;
and attracting and retaining or otherwise
maintaining an ongoing relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions are
or will be beneficial to the long term growth
of the Group or invested entity.

(ii) The Board may at its discretion grant options to:

(a) any director (whether executive, non-
executive or independent non-executive
director), employee (whether full time or
part time employee), consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, joint venture partner
or advisers of or contractor to the Group or
invested entity; and

(b)  any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director (whether
executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive director), employee (whether
full time or part time employee), consultant,
customer, supplier, agent, partner, joint
venture partner or adviser of or contractor to
the Group or invested entity.

(i) The total number of shares that may be issued by
the Company if all options granted under the Share
Option Scheme have been exercised is 18,000,000
Shares, which represents approximately 0.90% of
the existing issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this annual report.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &

fBRARESTE ()
BRETE (E)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(%)

(b) BREFISANEERSEALR
HERARRERAEAEGEOKE
A BaER2E AN BER
E - BATERXERAEE KR
BER THARENMBREANARLAM
FREEBEMAEMRKGEMRA
SEIREERREEHRNEGER
SEBANLTHERANEHBE-

EFeHNBEROBRET:

(a) AEEIREEBNTAES (B
T FRTHRBILFERTES)
BE (2BZHE) ZHARE K
PoftEn RE SERBHF &%
CEEH ERxaNE K

(b) AEEXKEBRNEAEZEER
U BREEFNES (1T EHRT
KBIUIFATES) EE (2R
RB) HAAB -BFP fER-
R -AERH AELEEHN B
R & KE -

BEBEREFICRENMEBRE
BERTE ARAABRTZEOBEEA
18,000,000% - #8E R AF ¥ 5 B HAAR
NRIFITEBEITRAL0.90% °



SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

(iv)

The overall limit on the number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes for the time being of the Company shall
not, in aggregate, exceed such number of Shares
equaling to 30% of the Shares in issue from time
to time. No option may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option scheme
of the Company if it will result in the above-
mentioned 30% limit being exceeded.

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the
Shareholders (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"),
unless Shareholders’ approval has been obtained.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme of the Company will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

(@) Unless approved by Shareholders in a general
meeting, no option may be granted to any
eligible participant which, if exercised in full,
would result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted or to be granted to
such eligible participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the
date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of such new
grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

(viy  (Contd)

(b) Any grant of options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company or its subsidiaries or any of
their respective associates under the Share
Option Scheme must be subject to the prior
approval of the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is a grantee of the
relevant options).

(@] Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or any
of their respective associates would result
in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and
to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in
the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant:

(1) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the Shares in issue, and

(2) having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Shares at
the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000.

then such further grant must be subject to
the approval by Shareholders at a general
meeting taken on a poll.

(vii)  The period within which the options must be
exercised will be specified by the Company at the
time of grant, but shall expire no later than 10 years
from the relevant date of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

(viii)

(xi)

At the time of grant of the options, the Company
may specify any minimum period(s) for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. The
Share Option Scheme does not contain any such
minimum period.

At the time of the grant of the options, the
Company may specify any performance target(s)
which must be achieved before the options can
be exercised. The Share Option Scheme does not
contain any performance targets.

A non-refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is paid by
each grantee upon acceptance of the opinion.

Subject to adjustments made in a situation
contemplated under the Share Option Scheme, the
subscription price in respect of any option shall be
at the discretion of the Board, provided that it shall
not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of a share as shown in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant (which must be a
business day) in respect of such option;

(b)  the average of the closing prices of the
shares as shown in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the relevant date
of grant in respect of such option; and

(0 the nominal value of a share.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

fERAESTE ()
BRETE (E)

(vii) AR L BREER - A QA A EBRER
TTERT LA F A R &G HIR - B AAE
st 8130 51 AR (L R & k2 HATR o

(ix) RELBEER  AQF A EEBRER
TR M AZR MEM KRR BT - BAE
PRI ESAERRIRER-

(x) BEAEZMBRERSBENI0BTERS
ERBRE2RE FORABTEE-

(xiy FRIEERAER & FTEE B RAIE L HE
B EABERENREERRESTENH
BERE BEFRIRUTERSE:

(a) BXARZBERERLBEH (XA
VAREXER)BRENEBEREAM
51 B W T B

(b) EEAMZERERH B A DE
LEABIMELNEG B HREMI
B FH M T E &

(0 MBHmEE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 F #

105



106

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) BRETE (2
Share Option Scheme (Cont'd) BERELE (&)
(xiiy  Details of share option movements during the year (xii) BIEBRETZRAFEE ZBIREZESF
under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: FuT
Number
Number Number Number  of options Number
of options  of options  of options lapsed/  of options
Exercise Closing Price Price at outstanding granted  exercsed  cancelled outstanding
Date of Price Exercise before date exercise date  at 1 April during during during  at 31 March
Name Grant per share  Period of grant  of options 2015 the year the year the year 2016
“E-%f% ZB-AF
RERE RBRE BA-B REEE WAEE  RAEE ZA=+-A
Bk RYEBHZ  fTEBZz  HEOE BRT i RMW/BE HROE
i£3 RiAH RER TES E# B BREHE BREHE BRERE BREXE BRERE
(HKS) (HKS) (HKS) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(#7) (%7) (B7) () (F) () () ()
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
ESRERITHAR
Mr. Zhao Kai 11/08/2014 0.419 01/08/2015-10/08/2024 0.420 - 5,000 - - - 5,000
ek 11/08/2014 0.419 01/08/2017-10/08/2024 0.420 - 5,000 - - - 5,000
(i) Other eligible participants
EtAER2EE
Employees 11/08/2014 0.419 01/08/2015-10/08/2024 0.420 - 4,000 - - - 4,000
{32 11/08/2014 0.419 01/08/2017-10/08/2024 0.420 - 4,000 - - - 4,000
A professional actuarial firm has been engaged in the year RIEBRESE —HEXEHELARAIR_T—H

of 2014/15 to perform a valuation of the share options
granted under the share option schemes.

S REEREFTLARA 2 BREEEMN

g

RIEFEV R
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According to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
2 ("HKFRS2"), the fair value of the share option on
the date grant should be amortised in profit or loss as
expenses over the period from the date of grant until they
are exercisable by the grantee. The expense required to be
reported for share options granted from 1 April 2016 to
31 March 2018 would be estimated as follows:

EH2))  BRERELBHNAFEAREH
MEZHANEE (AR EERATITER
Pt BETELEERRPINK - AR _-F
—RNFOA-HE-ZT-/\F=ZA=1+—HK
HE R R PT E A W ST R R AT

Financial Year

BHREE
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Total
(Actual) (Actual) (Estimated) (Estimated) @t
(BE) (EK) (f&3h) (f&3t)
P&L expenses (HK$'000)
BaEx it (FAT) 1,267 1,020 527 177 2,991
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Employee share option expenses charged to the
consolidated income statement are determined with the
trinomial model valuation model based on the following
assumptions:

Date of valuation 11 August 2014

Date of grant 11 August 2014

Option value HK$0.1764 —

HK$0.1944
Market price at date of grant HK$0.405
Exercisable price HK$0.419
Risk-free interest rate 1.97%
Life of options 10 years
Expected Volatility (120 months) 52.84%
Expected Dividend yield 2.47%

Note: The vesting of the share options is subject to the performance
of the Group.

There are several relevant measures that may be
considered to assess the financial impact of the share
option schemes, including the expense of share-based
transactions under generally accepted financial reporting
standards (e.g., HKFRS2). The expense of the share-based
transactions is attributed over the period from the original
transaction date (i.e., grant date) to the date when the
recipient’s entitlement to the payment has been fully
realized (i.e., vested).

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility,
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information. Change in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (contd)
Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

The result of the trinomial model can be materially
affected by changes in these assumptions so an option’s
actual value may differ from the estimated fair value of the
options due to limitations of the trinomial model.

In assessing the value of the share options granted during
the year and the expense of share-based transactions
under HKFRS2 requirement, the trinomial option pricing
model has been used. The trinomial model is one of the
generally most accepted methods used to calculate the
value of options and expense of share-based transactions.

The parameters of the trinomial model include the risk free
rate, dividend yield, exit rate and trigger price multiple.
The risk free rate has made reference to the yield of Hong
Kong exchange fund notes as at the grant date. The
dividend yield makes reference to the dividend history and
it is assumed that the grantee will exercise the option in
accordance with their sub-optimal exercise policy.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 244 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Bye-law provides that the Directors shall
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
any actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
as a result of any act or failure to act in carrying out their
functions.

The Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance cover in respect of legal action against the
Directors during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Particulars of bank loans and overdrafts of the Group as at
31 March 2016 are set out in notes 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
Mr. Zhao Kai
Mr. Chan Raymond
(appointed on 1 June 2016)
Mr. Lee Shu Ki
(resigned on 1 March 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ho Kai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. So Wai Chun
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing
Mr. Yam Chung Shing
(appointed on 1 November 2015)
Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
(resigned on 1 November 2015)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. So Wai Chun, and Mr. Yam Chung Shing entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of
one year with effect from 1 July 2016 and 1 November
2015 respectively; Mr. Fong Hoi Shing entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of half
year with effect from 7 June 2016 subject to extension
by mutual agreement and retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company as
and when required under the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Article 86(2) and 87 of the Company’s
Bye-laws and paragraph A.4.2. of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Mr. Zhao Kai, Mr. Chan Raymond, Mr. So Wai Chun,
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing and Mr. Yam Chung Shing will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All such Directors, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which any of the Group
companies was a party and in which a Director was
materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
& CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Company had the following
continuing connected transaction and connected
transaction, certain details of which had been disclosed
in compliance with the requirements Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
& CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Cont'd)

Continuing Connected Transactions

In anticipation of the expiry of the previous lease
agreement on 17 November 2013, a new lease agreement
(the “Lease Agreement”) dated 15 November 2013 was
entered into between Kings Lion Development Limited
("Kings Lion") as landlord and My Affection Limited
("MA"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
tenant for the lease of a portion (being 26,573 square
feet in gross floor area) of 9th Floor, Southeast Industrial
Building, 611-619 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories together with one car parking space in the
same building at a monthly rental of HK$239,157 (that
is, at approximately HK$9 per square foot) for a term of
two years commencing on 18 November 2013. The Lease
Agreement expired on 17 November 2015.

Kings Lion is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the reason that
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, a Director of the Company, together
with his spouse, control 100% of the voting power in
general meeting and also control the board of directors
of Kings Lion. The applicable percentage ratios set out
in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in relation to the
Lease Agreement are more than 0.1% but less than
5%. As such, the transaction contemplated under the
Lease Agreement (the “Lease Transaction”) constitutes
a continuing connected transaction of the Company
under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules at that time which
is subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements but is exempt from the approval of
independent Shareholders. Details of the Lease Transaction
have been set out in the announcement dated 15
November 2013 issued to the Shareholders.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Lease Transaction and confirmed that the Lease
Transaction has been entered into by the Group in
accordance with the terms of the Lease Agreement
governing it, in the ordinary and usual course of its
business and on normal commercial terms which are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as
a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
& CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Cont'd)

The Lease Transaction is also a related party transaction set
out in note 36(a) to the consolidated financial statements
as “Rental charged by a related company”. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements for the
Lease Transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Apart from the Lease Transaction, all other related
party transactions set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in the paragraph above in accordance with paragraph
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
& CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Cont'd)

Connected Transaction

Massive Era Limited (“Massive”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Kar Info International Property
Limited (“Kar Info”) and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai entered into
the cooperation agreement (“Cooperation Agreement”)
in relation to the development of a piece of land into a
commodity property project (“PRC Development Project”)
on 27 April 2015. Details of this connected transaction
are set out in the circular dated 26 June 2015 and
announcement dated 27 April 2015. Massive will make
an investment in the amount of HK$124,000,000 in
consideration of it being entitled to a share of the profit to
be gained from the PRC Development Project upon expiry
of the term of the cooperation.

As Massive is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and as Kar Info is a wholly owned subsidiary of
a company controlled by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, a controlling
shareholder and executive Director (Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer) of the Company,
the transaction contemplated under the Cooperation
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
and is subject to the reporting, announcement and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.

Additional time is still required for completing the PRC
administrative procedures for the reorganisation and the
due diligence procedures, which are conditions precedent
to completion of the Cooperation Agreement, for which
supplemental agreements have been entered into by the
parties to the Cooperation Agreement to extend the long
stop date. As over a year's time has elapsed since the
Cooperation Agreement was entered into on 27 April
2015, the Company is negotiating with Kar Info to vary
certain terms in the Cooperation Agreement in order to
facilitate the cooperation. In the event that any agreement
has been reached in this regards, which is expected to
take place in July 2016, a further supplemental agreement
will be entered into by the parties to the Cooperation
Agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2016

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company and any associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (a) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO;
or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) were as
follows:

(A)  Interests in the Company

EERRSTRAEZRODER

R-B—XE=A=+-8

ARRABZEERESTRABEARARF RERM
HEEE (BER (BEMREERG) ([ (EFH
BBy 1) EXVER) BB n N A8 BE B 10 7 B A 1)
BELAR MZEER AR QRE (BHFE
) F£352(6ATHRIF 2 ERMAALEE © (b)
TEAALTRREFTETESFXZNEESTR]
(I GRESAD) NBRARBMNBEEBERS
PRERAR ([BEAT])  mh:

(FF) RALBZ ¥

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREBIBIZEEREE
Personal Family Corporate/ Total % of issued
interests interests  Other interests interests share capital
EERERS
AR FEER HitnE s aitER BRESL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai B EE 278,712,000 110,350,000  1,077,608,000  1,466,670,000 73.47
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(PzE—) (BzE—) (H#E=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming B 24,208,000 - 817,608,000 841,816,000 4217
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(PzE=) (HzE=)
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia R4 iR/ ME 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.05
Mr. Zhao Kai el EAE 12,300,000 - - 12,300,000 0.62
(Note 4)
(PzEm)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing abioti b e 4,000 - - 4,000 0.00
Ms. Ho Po Chu MEKkZ L 110,350,000 538,712,000 817,608,000 1,466,670,000 73.47
(Note 5) (Note 5) (Note 2)
S (BzER) (M=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Contd)

As at 31 March 2016 (Cont’d)

A)

Notes:

Interests in the Company (Cont’d)

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s personal interest consists of 278,712,000
Shares. He is deemed to be interested in 110,350,000 Shares
held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner.

The 1,077,608,000 Shares comprised (i) 487,608,000 Shares
held by New Sense Enterprises Limited (“New Sense”); and (ii)
330,000,000 Shares held by Castfast Properties Development
Co., Limited ("“Castfast Properties”), 87% of the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Honford Investments
Limited (“Honford Investments”). New Sense and Honford
Investments are each wholly-owned by TMF (BVI) Limited
("TMF") as trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family
Trust, and (iii) 260,000,000 Shares held by The Wedding
City Co., Limited (“The Wedding City"), 90% and 10% of
the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively. Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested in the 817,608,000
Shares in (i) and (ii) as founder of The Ho Family Trust and in
260,000,000 Shares in (iii) through The Wedding City. Ms. Ho
Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are the discretionary objects
of The Ho Family Trust and are thus deemed to be interested
in the 817,608,000 Shares held under The Ho Family Trust.
Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu
and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the 817,608,000 Shares duplicate
with each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming comprise
24,208,000 Shares.

The personal interests of Mr. Zhao Kai comprise 2,300,000
Shares and 10,000,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
110,350,000 Shares. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be
interested in (a) 278,712,000 Shares held and 260,000,000
Shares deemed to be held by her spouse, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
and (b) 817,608,000 Shares referred to in Note 2 above.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE' S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Contd)

As at 31 March 2016 (Cont’d)

(B)

(ii)

Interests and short positions in associated

corporations

Karrie Industrial Company Limited (“KICL")

BEERBRSTHAEZROER (&)

RZEBE—XRNFE=ZA=+—80 (&)

(Z2) RIGEZEZ #a RAE

() BNEREBR2A (53

Number of non-voting deferred shares

MEMR])

BREBEERNHE
Personal Family Corporate/ Total % of issued Short % of issued
interests interests  Other interests interests share capital Positions share capital
EEERY

BARE RERH Hipg s RitER BRAAL iy BREAL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 85.98% 43,000 85.98%
B (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(MEE—) (M=) (MizE=) (BzE—) (=)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13.99% 7,000 13.99%
Ot (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(MzE—=) (BzE—) (PsE=) (BizE—) (MsE=)

Karpo Technologies Limited (“KTL") (i) BEREAERQAR([FERE])

Number of non-voting deferred shares
ERZEELRAHE
Personal Family Corporate/ Total % of issued Short % of issued
interests interests  Other interests interests share capital Positions share capital
EEERD

HAER ZEER Hip s BitER BREAL 3 BREAL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 99.90% 10,000 99.90%
fEBEE (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3) (Note 1) (Note 3)
(&E—) (BzE—) (M3E=) (BzE—) (=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE' S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Contd)

As at 31 March 2016 (Cont’d)

(B)

(iii)

Notes:

Interests and short positions in associated

corporations (Cont’d)

Karrie Investment Holdings Limited (“KIHL")

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

BEERBRSTHAEZROER (&)
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E-XNE=ZA=+—-8 (&)

(Z) RIGEZEZ e RAE (B)

(iii)

BENREZERAERAR ([RAMEE])

Number of non-voting deferred shares

ERZEELRAUA
Personal Family Corporate/ Total % of issued Short % of issued
interests interests  Other interests interests share capital Positions share capital
EEERD

BAR: FEER i BitER BRAEAL 3 BREAL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
B (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)

(HE—) (ME—) (FisEm) (Mi—) (MsEm)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
WERLT (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(Mt —) (M —) (FisEm) (M3E—) (M3Em)
Bt aE -

Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited (“KIBVI"), a direct wholly- — Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited ([KIBVI]) » &K
owned subsidiary of the Company, has been granted options AlzEEZEWNBAR BETREREREMIFE
to acquire from Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu their EEMAERZITREMER ZERBEEZFIE
non-voting deferred shares in each of KICL, KTL and KIHL. BT A N ERERELER G o B HA 218 5 £ A
Accordingly, KIBVI is taken to be interested in these non- AERLTE AR TREEMSAEEEHZ
voting deferred shares in respect of which Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai KRB KBVIZHEZERNHARA 2 #m -BE B
and Ms. Ho Po Chu have each created short positions. In Lt () [RARB 2w cWEFE— ZREA -
addition, by virtue of (i) their interests in the Company; and A b P15 78 78 R B) 2 M 2 - {a] J 928 5 A R {A] B8 3R A0
(i) the interests as referred to in notes 1, 2 and 5 under the TEBEWEBIEEKBVIFZSR G 2SS
section headed “(A) Interests in the Company” above, Mr. wIREEARBELROERIBEER -
Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu are each deemed to be
interested in the long positions that KIBVI has in these non-
voting deferred shares. Such interests are duplicated with
their personal interests in these non-voting deferred shares.
The entire issued share capital of KICL comprises 50,000 non- - 5= FE fn B 31T 15 F150,000% 2 £ 18 EARE R IE IR
voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary shares. 19 B 10RR 2 & i AR AR A0 AR AX o
The entire issued share capital of KTL comprises 10,000 non- = =B RHE B B1TI H10,00008 2 £ 1% 22 4 IE A%
voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary shares. 19 B 10RR 2 & i AR AR A0 AR AX o
The entire issued share capital of KIHL comprises 2 non- M- ZAREEBTRODBZRZEREEELERHD &

voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary shares.

T0/% 2 % 38 A AR 1) 4B AK
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE' S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Contd)

As at 31 March 2016 (Cont’d)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated
corporations (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations which
were (a) recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

As at 30 June 2016

There have been no changes in the interests and short
positions of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and any associated corporations (a) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code during
the period from 1 April 2016 to 30 June 2016.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIRF 12/ 5 R 2 &

BEERBRSTHAEZROER (&)

R-ZEBE—XRNFE=ZA=+—80 (&)

(Z) RIGBZEZ e RAE (B)

B EXFBEN ARARABREZTNREITHRAER
WG AR B KA AIAREEE B &) - 1878
Betn R B2 e s MOR B - Mz F s ok
B@RE GEHFED) F352RBTHFZER
M ATRE & E © S(b) R IR CIRESTRI) BAMAR A
Ko Bt X
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FHE ARAREEERESTRABEARAR
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g GEESTR)) BARNRRMBRM X ARE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING EENHRERER
BUSINESS
As at 31 March 2016, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po RZE—RF=ZA=1+—"H lEBLENRMAE

Chu were interested in certain companies established in 5 =G ) 9, N 1, N S S VA AN K= AT =R EE W
the PRC (the “Competing Companies”) which are or are SEXEGENEEIEERF Z2AR ([FEFEM
likely to, directly or indirectly, compete with the business NAl))EBEEZ - IEBEERMAEIRZ LT IT
of the Group. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu are RELFFURRIZES - (1B 5K 4& RMAEFIK
also the directors of these Competing Companies. Details TETRZERFUERRZESRFBUOT:

of the interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu in

the Competing Companies are as follows:

Name of Date and place
Competing Company of establishment Principal business Shareholdings
BEMEAEER S AL A HR R it B TEXEK i 1

Dongguan Castfast
Door and Window
Products Co., Ltd.
(“Dongguan Castfast”)

2 August 2001, the PRC

Property investment and
provision of property
management and
consultancy services
in the PRC

Castfast Properties: 95%

REREMER® —TT—F RABETHERER REFRME 5%
BRAR([RERE]) NAZR +H RUYEEE LA AR

Yixing Yongtai Electronic

25 March 2008, the PRC

Property development

Castfast Properties: 75%

Technology Co. Ltd. in the PRC Dongguan Karrie Resort

("Yixing Yongtai”) Limited: 25%
BEXFETREK —TTNF R EETY R RIBRFEME 75%

BRAR ([EE#KZE]) ZRZ+HRB $H RERMERKE

BREAR25%
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEERE

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (Cont’d)

As at 31 March 2016, Dongguan Castfast had developed
a residential and commercial property project located at
Dongguan, the PRC with a site area of approximately
48,600 sq.m. and a total gross floor area of approximately
233,700 sg.m..

As at 31 March 2016, Yixing Yongtai had developed a
commercial property project located in Yixing, Jiangsu, the
PRC. This project occupied a site area of approximately
107,340 sg.m. and comprised offices, staff quarters,
canteens and service apartments.

As at 31 March 2016, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po
Chu were also interested in certain companies established
in the PRC which were engaged in the operation of a
wedding business. Details of these companies are as
follows:

EERGFRB 2ER (&)

RZEBE—ARAFZAZ+—H Ex=BER%E
—RURNPEREEZEELEAMEER 14
WHEEH AB48,600F Ak MABREEEMBELN A
233,700 F 7K o

RITE-—RF=ZA=+—"H HEKFRZME—
BURTPEIHEER 2 HAYEIRR - %EE
EHEIEA 107,340 F K - T HBFE 8
ITEE ERELEEARZHEAK-

N2 <#=A=+—R @HEELRAE
Brfr R BRI KA B R 2 A
Al N 3 R F AW ZHEMT

Name of Date and place

Competing Company of establishment Principal business Shareholdings

BEMRATER ARSI B R it B TEXK IR

Dongguan Fenggang Castfast 12 November 2009, Wedding services, related The Wedding City: 100%
Wedding City Co. Ltd. the PRC exhibitions and services
("Dongguan Wedding”)

REREF=EIEDM —TTNF IBW IR HERE KRG &L - 100%
BERAR ([REED]) +—A+=8 +H

The Wedding City Co. Ltd.
("The Wedding City")

EYWARLDA
(T4&#w])

8 May 2009, Hong Kong

—ETAE
HANE BE

Investment holding

REER

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai: 90%
Ms. Ho Po Chu: 10%
(218 54 - 90%
BT 10%

The power to make material business decisions for
the Group is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board
considers that there may be a conflict of interest between
the Group and any Director, such Director will be required
to abstain from voting. Therefore, the Board is capable of
carrying on the Group's business independently of, and at
arm'’s length, from the business of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and
Ms. Ho Po Chu.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &

AREBZEABMERENDZTEETS EWM
B 2EFERRAURELRAFEZTELREEETN
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31 March 2016 and 30 June 2016

The interests or short positions of the persons (other than
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company) in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

FERR
RIE—ARFE=ZA=+—-HARZE—R"EXA=T
=

ATALT(FEREEFERARAZESITEA
B) AR ARG RSB P EAREALT
B (BE D) $33606F 8 2 BEM 2
RHA

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BEREEIETZEERYE
Personal Corporate/ Shareholding
Name of Shareholder interests  Other interests percentage
EEEER
RRER Bl A Hit gz BERASH
New Sense 487,608,000 - 24.43%
(Note 1 P sE—)
Castfast Properties 32 # = ih & 330,000,000 - 16.53%
(Note 2 FiizE—)
The Wedding City %% ¥ 260,000,000 - 13.02%
(Note 3 MiizE=)
Honford Investments - 330,000,000 16.53%
(Note 2 Fif &£ =)
TMF - 817,608,000 40.96%
(Note 4 Ff&EMM)
Note: Bt aE -
1. The entire issued share capital of New Sense was owned by —  New SenseZ 2#02 #1TIR TR TMFLAE5E KX The Ho
TMF as trustee for The Ho Family Trust. Family Trustff A ©
2. 87% of the issued share capital of Castfast Properties is = REBEHEREETRAZ87%JIHHonford
beneficially owned by Honford Investments. The entire issued InvestmentsE z # A ° Honford InvestmentsZ 2 #BE,
share capital of Honford Investments was owned by TMF BITIRAR T B TMFYE & 2 # 15 5EThe Ho Family Trust
as trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust. The 2 Z5EA$EH ° Honford Investments 2 # 25 B2 52 38 40
interests of Honford Investments duplicate with those of the B2iERER-
Castfast Properties.
3. 260,000,000 Shares were beneficially held by The Wedding = 1403, B 2515 5 260,000,0000% f% 17  HLEEITRE A 2

City. 90% and 10% of the issued share capital of which
is beneficially owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho
Po Chu, respectively. The interests of The Wedding City
therefore duplicate with those of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai referred
to in note 2 to the section "Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Shares — (A) Interests in the Company” above.

90% K 10% 7 Rl /E B se £ R EH L L Em i
Bt BYWW 2 SR BAIEEEER N E
[EFRERTTRABZRMDEZ — (F)RAERQTR
R 2l ER RS-
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (contd)
As at 31 March 2016 and 30 June 2016 (Cont’d)

Note: (Cont’d)

4. TMF is deemed to be interested in these Shares held by New
Sense, Castfast Properties and Honford Investments by virtue
of acting as the trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

FERR(#)

RIE—ARE=ZA=+—HEZZE—XREXA
BH(#&)

Mg (42)

M- TMF#48 & AThe Ho Family Trustz S5 A5 51

New Sense * 3z & 5 b 2 [z Honford InvestmentsFT#§
BRI AR -

_.I_

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016 and 30 BRENXKREENERITHRAEBER [EER&ESTT

June 2016, no person, other than the Directors and chief BZ/\EZHX@%&J AHREIN RZE—RF=
executives of the Company, whose interests are set out A=+t—BE-ZE—X"FXA=1+H TEAL
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests 77 =N TZH TJJ )SUH AR EmIAR
in Shares” above, had an interest or short position in the ZEERK TIRE (EHIEH) £3361F
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was BTHEEFZE _Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ FOEK o

required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION BE L TRAFEIBSIBNRELEZES
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING EREH

RULES

Change of information of the Directors, which is required BIELETRAEI3SIBMIEAFHEE KFE
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing ZEEEHMEHHFINT

Rules during the Year are set out below:

122

Name of Director

Detail of Change

EENA BETE

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai annual salary increased from HK$4,436,400 to HK$4,676,400 (excluding
discretionary bonus) with effect from 1 July 2015

Al i 5 A& F % 4,436,400/ T8 11 £4,676,4008 T (TEIEMERL) BT —AFt

Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

R & pk/ M R

A—B4A%
annual salary increased from HK$752,400 to HK$782,496 (excluding discretionary

bonus) with effect from 1 July 2015
FHBE752,4008 T NE782,496 8 L (FREEWMENLL) B -_ET—HF LA

—HAEX

Mr. Zhao Kai annual salary increased from RMB690,000 to RMB842,520 (excluding discretionary
bonus) with effect from 1 August 2015

el kg F#mh ARKE690,000TE IE ARKES42,5207T (TEIEMEMELA) AT —H
FNANA—HERK

Mr. Ho Kai Man annual salary increased from HK$396,000 to HK$408,000 (excluding discretionary
bonus) with effect from 1 July 2015

AR S A F % F1396,0007%8 JT 18 1N Z=408,0008 7T (T REMEL) BT —HAF+tA

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming

*Eii)d(

annual salary decreased from HK$400,000 to HK$100,000 (excluding discretionary
bonus) with effect from 1 January 2016

GRS % % 400,000/ TR 2 100,000 7T (T EEBMEIEA) B T — R F—A
—BEM

Mr. Lee Shu Ki resigned as the Executive Director on 1 March 2016

FRIBEE R_IE-—REFZA—BBEIRTES 2R

Mr. Chan Sui Sum, Raymond
PRIG FR T AE

Mr. Yam Chung Shing
FEHEE

resigned as the Independent Non-executive Director on 1 November 2015

R-ZE-—RAF+— A BREBUIFRTESE IR

was appomted as the Independent Non-executive Director on 1 November 2015

R-E-—RAF+—A-REZERBUIFATEEZZR

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIRF 12/ 5 R 2 &



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended
31 March 2016 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 42%
Five largest suppliers combined 65%
Sales
The largest customer 38%
Five largest customers combined 91%

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted
above.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

Assuming that the final dividend is approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM, for the
purposes of ascertaining the entitlement to the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Thursday, 1 September 2016 to
Friday, 2 September 2016 (both dates inclusive) during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 31 August 2016. It is expected
that the final dividend will be payable and issued to those
entitled on or around Monday, 19 September 2016.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

FEREFRHKER

BE T R"E-A=+—RHILFE X&EEE
TEHERREPZBELRBEER LR

BE
A HER 42%
AR ER G 65%
HE
BARFE 38%
AAREF 15 91%

REE RENBEBEAINEZMAEELARF
PR AN B5 % < R W B R A L AR E
EHREBAREP 2EH -

REREEFMEBFERT

R B R RERET A FEARQFREH
B RBEZTAERARBCERN AXRaKHAZ
ET-R"ENA—B(EM)E_F—<FNA
“H(EHA) (BHEEEMB)EEHERD
BEERFE - MAFEERRAREZER
FrERZ 2 BRHEEXHEREEAIKRE A
RZE—RNFNA=Z+—H8(EH=Z) TFUR
ST DRRERARBRBEEIRNDBFLERLE D
B ABPABLHEZRERAA It AT B E
FERRERISIHEAMAPNI7TEI712E1716
E RAREBABRKLOIR T —"FNA
THAHBE (EH-)RERBETTARAGERKEK
%o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEERE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM to be held on 26 August 2016, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
22 August 2016 to Friday, 26 August 2016 (both dates
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the AGM, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 August 2016.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on public
information available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as the auditors of the
Company with effect from 25 October 2013 and Messrs.
KPMG was appointed as the auditors of the Company
on 15 November 2013. Save as aforesaid, there has been
no change in auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
KPMG who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2016

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &
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KPMG!

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Karrie International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
127 to 243, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2016, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whenever due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ECRYR SR LR

HEANBEBREZRERAAEZERRZBILLE
&M 8 &
(RERZAMALZHR LA

EEDEZINEH N E127E F2438 5 F B B 42
BRERAR([ERF])REWBRAR(UATAE
BIEEE|) ZRAVBRE  WEASVERE
BRENR-_ZE-—RE=ZA=1+—B 2888 %KRK
MERBEZBLFEZEABEREMAEZE
WAR A EGEHRRGEERERER &
AEXTEeBREBMEREMMEREER -

ESHGREMBRRAREZER

BERREFARERER BGOSR MD
(FRMBREEN) REFB (RFHEH) 25
BREREBEEMAFZHEEMBHRER LEE
EERARUEURAUBRRALFZERAR
B UBRREESSVBBRR T FEARKGE
SR AR T B B 2 B AHHE SRR At

BB 2 EAE

EEZEIRERELER URFHEAMBER
REHBR - ARBERZE-NN—F (RRDE
) BI0ERMRTE - 2 M BB RER - Btk A
S ABERNEEMBAN - BEMAIRAREZ
ARAEMEMALTEERAEEE:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ECRYR ST LR

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2016 and of the Group's financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBI &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTI7R)

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

—E—RE —E—RF
=HB=+—H —A=+—H
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Fr T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Land use rights THbfE R 6 17,607 24,072
Property, plant and equipment E RN 7 440,510 464,192
Investment properties KEMHE 8 316,800 336,250
Intangible assets | EE 9 28,417 28,564
Investments in associates REERNF 2 E 11 15,223 30,737
Available-for-sale financial assets AT ESMERE 14 18,393 22,118
Other non-current assets HMIEnEERE 13 84,738 84,896
Deferred tax assets REFRIEEE 25 638 1,130
922,326 991,959
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 350,584 402,670
Property development S E i 17 146,142 -
Trade and bills receivable B 5 N EE EWRK 13 329,321 280,399
Prepayments, deposits and other AR He REAM
receivables & KR TR 13 52,465 63,119
Current tax recoverable 7K BR AT U [0 7 78 25 712 3,207
Cash and bank deposits BE MIBITER 18 276,541 224,414
1,155,765 973,809
Total assets EE#E 2,078,091 1,965,768
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable AREEBEFREA
to equity shareholders of the AR RA K f# 1
Company
Share capital (@ 19 199,620 199,620
Other reserves H b 21 240,785 256,591
Retained earnings R A
— Proposed dividends — B A% B 34 54,895 55,894
— Others —Hft 521,880 476,044
1,017,180 988,149
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS (1,344) (939)
Total equity EmAE 1,015,836 987,210
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MK &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTIR)

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

—E—RE —T—H%F
=HB=+—H =HA=+—H
Note $'000 $'000
M aE T Tt
LIABILITIES 8&
Current liabilities ik B=Ki
Trade payables H S EMIRNK 22 259,352 218,892
Accruals and other payables EEtERA R
H b FE IR 5K 22 284,296 278,539
Receipts in advance T8 W R 3R 36,184 11,062
Bank borrowings RITIEE 24 331,528 350,810
Obligations under finance leases BEME TARE 23 6,848 7,891
Amounts due to associates JE ST B & R BINR R 11 6,741 6,536
Current tax payable NHAFE IR 25 59,262 51,988
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTE 15 = 26,280
984,211 951,998
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred revenue PEIE A 7 515 1,134
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 60,278 -
Obligations under finance leases EHEE T RIE 23 = 6,848
Provision for long service payments REIRBEERE 26 7,653 6,356
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFREEE 25 9,598 12,222
78,044 26,560
Total liabilities BEHAE 1,062,255 978,558
Total equity and liabilities EEhaEHEE 2,078,091 1,965,768
Net current assets REEEEE 171,554 21,811
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERARBAERS 1,093,880 1,013,770
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZEBE-—RFRAAZ+TEtRBHEFTSHERK

directors on 27 June 2016.

Ho Cheuk Fai
1] 2 8
Director

EF

The notes on pages 136 to 243 form part of these

financial statements.
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Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

R & Ik
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
RERER

for the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) &{& — T —"F =B =+—HILFE (LAETTIIR)

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RE
Note $'000 $'000
ih=g Fr T
Revenue ON 27 2,897,605 2,590,623
Cost of sales fHE AN 28 (2,546,039) (2,306,523)
Gross profit EF 351,566 284,100
Distribution and selling expenses DEREEER 28 (44,450) (57,110)
General and administrative expenses —BRITHEA 28 (143,064) (165,017)
Other income/gains and (losses) HAb WAz &
(E18) 27 (2,400) 27,307
Net valuation (loss)/gain on EELE (BE)
investment properties e 38 8 (11,281) 4,698
Operating profit R A 150,371 93,978
Finance income B 7 A 1,533 3,538
Finance costs B 7% AR 7R (16,039) (13,188)
Finance costs, net MR A FEE 30 (14,506) (9,650)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates JE{GEEE N ERA,
(E18) 11 294 (193)
Profit before taxation BBt AT % A 136,159 84,135
Income tax FR15H 31 (19,488) (8,429)
Profit for the year FERFA 116,671 75,706
Attributable to: PG :
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFTFRA 117,076 76,298
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B2 (405) (592)
116,671 75,706
Earnings per share attributable EKATERBFEA
to equity shareholders AL SRR T
of the Company
Basic and diluted ERREE 33 5.9 cents &1l 3.8 cents /&1l
The notes on pages 136 to 243 form part of these FI36E243B 2T AAMBHRE 2 — 25 -
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity EEREFERMcBENRENARGRERE

shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for Z R EFEIIRMIEE34 -
the year are set out in note 34.
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CONSOLDATED STATEMENT OF PROHAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FeiRaRAEMZEITAER

for the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) & &2 = —~"F=A=+—H 1Lt FE (B TIIR)

2016 2015
—E—AE —E—RF
Note $'000 $'000
h=3 Frx Tt
Profit for the year FEEA 116,671 75,706
Other comprehensive income FEHME2EEKA:
for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified TEEHSEEEm
to profit or loss: EEH
Remeasurement of provision for RERBEH 2B
long service payments = 26(b) (1,374) 3,444
Items that may be reclassified HErgeE D IEEIR
subsequently to profit or loss: mZIHHA
Exchange differences on translation REBINEE I B IwE
of financial statements of overseas FREEZERZ5
operations, net of $nil tax E|HIE 2 FE 21 (17.447) -
Reversal of translation reserve upon BEEBE AT Z
liquidation of an associate HME G BB 21 769 -
Fair value gains/(losses) on available-for- At HE S @MEE R T
sale financial assets, net of $nil tax B2z (&EE)
BHIAZRE 21 53 (2,302)
Reclassification of fair value gains on AfEESR
available-for-sale financial assets to BEANTEZ
profit or loss upon disposal Weas 70 H & B
Eg ‘*EK%EA 21 (201) -
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEKA
for the year (18,200) 1,142
Total comprehensive income FEZEVALERE
for the year 98,471 76,848
Attributable to: FEAL -
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFEE A 98,876 77,440
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B = (405) (592)
Total comprehensive income FEZEBALERE
for the year 98,471 76,848
The notes on pages 136 to 243 form part of these F136E243H M RAM B MK 2 — &5 -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FeRREIR

for the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) &{& — T —"F =B =+—HILFE (LAETTIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders

of the Company
ARARERBEEAERL
Share Other Non-
capital reserves Retained controlling Total
(Note 19) (Note 21) earnings interests Equity
R Hitv i
(KiEE19) (KisF21) REEF  FERER ERAE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B zx T Fr Fr Fr T
Balance at 1 April 2014 —E-MEMA-H&EH 199,620 257,626 482,139 (347) 939,038
Changes in equity for the BE-E-HAF=ZA=t-H
year ended 31 March 2015: LEERREH:
Profit/(loss) for the year FERM/ (F8) - - 76,298 (592) 75,706
Other comprehensive income i 2EMA - (2,302) 3,444 - 1,142
Total comprehensive income FHUABE - (2.302) 79,742 (592) 76,848
Dividend paid in respect of the previous year ~ +FEERMLE 34(b) - - (19,962) - (19,962)
Equity settled share-based transactions RO 2R 5 20 - 1,267 - - 1,267
Dividends paid in respect of the current year ~ RFE 2 RE 2 34(a) = = (9,981) = (9,981)
Balance at 31 March 2015 —E-AFZA=t+-RAz&H 199,620 256,591 531,938 (939) 987,210
Balance at 1 April 2015 “E-IFMA-AZ&R 199,620 256,591 531,938 (939) 987,210
Changes in equity for the year BE-_ZE-~E=ZRA=1-H
ended 31 March 2016: LEEREZE:
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREM/ (B8) - - 117,076 (405) 116,671
Other comprehensive income HE2EBEA - (16,826) (1,374) - (18,200)
Total comprehensive income RN E - (16,826) 115,702 (405) 98,471
Dividend paid in respect of the previous year & EERRE 34(b) - - (55,894) - (55,894)
Equity settled share-based transactions NRHZFH X5 20 - 1,020 - - 1,020
Dividends paid in respect of the current year ~ AFE BRI & 34(a) - - (14,971) - (14,971)
Balance at 31 March 2016 “E-REZRA=t-AZER 199,620 240,785 576,775 (1,344) 1,015,836
The notes on pages 136 to 243 form part of these E136E243B VST AR ERE Y — 25 o

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FeRKRER

for the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #{Z= —

E-—REZA=T—HILFE ABTIIR)

2016 2015
—E—AE —E—RF
Note $'000 $'000
h=3 Fr Tt
Cash flows from operating activities & EZH 2 HERE
Profit before taxation BR 5% Al 2 A 136,159 84,135
Share of (profits)/losses of associates FE(R s E A 7]
Carl), &8 11 (294) 193
Depreciation of property, M HWE &
plant and equipment wEZITE 7 83,870 78,969
Amortisation of land use rights T b AR 2 B 6 620 641
Amortisation of intangible assets BIZEEEE 9 3,543 2,400
Amortisation of deferred income BEFEW A 2 B3 7 (619) (618)
Gain on liquidation of an associate BEEE N R 2 W 27 (1,684) -
Loss on disposal of investment in an ek /N
associate 2B EBE 27 58 -
Equity settled share-based R 2225
transactions 20 1,020 1,267
Impairment losses of property, ME WE &
plant and equipment HE 2 BEEE 27 13,129 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment R BB 27 388 282
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At HE &R EE
financial assets 2 RIEEE 27 299 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale &R HE S &7t
financial assets BEZ W 27 (1,086) -
Gain on disposal of disposal group HEHESRES
classified as held-for-sale BEERE 2l 27 = (9,572)
Recognition/(reversal) of allowance B 5 K EH
for impairment of trade and other RO BRI 2
receivables R, ([El5E) 13 3,220 (821)
Write-down of obsolete and slow BRERFEFEZ
moving inventories THORL 16 - 848
Provision for long service payments REIRG 2 &EH 26 235 397
Fair value gain on derivative TTEERMIAZ
financial instruments NFEER 27 = (17,756)
Net valuation loss/(gain) on BEYEGERE
investment properties (W) F%8 8 11,281 (4,698)
Interest expenses B H 30 16,039 13,188
Interest income B U A 30 (1,533) (3,538)
Foreign exchange loss HNEERE W B 1B 3,655
Operating profit before working EEESEBATZ
capital changes carried forward R E 268,300 145,317
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HeRKRER

for the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) &{& — T —"F =B =+—HILFE (LAETTIIR)

2016 2015
—E—AE —E—RF
Note $'000 $'000
ih=g Fr T
Operating profit before working EEES#FAZ
capital changes brought forward ReERNEE 268,300 145,317
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERL, (M) 52,086 (187,300)
Increase in property development MR 2 & (67,510) -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and BH5NEE
bills receivable JE IR 3Kk 2.
(&), m (53,589) 20,499
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, ENREe R
deposits and other receivables HEWIRR 2
(&), m (37,756) 6,110
Decrease in amount due from an JE Ui Bt & R AR 5K
associate 2R - 6
Increase in trade payables B 5 ENIRK ZE M 40,582 36,553
Increase in accruals and JEtEBR R EMERN
other payables R 3K 2 12 0 14,323 45,775
Increase in receipts in advance T UL IR 3R 2 18 A0 25,122 2,704
Increase in amounts due JFE {1 Bg 5 A AR X
to associates 230 2,461 5,499
Decrease in derivative financial TTEEBITAEZRD
instruments (26,280) -
Cash generated from operations REEEZRS 217,739 75,163
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid SR EETUEEY) (13,230) (11,463)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded RERBNEN 3,283 6,187
Overseas tax paid R8I (1,771) (604)
Long service payments paid ENREARS® 26 (312) (130)
Net cash generated from operating K& EHEL 2
activities FRE 205,709 69,153
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FeRKRER

for the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) & &2 = —~"F=A=+—H 1t FE (B THIR)

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
Note $'000 $'000
h=3 Fr T
Cash flows from investing activities REZEH2HERE
Payment for the purchase of property, BEEW¥ HE &
plant and equipment B NEN (121,083) (189,194)
Payment for additions to investment ~ AREBIREWEZ
properties (e (5,181) (2,802)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  WE&E
plant and equipment 2 FT1E K 12,129 965
Proceeds from disposal of disposal HEREEESER
group classified as held-for-sale FHELE 2P - 72,500
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- HE A HHE S EE
sale financial assets EZ TR 5,264 -
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries W B M B A &) Z 13X
(net of cash and cash equivalents CRBRUEEATIS 23R
acquired) e RBEEEY) - (86,021)
Payment for acquisition of associates ~ UREEEE & A &l Z K 11 - (15,000)
Payment for capital injection in an RESERRZFEZ
associate N 11 (1,080) -
Proceeds from liquidation of an BEBERNFZ
associate Frig 3 11 15,896 -
Transaction costs for disposal of HELEEES R
disposal group classified as held-for- RFEHEZ
sale R 5K - (2,379)
Payment for acquisition of intangible ~ WEEEF EE ~
assets (N 9 (3,396) -
Interest received B U F B 1,137 3,253
Payment for the purchase of available- 8% & A £ HH & € &
for-sale financial assets BEZNK = (5,755)
Redemption of time deposits upon f& 0 B B 2 TE BATE X
maturity - 25,000
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits #EIFFR 2B L~
(3hn) 18 30,815 (30,815)
Net cash used in investing RETEMAZ
activities BRE (65,499) (230,248)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HFeERERER
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) &2 — T —"F =B =+—HILFE (LAETTIIR)
2016 2015
—E—AE —E—RF
Note $'000 $'000
ih=g Fr Tt
Cash flows from financing activities BEFE2RERE
Interest paid =R (15,949) (13,188)
New bank borrowings MRTTEE 321,921 316,883
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (275,315) (103,100)
Decrease in trust receipts bank loans B IRITER
2R (5,610) (4,154)

Capital element of repayment of BEREHEZ

finance leases NG ) (7,.891) (7,597)
Dividends paid 2R AR B (70,865) (29,943)
Net cash (used in)/generated from @& ES (FiH),~

financing activities EEZERS (53,709) 158,901
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand RERBREZEEY >

cash equivalents R, CGRD) 86,501 (2,194)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHOZzHEER

beginning of the year ReZEEY 193,599 195,793
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEERSEH 2

changes E4 (3,559) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZEER

end of the year BEeZEY 18 276,541 193,599

The notes on pages 136 to 243 form

financial statements.

part of these

F136E243A L MERAMBERR 2 — 8D -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in

- Metal and Plastic (“M&P"”) Business: manufacturing
and sale of metal and plastic products, including
computer server casings, moulds, plastic and metal
parts and predominately self-brand household
products;

- Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS"”) Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape data
storage, “point-of-sale” (“POS") system, medical
products, office automation products and other
computer peripherals;

—  Consumer and Services Business: building of
“Fullhouse World” Brand, provision of relevant
services, such as catering services, sales of themed
gifts, wedding gown and photography; and

—  Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real estate
project investment, property lease and development.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda on 29 October 1996. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The shares of the Company have been listed on Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"“Stock Exchange”) since 16 December 1996.

These consolidated financial statements are presented

in unit of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise
stated.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2016 comprise the Group and its interests in
associates. The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for investment properties, available-for-sale
financial assets and derivative financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses.

2 EEEEE
(a) MpIEH

WHBEHRRDREMEER 2B BMERESE
AI(TERAMBHREER]) ERBEREELS
At Rg ([BESETRAE]) B 2 A &5
ARZBEEMHREER FEGAER([F
AR ER])ERE BEAREARILEE
B R RMED] 2 B ER AR E M AR EL o Ut B IS RR N AT
B RAESs EWRA ([ ETRA]) Z@E8 I
BRE AEERMEZSHTHRBER M
To

EREEMHAGERMZEN REEBIIZE
BMBREEN AR AEENMARRR]Z NG
HIF AR ER KA R R ERA - M 2(c) R KA
ENERZFEASEERYCRRNA S
HELBEEFHRZIMBERRAZEFEE

(b) HMEBHRERZGREE

BHE_Z-R"E=-A=+—HLEEZHZEM
BHERBEANEE L HEE QAR - N E R
REAEBELRNERTEERERE HRED
X AHHESREERTESRTATURYF
BFfE-

RUENTEBEEMBRELEN VB REAFTREE
EREELHE AR RBRERBEFERRZER M
EE BE WARXHZERZEZR-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 A RSN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Cont’d)
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 4.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of which the following amendments are relevant to

the Group:

—  Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

—  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

—  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new or
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

() Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce the
complexity of accounting for certain contributions from
employees or third parties under defined benefit plans.
When the contributions are eligible for the practical
expedient provided by the amendments, a company is
allowed to recognise the contributions as a reduction of
the service cost in the period in which the related service
is rendered, instead of including them in calculating the
defined benefit obligation.

(i) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and 2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
Related party disclosures has been amended to expand the
definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of
the amounts incurred for obtaining the key management
personnel services provided by the management entity.

None of the above amendments have material impact to
the Group.

2 EESHEX(#®)

(0 SBFBREz28(E)

() (BEEER) 1R AERT [ELWEF -
RE W Tt &) - BB 1L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 A RSN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows, and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Cont’d)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(q))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate (see note 2(e)).

(e) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(e) Associates (Cont’d)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see note 2(n)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the investees, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(e) Associates (Cont’d)

If an investment is an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)).

(f) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(n)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R RO

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(g) Other investments in equity securities

The Group's and the Company's accounting policies for
investments in equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs.

Investments in securities which are not held for trading
are classified as available-for-sale securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the available-for-sales assets revaluation reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note

2(n)).

When these investments are derecognised or impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified to profit or loss.
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(h) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(l)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at
the end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot
be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit
or loss.

)] Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Gain or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery, installation,
testing and other direct costs. No depreciation is made on
construction-in-progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to other property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in
below.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives. The annual rates
used for the calculation of depreciation are:

- Leasehold land Over the lease term

- Buildings 2% to 4%

- Fixtures and leasehold 8% 10 33.33%
improvements

- Machinery 6% to 15%

- Moulds and tooling 15%

- Furniture and computer 15% 1o 33.33%
equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(k) Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which
various plant and buildings are situated for periods varying
from 10 to over 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the
land use rights.

()] Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

1) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included in property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities,
net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, in accordance with the accounting policies as set
out in note 2(j). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(n). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

()] Leased assets (Cont’d)

(i) Sale and leaseback arrangement resulting in finance
lease

A sale and leaseback arrangement which results in a
finance lease is a means whereby the lessor provides
finance to the lessee with the asset as security. To reflect
the substance of the transaction, any excess of sales
proceeds over the carrying amount of the asset, or any
deficit of sales proceeds lower than the carrying amount
of the asset, is deferred and amortised as an adjustment to
the depreciation of the asset.

(i) Operating leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases. Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets.

(m) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 2(n)). Operating rights
acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Amortisation of intangible
assets is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

2

(n)

()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Cont’d)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates accounted for under
the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 2(e)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance note 2(n)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 2(n)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
financial asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these financial assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Cont’d)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the financial asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss on
equity instruments are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and bills
receivables and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(n) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- land use rights;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is indication of impairment.

- Calculation of the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(n) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Cont’d)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see notes 2(n)(i) and 2(n)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 50 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(n) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment (Cont’d)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unguoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or in any
other period subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

(o) Inventories
0] Manufacturing

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method and
comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sales.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(o) Inventories (Cont’d)
(i) Property development

Inventories in respect of property development activities
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost and net realisable values are determined as follows:

- Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development for sale
comprises specifically identified cost, including the
acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages and other direct expenses
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the
property.

- Completed property held for sale

In the case of completed properties developed by the
Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the
total development costs for that development project,
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 50 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(p) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

(q) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and the redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

(r) Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

(s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(t) Employee benefits
() Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

Group companies operate a defined contribution plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due and are not reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.

(i) Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service
payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments to its employees upon the termination of their
employment or retirement when the employee fulfils
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(t) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(i) Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service
payments (Cont’d)

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting
period on high quality corporate bonds which have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.
The actuarial gains or losses are credited or charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the current period.

(iv) Other compensations

Other directors’ and employees’ compensations are
recorded as a liability and charged to profit or loss when
the Group is contractually obliged or when there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation and the
associated services are rendered by the employees.

(u) Share-based payments

The Company operated an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the Company received
services from employees in return for the granting of
equity instruments (options) of the Company. The fair
value of the employee services received in return for the
grant of the options was recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted:

- including any market performance conditions;

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

- excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions

(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(u)  Share-based payments (Cont’d)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting
period, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to the original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash received for the shares issued when the options
are exercised is credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to employees of a subsidiary in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of
employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in the subsidiary, with a
corresponding credit to equity.

(v) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 50 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(v) Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(v) Income tax (Cont’d)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair values
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those
assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(v) Income tax (Cont’d)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

1) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income. The amount of
the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee
as income from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with note 2(w)(ii)
if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 50 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Cont’d)

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(x) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is
shown net of returns and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as
described below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(x)  Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when the
products are delivered to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and the related risks and rewards
of ownership and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
delivery of goods are recorded as receipts in advance.

(i) Service income

Revenue from the provision of wedding-related services
and catering services is recognised when the service is
rendered.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset.

(iv)  Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for sale
is recognised upon the later of the signing of the sale and
purchase agreement and the completion of the properties,
which is taken to be the point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the property have passed to the
buyer.

V) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(y) Translation of foreign currencies
() Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(1) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(y) Translation of foreign currencies (Cont’d)
(1) Transactions and balances (Cont’d)

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the closing foreign exchange rates at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the translation
reserve. Goodwill is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the operation
outside Hong Kong.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

(2) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 50 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(aa) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(aa) Related parties (Cont’d)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Cont’d)

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(ab) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group's Finance
and Accounting department (“Group F&A") under policies
approved by the Board of Directors. Group F&A identifies,
evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close co-operation
with the Group’s operating units. The Board is responsible
for overall risk management which covers currency risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and cash management.

) Currency risk

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in HKS$, United States dollars (“US$") and
Renminbi ("RMB"). Currency risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations that are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
As HK$ are pegged against US$, management considers
that the Group is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk
with respect to Renminbi. Management will continue
to monitor foreign exchange exposure and will take
measures to minimise the currency translation risk. The
conversion rate of Renminbi to foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC Government.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HRXEREERLSBMIEATE
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL (&)
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a)  Financial risk factors (Cont’d) () EBBEKEEZ)

(i) Currency risk (Cont’d) (i) SN e (4E)

The following table details the currency portfolio of the

TERFANAEEUHEERBEEBAINEME
Group’s monetary assets/(liabilities) denominated in a =

BREU2EBUEE (BB 2EREE-

currency other than the functional currency of the entity to BYERE  HWEAS 2SR ARE B REIHE X
which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts H#a WIAB LY :
of the portfolio are expressed in HK$, translated using the
spot rate at the end of the reporting period:
At 31 March 2016
—8-AE=A=1+-H
Carrying

value HK$ us$ RMB Others

IREE BT EY AR¥ Hity

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

M T T T T T

Trade and bills receivable and B REBRIIET R
other receivables H i ERIRR 13 382,429 3,979 325,066 48,505 4,879
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEESHEE 14 18,393 504 17,889 = =
Cash and bank deposits ReRBAFER 18 276,541 48,494 183,119 43,454 1,474
Trade payables BHERIER 2 (259,352) (49,202) (182,257) (26,500) (1,393)
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R E MR IRR 2 (284,296) (44,347) (36) (236,451) (3,462)
Obligations under finance leases BEBRETHRIE 23 (6,848) (6,848) - - -
Bank borrowings BITEE 24 (391,806) (391,806) = = =
At 31 March 2015
—Z-hF=ZA=1+—H
Carrying

value HK$ Us$ RMB Others

REE BT e ;- i

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

M Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr

Trade and bills receivable and B REBRIIET R

other receivables H it FEURIR 5K 13 337,436 10,565 245,618 76,958 4,295
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 14 22,118 4,379 17,440 299
Cash and bank deposits Re RBAFER 18 224,414 53,951 84,419 84,148 1,896
Trade payables BHERIER 2 (218,892) (82,219) (135,230) (820) (623)
Accruals and other payables BT BRAREMERIRK 22 (278,539) (64,354) (1,389) (211,316) (1,480)
Obligations under finance leases BEHRETHRIE 23 (14,739) (14,739) - - -
Bank borrowings BITRE 24 (350,810) (350,810) - = -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
) Currency risk (Cont’d)

At 31 March 2016, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by
5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year and retained earnings would
have increased/decreased approximately $771,000 (2015:
increased/decreased $3,917,000), mainly as a result of
the net foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
Renminbi-denominated trade and other receivables, cash
and bank deposits and trade and other payables.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate of HK$
against the RMB had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk, including inter-company payables
and receivables with the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2015.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(i) Interest rate risk

Monetary assets/liabilities acquired at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group's
interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings and bank
deposits which are primarily issued at variable rates.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period:

3 UBEREEREMIAQFE
(&)

() MBEABER (&)
(i) FIEEER

NEFBMEREEMNEBACEBEEE 8
1%T§ZKE./_\)DJ|JE¥T£Ei/}|L§7“JTﬂ SN
B RE R - NERE 2 M RE KA EERNF
BRI ERERZRITEERRITER

TRAINBEMRAEEFEEERAER

RRZBR

At 31 March 2016 At 31 March 2015

—E-X¥=A=t-H —LF=A=+—H
Effective Effective
interest interest
Note rate % $'000 rate % $'000
k33 BERFE% Fr BEBRFIE% T
Fixed rate interest-bearing BEFREREE/
assets/(liabilities): (BB
Time deposits E BT 0.30% 117,137 2.4% 77,961
Obligations under finance leases AMEME T AL 4.44% (6,848) 4.44% (14,739)
Bank borrowings - Trust receipt loans BITEE-ETREER - - 2.35% (5,610)
Variable rate interest-bearing BHARBREE/
assets/(liabilities): (8f):
Bank deposits BITIFH 0.01% 157,770 0.01% 145,699
Bank borrowings BITEE 2.29% (391,806) 2.52% (345,200)

At 31 March 2016, with all other variables held constant,
if the interest rate had increased/decreased by 50 basis
points, the corresponding increase/decrease in interest
expenses on bank borrowings and interest income from
bank deposits at variable rates will result in a net decrease/
increase in the Group’s post-tax profit by approximately
$847,000 (2015: decrease/increase by $713,000).

ﬁé‘:?*ﬁiiﬂi‘f’ B -FrEEMEHHAE
MRS BFE R THSOMESD - HEE
/b Zﬂﬂfﬂ%é‘ ) 8 3 R SR 1T 17 30 R B IR
J\H%1§$;‘%W§ i FF R A 1 hn%)847,000
T (ZZE—RF: (R /#)713,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(i) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2015.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group’s
credit risk mainly arises from financial assets and deposits
with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding trade and
other receivables. For banks and financial institutions, only
independent parties with high credit rating are accepted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(i) Credit risk (Cont’d)

Customers are assessed and rated based on their credit
quality, taking into account of their financial position,
repayment history and other factors. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with satisfactory credit history. It performs
periodic credit evaluations/reviews of its customers. Other
receivables are assessed by reference to the historical
information on the default rates of the counter parties.
Individual risk limits are set by management and the
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. No credit
limit was exceeded during the year, and management does
not expect any significant losses from non-performance by
these relevant parties.

There is a concentration of credit risk in respect of trade
and bills receivable as the Group's sales are made primarily
to a few key customers. At 31 March 2016, the trade and
bills receivable from five largest customers accounted for
approximately 93% (2015: 78%) of the total trade and
bills receivable.

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies. Transactions in
relation to derivative financial instruments, if any, are only
carried out with financial institutions of high reputation.
The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(iv) Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines
available at all times.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
classified into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within twelve months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

3 HREREERERIALQTE
(&)

() MBEABER (&)

(v) HEEZER

BEEZADECARERSEERARRER
ERMERMCEERERFUHIAED A&
ERERNRBEENHARENESESH|
& BRI

AT ERAMAEB z2MEE ZABEAR
SEHRREANIMBEHTHRARADBEEGTAE
HiAR KPR BRSRAANARMAZEAESR
E-ARNMBBAZEELTERN-RTZABAR

M AR EEREERS -

Less than Between Between
On demand 1year 1and2years 2 andb5 years
RER PR—F —EWF “ERF
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
At 31 March 2016 R-B—AF
=A=+-—H
Trade payables 2 5 R IR K - 259,352 - -
Accruals and other JEET & R R HAh,
payables JIE 1~ 1R 3K - 232,962 — =
Obligations under finance A E T &E
leases - 6,988 - -
Bank borrowings RITEE 281,528 53,976 35,419 30,467
281,528 553,278 35,419 30,467
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 H¥REREERESMIAQNTE
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL (#&)
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’a)
(@)  Financial risk factors (Cont'd) (a) HMKEBEZ(Z)
(iv)  Liguidity risk (Cont’d) (v) wEEzER (&)
Less than Between Between
On demand 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years
BEK PR—F —EWF —ERE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Ft Fr 7
At 31 March 2015 R=-F—EHF
=RA=+-—H
Trade payables Z 5 e WU 5K - 218,892 - -
Accruals and other payables EAERR
HAth & - IR 5K - 219,433 - -
Structured foreign exchange B SN R HR
forward products (net settled) Em (CFELEE) - 3,844 - -
Obligations under finance leases ~ FR & fAE T & & - 8,386 6,988 -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 350,810 - - -
350,810 450,555 6,988 -
Derivatives settled gross: PTETHENUESE
HE
Structured foreign exchange RS M JINE AR HR
forward products: Em:
- Outflow — - (561,875) (7,750) -
— Inflow —mA - 550,291 7,575 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeqguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the net gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total bank borrowings and obligations under
finance leases less cash and bank deposits. Total capital is
calculated as the total equity as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group's strategy, which is unchanged from prior year,
is to maintain an acceptable net gearing ratio. The net
gearing ratios at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

3 UBEREEREMIAQFE
(&)

(b) EFXEBREE

AEEESERZBBRARREASZERBEL
Mﬁ/‘%f&igéﬁﬁz EN REaKAATRD

FRRRBEEBNEERE 2 &S  WERFR
1IZ§$,\M%

REFIFHEERNGERE AEELSHENT
BRRZBRE RETRR ZBA  BTHREE
EEENBERER -

%Wﬁﬁﬂ’&ﬂ—?ﬁ;’%%'Jﬁﬁi%ﬁﬂfﬂ%%ftt
ERHER B RIZRFEERRUEER
.:Jr FEERARTEEABELREMEE MK
ERERSRRTHER - BERNREDAE (WA
RAPBIMRERRI)

AEEZ R ﬁ&iTﬁ RABBFAIEZ 2
ERTEEN R R-_E—RNER T —RHF=
A=+— Ez@ﬁﬁﬁ“mrmT

2016 2015

—E-XEF —T—hHF

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Total bank borrowings IRITHREER 391,806 350,810
Obligations under finance leases REHEE T AE 6,848 14,739
Less: Cash and bank deposits BB e RIBITHER (276,541) (224,414)
Net borrowings FEE 122,113 141,135
Total equity EmiEE 1,015,836 987,210
Net gearing ratio FIRITEELE 12% 14%
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A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(c) Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision for trade
and bills receivable and trade payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (Level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (Level 3).

The Group has a team headed by the Assistant Accounting
Director performing valuations for the insurance contracts
which are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. A valuation report with analysis of changes in
fair value measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is reviewed and
approved by the Chief Financial Officer. Discussion of
the valuation process and results with the Chief Financial
Officer is held twice a year, to coincide with the reporting
dates.
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A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BX¥EREREERSRMIAEATE

AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c) Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

(0 AFEME(E)

(&)

The following table presents the Group's financial assets RZFE-—RFZA=Z=+—8B AEEUKBHEE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at 31 MAFEAEER I EHEELT :
March 2016:
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—hF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Assets: EE:
Level 1 F—IE
— Listed equity securities (note 14) —J: MEZRE S (ME14) - 4,379
Level 3 F=
- Key management insurance E ERERRAER
contracts (note 14) (MFzE14) 17,889 17,440
17,889 21,819
Liabilities: afE:
Level 2 F=
— Derivative financial instruments —PTESRMTA
(note 15) (M¥7E15) - 26,280

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and

BadErRENEETSRAMERNTIA ZRE
R E R EEEAR SERTE - RIARKARE X BB &

whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured BR-ZZE-—REF=-A=+T—H®R:

that are recognised at cost less impairment losses at 31

March 2016:
2016 2015

—E—-RE¥ —hRF

$'000 $'000
Fx T

Unlisted equity securities (note 14) JFELTRERFES (MsE14) 504 299
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A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(c) Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

- The fair value of structured foreign exchange
forward products is determined using Monte Carlo
simulation, taking into account of observable
market parameters such as forward exchange rates,
volatility and interest rates at the reporting date.

- Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis including dividend growth model, are used
to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

There were no transfers of financial assets/liabilities
between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy
classifications.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(c) Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

3 UBEREEREMIAQFE

(&)

(0 AFEME(E)

BHFE =B FlEFAEEH

Significant
Valuation unobservable Weighted
techniques inputs Range average
fhE FEREEE NI A EE T H
Key management insurance  Discounted cash flow Discount rate 2.0% -2.8% 2.3%

model
BRIRIR &R E A

contracts

EREEERRAR

The fair value of insurance contracts is determined using
the discounted cash flow model. The duration of the cash
flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are
determined by conditions in accordance with the terms
of the respective insurance contracts. The periodic cash
flow is estimated as gross redemption value and interest
income less surrender charges. The series of periodic net
income for the contracting periods is then discounted.
The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the
discount rate. As at 31 March 2016, it is estimated that
with all other variables held constant, a decrease/increase
in discount rate by 1% would have increased/decreased
the Group’s other comprehensive income by $3,034,000
(2015: $3,110,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(c) Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Cont’d)

3 UBEREEREMIAQFE
(&)

(0 AFEME(E)

BHE=ELFETEZEN (&)

The movement during the period in the balance of these HAREFE=RATEFEZ2EHRESHNT
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—0F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Key management insurance contracts FEEEERR
At 1 April mA—H 17,440 11,378
Payment for purchase of insurance contracts B AR A R 2 = - 5,755
Interest income recognised in profit or loss RIBRERZ M EBHA 396 286
Net unrealised gain recognised in FAREM 2 ERAER
other comprehensive income FEAREIR W A
during the year 53 21
At 31 March =A=+—8 17,889 17,440

There were no gains or losses for the years included in
profit or loss for these assets held at 31 March 2016 and
2015.

4  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates may be
different from the actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in future years are discussed below.

RZE—REN T — ﬁi_ﬂ_‘f‘ Eﬁﬁ?‘ir
BEEYTSBUaEBEEENER

4 SrtHER MG

i RAMRBAGERRA AR (REES
WIER TSR RE 2 A RFR) S i
SLACE

AEBEEHRREL G RBR- GaHhE
ROBEHEERGERHBR - ﬁﬁff&g&%@zﬂﬂiifi
ZEENABBZERMEFELERHABZ G R
RSN
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

4  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation for its property, plant and
equipment. The estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual economic lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives.
Management will adjust the depreciation where the useful
lives are estimated to be different from the previous
estimates. It will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold. Periodic reviews could result in a change in
depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in
future periods.

(b) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(n). In performing the impairment test,
the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations required the use of estimates.

(c) Impairment of operating rights

The Group tests whether the operating rights have
suffered any impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(n). The recoverable amount of
the operating rights is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations required the use of
estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

4  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

(d) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes allowance for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Allowance for impairment is applied to
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment of receivables requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectations
are different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and the
impairment loss recognised.

(e) Write-down of inventories

Inventories are written down to the net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value and write-downs
of inventories.

(f) Income taxes and other regulatory provisions

The Group is subject to income tax and other regulatory
provisions in various jurisdictions. There are transactions
for which the ultimate determination of such provisions is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax, deferred tax and other regulatory
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group's chief operating decision-maker reviews the
Group's internal reports periodically in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has
commenced its operation in the real estate business. The
respective financial results that were reported as part of
other segments in previous periods’ financial statements
are now separately reported to the Group’s most senior
executive management as one single operating segment
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment. Following the change in the composition
of the Group’s operating segments that in turn results
in a change in the reportable segments, the segment
information for the year ended 31 March 2015 has been
restated.

The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into four
main operating segments. They are (i) metal and plastic
business; (ii) electronic manufacturing services business;
(i) consumer and services business and (iv) real estate
business.

Management considers the business from both a
geographic and products and services perspective. From a
products and services perspective, management assesses
the performance of metal and plastic business, electronic
manufacturing services business, consumer and services
business and real estate business. And there is further
evaluation on a geographic basis (Japan, Hong Kong,
the PRC, Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and the
PRC), North America and Western Europe). Management
assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on operating profit. Segment information provided to
management for decision making is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the financial statements.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is not
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and accordingly, no segment assets or
liabilities information is presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Contd) 5 DEHRE (&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2016 are BHE-_T—R"F-A=1+—BHLFEZH&*
as follows: BT
2016
—E-RE
Electronic
Metal and manufacturing ~ Consumer Real
plastic services and services estate
business business business business Total
Gkl ErE HEER FEibE
¥ RI£EE BREEXEEE E S At
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
St St SFom S P
Segment revenue 2HBA
Reportable segment revenue BESBEA 1,565,623 1,369,868 26,068 1536 2,963,095
Inter-segment revenue D ERRUA (65,490) = = = (65,490)
Revenue from external customers REMNPEP ZHA 1,500,133 1,369,868 26,068 1536 2,897,605
Gross profit/(loss) 5,/ (£8) 277,729 89,101 (16,511) 1,247 351,566
Distribution and selling expenses and DEREEBRAR
general and administrative expenses —BRETRER (135,118) (34,218) (17,031) (1,147) (187,514)
Other income/gains and (losses) HiA Wmk (BE) 7,883 5,422 (16,254) 549 (2,400)
Net valuation loss on investment BEMEREBEFE
properties - - - (11,281) (11,281)
Operating profit/(loss) LERH,/ (B8) 150,494 60,305 (49,796) (10,632) 150,371
Operating profit/(loss) includes: E2RN,/ (BB aE:
Depreciation e 72,638 3,431 7,625 176 83,870
Amortisation of land use rights TR B 424 187 - 9 620
Amortisation of intangible assets EVAE 2 HE 1,143 - 2,400 - 3,543
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of ~ FRE R #TF SHUA,/
obsolete and slow-moving inventories (MR 2 ) 7,081 (7,081) = = =
Recognition of allowance for impairment of 2 5 & £t e Uz ik 505 (&
trade and other receivables BE ER 3,220 = = = 3,220

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 F #



188

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)

5 Z2E®RE @)

2015 (Restated)
—Z-RF(BEF)
Electronic
Metal and  manufacturing Consumer Real
plastic services  and services estate
business business business business Total
ikl ETEE HEER FiE
£% RIE®B REEES £% GRS
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Segment revenue 2BBA
Reportable segment revenue BEHBEA 1,140,715 1,489,483 26,387 - 2,656,585
Inter-segment revenue GEIEEON (65,962) - - - (65,962)
Revenue from external customers REMDPEE ZWA 1,074,753 1,489,483 26,387 - 2,590,623
Gross profit/(loss) M/ (£8) 213,784 84,150 (13,834) - 284,100
Distribution and selling expenses and AERHEEEAR
general and administrative expenses —RRITHER (143,649) (38,316) (38,610) (1,552) (222,127)
Other income/gains HthA /s 19,106 4,493 3,699 9 27,307
Net valuation gain on investment REMEMBERRZE
properties - - - 4,698 4,698
Operating profit/(loss) mEER/ (B1B) 89,241 50,327 (48,745) 3,155 93,978
Operating profit/(loss) includes: "ERR/ (BB
Depreciation nE 61,796 4,816 12,092 265 78,969
Amortisation of land use rights TR B 478 146 - 17 641
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEEEE - - 2,400 - 2,400
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of ~ HEREREE
obsolete and slow-moving inventories MR (HRL 2 B8 1,386 (538) - - 848
Reversal of allowance for impairment of & 5 J H 4t fE U IR ZUR (&
trade and other receivables BB EE (681) (140) - - (821)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)

A reconciliation of operating profit to profit before
taxation is provided as follows:

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—HF

$'000 $'000

T T

Operating profit £ 150,371 93,978
Finance income B #5 WA 1,533 3,538
Finance costs B 7% AR 7R (16,039) (13,188)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates JEAEEE S RN EREF, (E58) 294 (193)
Profit before taxation B 5 A i K 136,159 84,135

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue and (ii) the
Group's land use rights, property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets and investments
in associates ("specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of revenue is based on the country
in which the final destination of shipment is located or
services are provided. The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset, in the case of land use rights,
property, plant and equipment and investment properties
and the location of the operations to which they are
allocated, in the case of intangible assets and investments
in associates.

TNRINFA MR E R 2 0)A KB 2 WA K(i)
AEBZzI0ERE - NE BEERE KE
ME - BREEMMBERRZRE ([FBEIF
MBEE]) 2PIEEZER - WAL RE
REFRENEBNMIRERHAEBRK DK -
BERBEEMEHR ZED AT HER
B-ME BERRBRREVEIREZEE
REZIFRME  MAETLEERNEE QR
BNRBEMOBEE A -

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENBEEZWA BEXRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XRE —T-1%F —E-XRE —T-1%F
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tx Tr T T
Hong Kong (place of domicile) A5 (fEi) 828,689 874,995 80,608 94,583
Japan AR 397,688 438,204 - -
The PRC ey 854,398 714,285 735,145 786,722
Asia (excluding Japan, SM(FREAR.

Hong Kong and the PRC) BERTE) 87,302 93,877 2,794 2,499
North America JEEM 370,674 254,999 10 1
Western Europe e 358,854 214,263 = -
Sub-total I 2,068,916 1,715,628 737,949 789,232

2,897,605 2,590,623 818,557 883,815
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A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)

The Group’s customer base includes three (2015: four)
customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group's revenue. For the year ended 31 March 2016,
the total revenue from sales of merchandise in the metal
and plastic business and electronic manufacturing services
business, including sales to entities which are known
to the group to be under common control with these
customers, amounted to approximately $2,283,542,000
(2015: $2,091,864,000) and arose in all geographical
regions in which the businesses are active. Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from these customers
are set out in note 3(a)(iii).

The Group’s sales are made primarily to a few key
customers. For the year ended 31 March 2016, the
revenue derived from five largest customers accounted
for approximately 91% (2015: 90%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

5 Z2E®RE @)

REBA=-Z(ZE—RF NEFIXS
ERBRAEBWRAZION BHE-_ZT—KNF
A=t HLEFE REHERLSBRBEK
NEFEERIEK z2EGZBA(BERR
AREBANZHZERFPARZFZERZ
S EFE) 4 A2,283,542,000L (Z 2 — R & :
2,091,864,0007t) 'R EBEBEKEZR A
WERHELA BRERFEEZEERRET
BRI FE3(a)ii) °

AEBEBZHETESHLEBREPANK -#H
E-E-—RF=ZA= ‘|’ HIEFE WAKE
AAEFMAEEBWALNN % (ZE—HF:
90% ) °

6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6 T b f5E FARE
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt

Net book amount at the beginning FYIREFE

of the year 24,072 23,777
Additions NE - 936
Amortisation charged to cost of sales HSHET ASHE AR (620) (641)
Transfer to property under development EREEEYE (5,038) -
Transfer to completed property held for sale 8 Z= £k ¥ % (807) -
Net book amount at the end of the year FRIREFE 17,607 24,072
Cost X < 23,614 32,349
Accumulated amortisation ZET#E Y (6,007) (8,277)
Net book amount at the end of the year FRIREFE 17,607 24,072

The land use rights located in the PRC are held under lease
terms of 50 years expiring in April 2043 to October 2055.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

7 ME -BERRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

Machinery
HaE
Fixtures and Furniture and
Leasehold Construction- leasehold Tools and computer
land Buildings  in-progress improvement Owned Lleased  equipment  equipment Total
RER BRR
HELH BF EEIR NE£E BE HE IERRE EMRE At
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i T i i T i i r
Cost: RA:
At 1 April 2015 “E-R¥mA-A 1,663 214,025 143,929 149,382 443,390 23,650 28,824 85,899 1,090,762
Additions HE - 8,589 46,250 12,376 42,356 - 1,293 10,219 121,083
Disposals HE - (588) - (28,199) (12,667) - (2,545) (10,212) (54,211)
Exchange adjustments RaRE - - - (557) (8,177) - (859) (2,149) (11,742)
Transfer a5 - 184,269 (189,890) 5,462 - - - 159 -
Transfer to property under ~ BEEEENE
development - (75,168) - (52,852) - - - - (128,020)
Transfer to completed BREMINE
property held for sale - (2,423) - - - - - - (2,423)
At 31 March 2016 —E-RE
=ZA=+-H 1,663 328,704 289 85,612 464,902 23,650 26,713 83,916 1,015,449
Accumulated depreciation, ZHTE  ##HR
amortisation and HEBE:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2015 “T-REmA-A 790 83,942 - 87,533 362,025 8,065 22,105 62,110 626,570
Charge for the year FEAR 27 23,388 - 18,200 27,979 5,205 1,643 7428 83,870
Written back on disposals HEZHE - (588) = (19,.212) (12,463) = (916) (8,515) (41,694)
Exchange adjustments RBRE - - - (144) (5,094) - (659) (1,530) (7,427)
Transfer LB - - - (158) - - = 158 =
Transfer to property under ~ EREEENF
development - (53,997) - (45,003) - - - - (99,000)
Transfer to completed BREmINE
property held for sale - (509) - - - - - - (509)
Impairment losses HEBE - - - 9,151 - - 186 3,792 13,129
At 31 March 2016 —T-RF
=A=t+-H 817 52,236 - 50,367 372,447 13,270 22,359 63,443 574,939
Net book value: REFE
At 31 March 2016 ZE-RE
=A=+-H 846 276,468 289 35,245 92,455 10,380 4,354 20473 440,510

During the year

equipment.

ended 31 March 2016, the directors
conducted a review of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and identified certain items have been
impaired. Accordingly, impairment losses of $13,129,000
(2015: $nil) had been recognised to write down the net
carrying amounts of these items of property, plant and

HE - ZT— X "F=ZA=+—BILtFER EF
EHASEE2YWE BELIKEETERN L H
RETEHEELERE - At EERBEEIE
13,129,000 0 (ZZE—HF &) UMIRZSE Y
¥ HMEAEKEER ZIREFE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 3R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 A RSN LABTTHIR)

Wz N N
7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YE - BERSKE#
(Cont’d)
Machinery
#a
Fixtures and Furniture and
Leasehold Construction- leasehold Tools and computer
land Buildings in-progress  improvement Owned Leased equipment equipment Total
HER FRR
RELH B FRIE nERE BE HE IAR%AE ElMRE 2
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T i Fr T i Fr T i
Cost: BA:
At 1 April 2014 “Z-MEmA—A 1,663 211,878 49,777 137,451 416,655 23,650 30,736 76,609 948,419
Additions AE - 2,147 94,152 14,585 30,942 - 3,229 16,163 161,218
Disposals HE - - - (2,654) (4,207) - (5141) (6,873) (18,875)
At 31 March 2015 —E-TF
=A=1+-H 1,663 214,025 143,929 149,382 443,390 23,650 28,824 85,899 1,090,762
Accumulated depreciation, Z5HHTE - B#HR
amortisation and HEBE:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2014 —Z-WFmMA—A 763 64,082 - 71,860 341,348 543 25,098 61,535 565,229
Charge for the year FENG 27 19,860 - 17,622 24,677 7,522 2,138 7,123 78,969
Written back on disposals it & Z #i[] - - - (1,949) (4,000) - (5,131) (6,548) (17,628)
At 31 March 2015 —Z-hf
=A=+-H 790 83,942 - 87,533 362,025 8,065 22,105 62,110 626,570
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2015 “E-1%
=ZA=1+-H 873 130,083 143,929 61,849 81,365 15,585 6,719 23,789 464,192
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A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont’d)

Depreciation expense of $77,865,000 (2015:
$69,610,000) and $6,005,000 (2015: $9,359,000)
has been charged to cost of sales and general and
administrative expenses, respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, management
decided on a demolition and redevelopment plan for
certain buildings of the Group. The estimated useful
life of these buildings was revised to three years with
an annual depreciation rate of 33.33% starting from
1 April 2014. The change in estimated useful life is
accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting
estimate. The carrying amount of these buildings at 1
April 2014 amounted to $75,054,000. As a result of the
change in estimated useful life, the depreciation charge
in respect of these buildings increased by $19,845,000
and $19,664,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
2016. No further depreciation is charged to these buildings
upon the Group has executed the “Land Use Right Grant
Contracts” granted by the Dongguan Land and Resources
Bureau, to change the land use from industrial use to
commercial and residential use in March 2016.

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and buildings at
their net book values are analysed as follows:

7 YE -BERRKE®)

WE®EHAT77,865,0000 (-5 —FHF:
69,610,000 ) 6,005,000 ( —Z & — 4 :
9,359,0007T) D BIst A E K AN & — & M 1T
B -

HE-_Z—AF=-A=Z=+—HLFERN BTEE
MAKBETEEYAT TIRBRENERGT
Eloe ZEEEM AT B FEET T EMFE
MEFAR=F H_ZT—NFNA—HEBEFH
ER(BF]A33.33% Bt AFBzRE L
RARAEz B EE - ZFHERZE
—EFEMA—HZIKMEFEAT75,054,0007T
ARG ERAFRHZNE ZSEF2HESR
AREBE-_Z—RAEER-_ZTE—R"E=-ZA=1+—
B E 1 5H019,845,0007T & 19,664,0007T °
RZE—ARF=ZRA AEEEEYHREMEHLT
BRAETZILiERELHZSR] B
RedI#zxARrERARERE EmMELZS
BF2HEER-

AEBEHETMEBF I EREHEIKREFE
pa)im UM

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—HF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong, M&EEEAZHELH N
held on leases between 10 to 50 years EF10R50F - HE 2,398 2,503
Buildings in the PRC, held on leases A BB EF 102504
between 10 to 50 years HzHEE 274,916 128,453
277,314 130,956
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 A RSN LABTTHIR)

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment held under finance
leases

At 31 March 2016, the net book value of machinery
held under finance leases was $10,380,000 (2015:
$15,585,000). There were no additions (2015: $Nil) to
machinery held under finance leases during the year ended
31 March 2016.

Sale and leaseback transaction

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group entered
into a sale and leaseback transaction on certain machinery.
A disposal gain of $1,803,000 has been deferred and
amortised over the lease term of three years. At 31 March
2016, the deferred revenue amounted to $515,000
(2015: $1,134,000). Amortisation of deferred revenue of
$619,000 (2015: $618,000) has been recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2016.

7 YE -BERRE®)

REREHEFAE2UE BERRE

R-E—RNFZA=+—H AEEREHE
BAHE#EREFEAS10,380,000 (- F
— A F :15,585,0007) HE-_FTE—XNF=H
—+—HLtFR EFEREHERE 2HS
(ZE—HF:E)-

EREDXRS

HE - Z-NE=A=1+—BIER K&
EpE THRITIVELAALBDIZ HE RS
1,803,000t R = FHEHANIELE R EHE - KN =
E-R"FZA=+—H8 ELEWKAK5150007T
—E—HF:1,134,00070) o HE T —NF
ZA=+t—"H REZHRZBHETWA R
619,0007C (—Z—FH4:618,0007T) °

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 REWE
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—H%F
$'000 $'000
T FIT
Beginning of the year F1 336,250 240,000

Additions: NE

— through acquisition of subsidiaries —FEBRWENE AT - 88,750
— others —H A 5,181 2,802
Exchange differences HirER (13,350) -
Fair value adjustment NFEFEE (11,281) 4,698
End of the year FK 316,800 336,250

The investment properties are under construction and
located in the PRC under lease terms of 40 years expiring
in August 2050 to January 2051.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &

EREZERZTPREVEDRESBE+F (R
—ERTFNAZZER—F-ARNB)ZHEE
HIm#5 A o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair value measurement of properties
() Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
investment properties and investment property under
development disclosed at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement as follows:

8 REWME®
W AT ENE

Q)  RFEBR

TREINAEERENVENERTREYE -
NBEMREEERBEZAFE LRBFBIME
BEENFR[AFEEFE] 2EZNES
ZERFEER - R VEFEBRZDETIIEM
BERATHRAABEZABEEREZEM

B

Fair value measurements

as at 31 March 2016 categorised into
R-B-AR"E=A=1+—-H
AVEREDIBAUTER

Fair value

at 31 March
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

—E-RF

=A=+-A
ZAYE E—fE E=fE E=E
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T

Recurring fair value REMEDATE
measurements ZitE

Investment properties in the PRC ~ R E 2R EME 316,800 - - 316,800
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair value measurement of properties (Cont’d)

() Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

8 REWMREz#@)
WEZDFENGE(F)

()  NFEER(E)

Fair value measurements
as at 31 March 2015 categorised into
RZZE-hF=A=+—H
ATEAENBERUTER

Fair value

at 31 March
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

—E-hF

=A=+—H
ZRNFE F—E E_E F-IE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T Tt FIT

Recurring fair value REMAFEZTE
measurements

Investment properties in the PRC ~ RAE 2 R EYE 336,250 - - 336,250

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The valuation of the Group's investment properties as at
31 March 2016 was conducted by RHL Appraisal Limited,
an independent professional valuer, which has among
its staff members of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
The investment property was valued on the basis that it
would be developed and completed in accordance with
the Group's latest development proposals. In arriving at
the fair value, direct comparison approach by making
reference to the comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant market was adopted. And it had taken into
account the construction costs that would be incurred
to complete the development to reflect the quality of
the completed development. The Chief Financial Officer
has discussion with the independent professional valuer
in the valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed at each interim and annual
reporting date.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair value measurement of properties (Cont’d)
) Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “net valuation (loss)/gain on
investment properties” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

(1) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

8 REWE®
M2 AFETE(EF)
() RFEBER(E)

REWEZ A TFEHRBIRGEARERR 2[R
BEWEMGE(BE) WEFE] —BE®R -

(i)  BHEZERAFEHEZEN

Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs Range
fEERI TAIBE @A fhEt EE
Investment properties —Investment Market comparison Discount rate on quality and
properties in the PRC approach location of the properties 5-10%
REME-NPBEZREME 35 th BO% BFERIME 2 BRE
9  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 HEFEE
Operating Computer
rights Goodwill software Total
ReE Gk BRI R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT T T T
Cost: B
At 1 April 2014 and —T-NFMA—-AK
31 March 2015 —Z—RF=ZA=+—H 24,000 1,091 8,873 33,964
At 1 April 2015 —ZT-RFMNA—H 24,000 1,091 8,873 33,964
Additions NE - - 3,396 3,396
At 31 March 2016 “Z—-RF=ZRA=+—H 24,000 1,091 12,269 37,360
Accumulated amortisation: &t # 8
At 1 April 2014 —F-mFEMA—H (3,000) - - (3,000)
Charge for the year FEMG (2,400) - - (2,400)
At 31 March 2015 “E-RF=A=1+—H (5,400) - - (5,400)
At 1 April 2015 —E-hFMA—H (5,400) - - (5,400)
Charge for the year FEMG (2,400) - (1,143) (3,543)
At 31 March 2016 ZE-AF=ZA=1+—H (7,800) - (1,143) (8,943)
Net Book value: R E R E
At 31 March 2016 —E-RF=ZA=1+—8 16,200 1,091 11,126 28,417
At 31 March 2015 “ZT—RF=A=+—H 18,600 1,091 8,873 28,564
Amortisation of $3,543,000 (2015: $2,400,000) was 3,543,000t 2 # 35 (= F — A % : 2,400,000
included in general and administrative expenses in the L) BEEGREERRP —REITHER-

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

Operating rights represent the rights to use the trademark
“Fullhouse” for the restaurant business in the PRC and
South East Asia. Goodwill arose from the acquisition of
the Fullhouse Group and is allocated to the restaurant
business, which is an identified cash-generating unit
within the consumer and services business segment.
Management determines the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit of the restaurant business to conduct
an impairment assessment of goodwill and operating
rights.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period for the restaurant business. Cash flows
beyond the period covered in approved budgets are
extrapolated using the key assumptions stated below.
The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the business in which the cash-generating
units operate. The discount rates used reflect specific risks
relating to the restaurant business within the consumer
and services business segment.

9 ®|EEE®)

LR KX FER [Fullhouse | 2 BIERFE K
REDREEREB 2EM- 8 EFullhouse
SEELZEE HNERERER HRA/HE
ENRBEXG AR CACELENM - EEE
BErEREGzcReELEU 2 KOS5
B E R L EETRERNRE-

ReEEETZzZAREREEREENE
AETANAREBEEEBHECEREBOLF
WM BBEEZHAMRERETRD - BBZAFH
ZHERERBUMEFHERERELEE %15
RETNBARCELETREZEZBZ2RYF
B ER-BRERRNBEERRFEXEEH D
Mz EREB2HKRER -

2016 2015
“E-XRE —T-h%¥

The PRC Hong Kong Malaysia The PRC Hong Kong Malaysia

HE Bk ERAE HE BE BRAER

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T T T T T T

Budgeted gross margin HEERERN 17% 14% 17% 22% 30% 21%
Growth rate used to extrapolate ~ AREERBEELR L

cashflows beyond budget period ~ R H 2 ERR 2% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Pre-tax discount rate TATBA R 20.92% 16.04% 11.96% 19.81% 16.02% 13.34%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for market
development. Gross margin represents revenues less
directly attributable costs of operating restaurant business.
The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
higher than its carrying amount, including goodwill and
operating rights, based on value-in-use calculations.
Accordingly, no impairment was recognised in respect of
the restaurant business cash-generating unit during the
year ended 31 March 2016.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B

10 SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as
at 31 March 2016 are:

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 30 R B o

DEBRBPIN LUBTTAIR)
10 KMIEBAT

RARBIR_ZE-—RF=ZA=+—HXZEWERQ
Az E R

Principal activities and Particulars of issued/

Name types of legal entity place of operation paid-up capital Interest held
TR B R
B EEEERR TEXBREERH B/ EHBRE BHEE
Karrie Industrial Company Hong Kong, limited liability  Sale of computer server casings, office automation Ordinary shares of $1,000 100%
Limited company products, visual accessories, plastic and metal  Non-voting deferred shares
parts, metal stamping dies and plastic injection  of $5,000,000 (i)
moulds and provision of management services,
Hong Kong
EHERBERAA BEERELELT HERRBERIR BLENEER &ifk1,0007
FRAN ZBREBIN 2BPERAR EREEELR
EREARRREERT BE 5,000,0007()
Karrie Technologies Company Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Manufacturing and sale of plastic parts, Ordinary shares of 100%
Limited company sale of metal stamping dies and plastic $30,000,000
injection moulds, provision of electronic
manufacturing services and investment holdings,
Hong Kong
REARFBRAERRA BRERELELT HEREELERHE HESBHRERAR  HBK30,000,0007T
TERE REBFEERIRBR
REER &8
Karwin Engineering Company Hong Kong, limited liability  Design, manufacture and sale of computer server Ordinary shares of $10 100%
Limited company casings, office automation products and visual -~ Non-voting deferred shares
accessories; sale of plastic and metal parts, of $100 (i)
metal stamping dies, plastic injection moulds
and investment holdings, Hong Kong
REEMIRERAD BEERELELT Rt HERHERRSERII R L@R107T
MAEXEER R RAN: ERFBETA1007T()
HELBREBRMG 2BPEER-
TEREARREER BB
RERHERBERS The PRC, limited liability Manufacture of computer server casings, office  Paid-up capital 100%
BRAA company automation products and metal parts, the PRC $72,000,000 (ji)
FEERETAR HERRBERIR BLEXEERK B #1# 7572,000,0007T (i)

B T E
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

10 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

10 MEAFE (#)

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued/

Name types of legal entity place of operation paid-up capital Interest held
HM/ Bt SR
A% EEERER TEEBREERH BRT/ERRE BEEE
FREERERERLE The PRC, limited liability Manufacture of computer server casings, office  Paid-up capital 100%
RAE] company automation products, visual accessories, $45,000,000 (i)
moulds and plastic parts; provision of electronic
manufacturing services, the PRC
FEREREEAT SLERRBEMIF BLENEER B 518 7845,000,0007 i)
FREN BARZEBHM RHETEE
RIRH &
RRREETEEERAA The PRC, limited liability Property holding, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
company $174,000,000 (iv)
FEREREEAT HENE fH B 51 78174,000,0007Tiv)
FEEAEEAERE The PRC, limited liability Property development and management, Paid-up capital 100%
BRRA company the PRC US$20,000,000 (v)
FEBEREEAT WEERERER HHE B 814 720,000,000 75(v)
R mEHRERRE The PRC, limited liability Operation of restaurants, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
BRAF company $5,000,000 (vi)
TREREELR BEEE TE B 84 %5,000,0007T(vi)
FEEFEZERDA The PRC, limited liability Property holding, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
company US$16,000,000 (vii)
TEEREELR RENE +HE B 84 %16,000,000% 7T (vi)
RERAFEMEREABRAR  The PRC, limited liability Property development, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%

company

FEARREAR

ES

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &

US$11,500,000 (viii)
£ #1& 711,500,000 7T (viii)
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Notes:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group.
These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
dividends, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding
up unless a sum of 200,000,000,000 has been distributed by
the relevant companies to holders of the ordinary shares.

FEFEEZEZBASABMRAT is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
15 years up to 19 May 2026.

FEEEZLZZBALABMRAT is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
15 years up to 24 May 2026.

RERBEETEEARAA is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
25 years up to 18 February 2030.

BHEEMEBEANEREZEER AT is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
40 years up to 2 December 2049.

REMEHRELREBMR AT is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
15 years up to 17 September 2029.

HEFFEEBR AT is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
established in the PRC with an operating period of 40 years up
to 22 March 2051.

REREIFMERZEAR QA is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
20 years up to 17 September 2033.

10
B 5

0)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

i

WIPNGIRE ),

BN EREEROWIEHAEBATES LERHE
BERE - NEESZRE -BRIFEBLARNLEERM
AR Rk 3% 2 48 BE R 5200,000,000,0007T : 7 Al
ZEROEES ZEMDIR

REREREERASARAR I —RPEKIE2E
BEENELE HEXHRATRFE RIT-RF
A+ ABER-

ReRERLBBASBRAR N —RABEKYEE
BENEDLE HLE¥EYRATHE NS -AF
AAZ+MHAEER-

REREETEXARARAD—RPBEKIZEER
SNERFE REEHRA-_+RF RNZT=2F =
A+ NABRER-

BREZANESAEREERAR ) —RREKLEE
HANEGE HEXHBRAN+TF R_TMAF
+=—B=—HE®-

REMEHRERRBARAR I —RPEKIE2E
BEENELE HEXHRATRFE R-T-NF
NA+EBRER-

HEBFEERRARD—RNABEKIZEERINE
¥ HEXHBRR/N+F R-_TR-—F=A-+=
B & e

REHAEHERNRERAT D —RFER L2 EH

BHERE HEEXHMBRA—+F NZT==FN
A+tBER-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

11  INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 11 REZEQ/ARZRE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
SFoe Tt
Share of net assets ELEESRE
Beginning of the year F 1) 30,737 15,930
Acquisition of associates g B B 2 N ) = 15,000
Capital injection AE 1,080 -
Share of profits/(losses) of associates JEEEE 2 R ENEFR, (E58) 294 (193)
Disposal HE (16,261) -
Exchange difference HiazR (627) -
End of the year FIK 15,223 30,737
Balances with associates SN T &t
Amounts due to associates (note 36) JEAH B 2 R B IR 3R (M 7E36) 6,741 6,536
The outstanding balances due to the associates are ZEBERNRIMAEERN ZIRRAEER
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, and PEAE WEERKEER RABTREN-

are denominated in HKS$.

Particulars of the material associate of the Group, which is AEEEZBE AR ZFMEBAOT - ZHBEQ
an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is AN LEMARERE WIAAEBEMEWME-
not available, is as follows:

D

Proportion of

ownership interest

BEERLA
Place of incorporation/ Principal activities Particulars of Group's
establishment and and place issued and effective Held by a
Name of associate types of legal entity of operation paid up capital interest subsidiary
Rt ER i
BENTEB EEERER TEXBREEHH BRI/ EHARK AEEES AAKE
REMBERSEMERAR The PRC, limited liability Automation solution for Paid up capital 30% 30%
("Cuifeng”) company metal stamping, RMB3,714,400
manufacturing, retailing
and wholesaling, the PRC
REMBERSEWERAR FEERAEERF cERHPEEBBEIR 2E  CHER3 714400
([2E]) TERBES Tl AR

202  Karrie International Holdings Limited 7B 12 K5 R 2 &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

TIS Karrie Technologies (H.K.) Company Limited (“TIS"),
an associate of the Group by then, was liquidated during
the year ended 31 March 2016. Upon its liquidation, cash
of HK$15,896,000 was received. A gain on liquidation of
$1,684,000 was recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss.

Summarised financial information below represents

11 REBEQTZRE(#)

EA@i_7 NEZR=1+—HBItFEER K&
ﬁ%/‘%ﬁiwﬁz(%%)ﬁﬁﬁ A (I&Z&])

%&/i” B E R H U F|15,896,000TIRE 7B
uézm1,684,0007cﬁé,ﬁ?mEﬁﬁﬁ?g\o

ATHEFHES KRAEDEGF RHEXR

amount shown in the material associates adjusted by SEERERA CXEEABRZERBE QA
the Group for equity accounting purposes and before -
adjustments for the Group's effective share:
Cuifeng TIS
Zig ER
2016 2015 2016 2015
—i —ERF —-RE T-RF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T Tr T
Gross amounts of the associates & AR Z B
Current assets MEEE 18,833 27,148 - 38,132
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,435 703 - -
Current liabilities nYaE (1,208) (11,442) - (7,735)
Net assets/equity BE/En3E 19,060 16,409 = 30,397
Revenue LN 29,637 13,024 = -
Loss from continuing operations =S o) (303) (847) - _
Total comprehensive income FERXEKALE
for the year (303) (847) - -
Reconciled to the Group's interests IEIZ AEEREE
in the associates AR ER
Gross amounts of net assets of the ~ BERRIZ FEEMD
associate 19,060 16,409 - 30,397
Fair value adjustments on identifiable  WEEF 883 2 AT R E
intangible assets upon acquisition BENTEAR 31,560 32,957 - -
Capital injection by the Group AEETE (14,400) (15,000) = -
36,220 34,366 - 30,397
Group's effective interest AEEZERER 30% 30% - 49%
Group's share of net assets of AEEREBEAF
the associate BE¥E 10,866 10,310 - 14,895
Goodwil BE 4,258 4,436 - -
Carrying amount in the Rie T BERKxTIREE
consolidated financial statements 15,124 14,746 - 14,895
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

1"

individually material:

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

Aggregate information of associates that are not

1

RBERRZRE (@)
ERFEAMERT 2B EHR

2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—hHF
$'000 $'000
T Tz
Aggregate carrying amount of RERE B mKRFERIFFEKXR
individually immaterial associates in e N R EETIREE
the consolidated financial statements 929 1,096
Aggregate amounts of the Group's AEEEGZLEHENTZ
share of those associates: BT EE:
Profit from continuing operations REFELEEE ZBA 385 61
Total comprehensive income ZEHWABE 385 61
£ 3k " =
12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 12 RESBEZEMIA
CATEGORIES
Available-for-sale
Loans and receivables financial assets Total
B K EBIR AfLELREE af
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
=$-xF “F-HF Z¥-AF I 0F Z¥-KF T IF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr T Tr T
Assets BE
Trade, bills and other receivables B 5 Z 4% Kk H g
(note 13) & (FI5E13) 378,408 336,635 - - 378,408 336,635
Prepayments (note 13) P EAE) 35,760 41,669 - - 35,760 41,669
Deposits (note 13) & (M:13) 52,356 50,110 - - 52,356 50,110
Available-for-sale financial assets A4t HEL B EE
(note 14) (WizE14) - - 18,393 22,118 18,393 22,118
Cash and bank deposits (note 18) B4 kiR777F 5 (HFH18) 276,541 224,414 - - 276,541 224,414
743,065 652,828 18,393 22,118 761,458 674,946

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &



12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORIES (Cont'd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

12 ®REsEcEe®mIE#)

Financial liabilities

BiEa s
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—H%F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Liabilities =K
Trade, accruals and other payables (note 22) ¥ 5 Bzt B M E b ERS
MR X (MF7E22) 543,648 497,431
Bank borrowings (note 24) BITEE (MizE24) 391,806 350,810
Derivative financial instruments (note 15) PTESRIT A (KYEE15) - 26,280
Obligations under finance leases (note 23) R E M E T ARE (M5E23) 6,848 14,739
Amounts due to associates (note 11) FETEEE R EIRFR (MIRE11) 6,741 6,536
949,043 895,796
13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE, 13 EBSZREBERWIRR AR &
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND Rz EL 4t P& W bR X
OTHER RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RE
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Trade and bills receivable B REERIIIKRR 333,342 281,200
Other receivables H b R UL IR 5K 49,087 56,236
382,429 337,436
Less: Allowance for impairment of trade, BB 5 BEKAEMER
bills and other receivables R SRR B (4,021) (801)
378,408 336,635
Prepayments AT 35,760 41,669
Deposits b 52,356 50,110
466,524 428,414
Less: Other non-current assets (Note) B M IERBEE (M) (84,738) (84,896)
381,786 343,518
Representing: Rk
Trade and bills receivable, net of allowance B9 REFERIIR
HBR B 329,321 280,399
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables, B 7%« & & K H b fE IR 7K
net of allowance Bk B 52,465 63,119
381,786 343,518
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Note: Other non-current assets represent deposits paid for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately $43,858,000 (2015: $40,096,000), a
government grant receivable from lJiangsu Yixing Economic
Development Zone Investment and Development Company
Limited amounted to approximately $20,880,000 (2015:
$21,750,000) in relation to the acquisition of a piece of land in
Yixing, Jiang Su, the PRC in 2010, and prepaid investment cost
to Kar Info International Property Limited, a related company of
the Group, in connection with a property development project
in Fenggang, Dongguan, the PRC, amounted to approximately
$20,000,000 (2015: $nil), further details are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 27 April 2015. At 31 March
2015, there were prepayments in connection with the change
of usage of the factory buildings in Fenggang, Dongguan, the
PRC, from industrial use to commercial and residential use
amounted to approximately $23,050,000, such prepayments
were capitalised into property under development for sale upon
obtaining the permission to change the land use from industrial
use to commercial and residential use during the year ended 31
March 2016.

The Group generally grants credit periods ranging from
30 to 90 days, except for one of the customers who is
granted a credit period of 150 days. An ageing analysis of
trade, bills and other receivables, based on invoice date, is
as follows:

13 EBZREREWIRN AR -BE
R EL At FE W e K (4)

Wet: EM3ERBEERRBEME BELEHZEMNE
© @ #8 41 /43,858,0007T (= Z — f % : 40,096,000
L) BERZZT—TFRPEIHE EKE T &
MEERBUIHERLERAZRIEEEREGRA
2 BT E B & 5#) A20,880,0000C (Z T —HF:
21,750,0007T) - R EBEBR P B R B MM ELERIE
B8 & 2B T AL E B E A F]Kar Info International
Property LimitedZ #& & & #8 #420,000,0007T (=
T—RHFE) FERHRARAIZE—RAFITA
T+ tBEZAE -RZE—AF=ZA=+—8 5FH
FEBEEZIBAEESRASR B TERRRERD
A 2 8 549 523,050,0007T 5% IBFEN A =
T—R"FE-A=tT—HFRACEERE AL
HIXARREAEEREMENMEABTEENSE-

BREA-—UEPZEHBI508 5 AEE—K
MTEPZBHH30EENR -EH RHERE
IR IR B R B HG B 2R DT a0 T

2016 2015

—E—ARE —E—RF

$'000 $'000

Frx Tt

0 to 90 days 0£90H 373,075 320,433
91 to 180 days 91£180H 8,614 16,215
181 to 360 days 1812360H 733 788
Over 360 days 360H A+ 7 -
382,429 337,436

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables approximate
their fair values.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The receivables are expected to be recovered within one
year. Any amounts not expected to be recovered within
one year are not included in current assets.

13 EBZREREWIRN AR -BE
K H At R WBR R (&)

ZLE IR A IBRE —FARE  EAEREH
TeE—FAREIINBEREBHEEAN-

Movement in the allowance for impairment of trade, bills 25 ZEBRERHEMEBRIRFBRERE 2Z SN
and other receivables is as follows: N

2016 2015

—E—ARE —E—RF

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Beginning of the year F1 801 1,850
Recognition/(reversal) of allowance for EEE 2 ER, (B #)

impairment (note 28) (FF7E28) 3,220 (821)

Bad debt written off RIZIR 2 185 - (228)

End of the year FIE 4,021 801

The recognition of allowance for impaired receivables is
included in general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. At 31 March
2016, the Group’s trade, bills and other receivables
of $4,021,000 (2015: $801,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that the amounts
are not expected to be fully recoverable. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debt of $4,021,000 (2015:
$801,000) were recognised.

HERERERIKRS ﬁéﬁZﬁE ERERGEER
KPF—RERTBEERA - R_ZE—XR"F=A=+—
H AEBZES - m%ﬁé&ﬁmr&“u&wﬁ?xﬁ | &
4,021,0007T (Z =& — R :801,0005T) @ Ji &
RIEF 8 T IRE - (85I B R E FE W IR 2k A B B
R EFEHR MEEBTEEBESBESRT
REEEME - Al ERRIEERFEEE 9
Bl /4,021,000 (ZZE—HF :801,0007T) ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

At 31 March 2016, trade and bills receivable of
$30,894,000 (2015: $24,630,000) was past due but
not impaired. These relates to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in the
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The ageing of this trade and bills receivable,
based on due date, is as follows:

13 EBZREREBWIRN BAX &€
R EL At BB W o K (4)

R-ZZE-RE=ZA=+t—RH BZEEBRRWKIEK
X /330,894,000 (= F — F 4 : 24,630,000
TT)REBRELEREE - LFRBS RS EE
REBRF2BIRF ERERBEAELER
MEZRREFERERGE ARNEEERRE
ERBERZFBEDRRAIZ2HEO B RE
ERYIRIIRINMBEAEZIRESTAT

2016 2015

—E—REF —ZE—hF

$'000 $'000

Frx Tt

1 to 90 days 1290H 29,733 24,409
91 to 180 days 91E180H 1,161 221
30,894 24,630

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying value of trade and bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables stated above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The credit quality of the Group's trade and bills receivable,
deposits and other receivables that are neither nor
impaired has been assessed by reference to the historical
information about counterparty default rates. The existing
counterparties do not have significant defaults in the past.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

14 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

14 THEEEHMEE

ASSETS

2016 2015
—E-REF T—AF
$°000 $'000
T T
Equity securities — Hong Kong (listed) EmBEF-EB (L) = 4,379
Equity securities — Hong Kong (unlisted) EmBAH-EB (IELT) 504 -
Equity securities — Malaysia (unlisted) R EH-HRAE (FELT) - 299

Key management insurance contracts BEZERBERRAR
(unlisted investments) (FEETIEE) 17,889 17,440
18,393 22,118
Market value of listed securities M Hm5EE - 4,379

At 31 March 2016, the insurance contracts represented
life insurance plans with investment elements relating to a
key management personnel of the Group. The total sum
insured is US$4,681,000 (approximately $36,278,000)
(2015: US$4,681,000 (approximately $36,278,000)), with
an annual minimum guaranteed return of 2.0% to 4.2%
for the first 10 years and 2% for the years afterwards.

At 31 March 2016, if the Group terminated the insurance
contract, the account value, net of a surrender charge
of US$1,921,000 (approximately $14,887,000) (2015:
US$1,853,000 (approximately $14,361,000)), would be

RZE-—RF=ZA=1tT—HB ZRBRERAR

N E— %zgﬁﬁ}\?-\Zﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
ZASRE LR AH4,681,000% 7T (4

36,278,0007E) (ZZE—HF:4,681,000E T
(#936,278,0007T) ) ' B T F R ERF R KX
BEF20%E42% R EBEF2Y% °

J‘ﬁé:;—f\ifﬂ*Jr—El EAREERIE
ZRBEAER - RBIIRFHKBEREREA
1,921,000%73(,%ﬁ14,887,0007z) (ZZF—H1
% :1,853,0003 7T (#J14,361,0007T) )%%{L

refunded to the Group. The amount of surrender charge Bl FAKE - RRWEBEREMRDRR&ZE K
decreases over time and is no longer required from the BERETNFRTAUYE -
19th year of contract conclusion onwards.
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 15 fTHEE€mI A
2016 2015
—E—-RF —E—RF
$°000 $'000
Frx Tz
Structured foreign exchange forward products #5#8 14 4 & 1= B & @ - 26,280

All the structured foreign exchange forward products were
settled during the year ended 31 March 2016. The realised
losses are recorded in “other income/gains and (losses)” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 27).

HE-_ZT—RNFZA=Z+—BILFER B
i% MINERHERDCEE -BEBRELHER

meBEER [EMlA WaEk (BE)] (i
27)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 50 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)
16 INVENTORIES 16 =&

(@)  Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) MEBUBHRIERZFERRE
financial position comprise:

2016 2015
—E—ARE —E—hF
$°000 $'000
Fr FT
Raw materials JR# 112,170 147,035
Work-in-progress F B mh 49,608 67,234
Finished goods A @ 188,806 188,401
350,584 402,670
(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories by HTEZ22HECHERAIHERDBERE
recognised as an expense and included in “cost of BEEAANHEEKRA"(ME28) 2T A

sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss I

(note 28) is as follows:

2016 2015

—RE —

$'000 $'000

Fi FI

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEFEZIREE 2,125,294 1,900,885
Write-down of inventories FE ZHMUR 7,081 3,285
Reversal of write-down of inventories BTE 2 MR 2 [ (7,081) (2,437)
2,125,294 1,901,733

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior WA FRE FERBEZ LR EABERER
years arose due to an increase in the estimated net ;T%MFWZ HEEmMEINE THEEZ GG

realisable value of certain inventories as a result of a Al IR R(E -
change in consumer preferences.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MG ERME
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

17 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 17 YRBR
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T-RF
$°000 $'000
Frx Tz
Property under development for sale TEEME 143,709 -
Completed property held for sale CE/ES 2,433 -
146,142 -

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has
executed the “Land Use Right Grant Contracts”, granted
by the Dongguan Land and Resources Bureau, to change
the land use of the Group's plant in Fenggang, Dongguan
from industrial use to commercial and residential use. At
the date of change of land use, the carrying amount of the
relevant land use right and property, plant and equipment
amounted to HK$5,038,000 and HK$29,020,000
respectively.

Included in the property development are leasehold land
with lease terms ranging from 40 to 70 years and located
in the PRC.

HE-_Z—XR"FZA=Z+—HLFER A&£E
EREVHREMBEALERBR T2 [ LibE A
HEAR] UBASEEREZEMEIBE 2
WHEHRIXRAEENABERE RERLH
A& HELImERERYE BEAREZ
W& E 1 9 Bl A&5,038,0007T 529,020,0007T °

BRERYMERERZEE L HEHRI0ET70
FRARPE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

17 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Contd) 17 YEZRE &)

(b)  The analysis of the amount of properties recognised (b) PEZ2FEECHERAXHREREBERE
as an expense and included in “cost of sales” in the GERERATHEKRA] (MiF28) oHTan
consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 28) is ™
as follows:

2016 2015
—E—AE —ET—RHF
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Carrying amount of properties sold EEVMEZIREE 288 -
288 -
18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 18 RERBITHEN
2016 2015
—E—-RF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T Tt

Cash at bank and in hand TEFER® 159,404 146,453

Time deposits m,ﬁﬁﬁm 117,137 77,961

Cash and bank deposits in the consolidated ~ R4 E MBI ERZIRE K

statement of financial position IRITTE 276,541 224,414
Less: Pledged deposits (note (i)) R R (B EEG)) = (30,815)
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated R4GAIRERERZIRE R

cash flow statement REeEEW 276,541 193,599
Notes: B 5
(i) At 31 March 2015, certain time deposits were pledged to (i) RZBE—RAF=A=+—0 SOHOTHEFREER

secure general banking facilities provided to the Group.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIRF 12/ 5 R 2 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

19 SHARE CAPITAL 19 KR
2016 2015
“E-RE —E-TE
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
BRHEE AfE B8 E [EE
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
5 Tr ¥ T
Authorised: EERAE:
Ordinary shares of HK10 cents each 3@ i B E 107l 4,000,000 400,000 4,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREMRZRE:
Ordinary shares of HK10 cents each & @R B AR E(E107451L 1,996,196 199,620 1,996,196 199,620

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

20 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24
August 2012 (the “Scheme”) under which it may grant
options to employees of the Group (including executive
directors of the Company) and other third parties
to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a
maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time excluding for
this purpose any shares issued on the exercise of options.
The exercise price will be determined by the Company’s
board of directors and shall at least be the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant of the options, and (ii) an average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options.

EBRRFAABRUBTIRERZKE LZH
EARBARRAG LBER —FZ2RE#R-E
ERRROEARRB NEEMS Z ARSI

fi °

20 HERRAE

ARBR -_E——FNA_+UHKH—EE
BREE ATBELAAEEZEE (BEAAR
ZHITEF ) REZERLEREUNEREAR
AlZlh MEERZUARARAREETRAT
B(TREEITFEEREMEIT 2RM)IZ0% A
Ro-ZBRETEESRARRIZESSET
PLOYVAR AR DR IBRER FBE 2 WS E : &(i)
EERTEREBIAEISZEARTRG 2
FHUYTHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 50 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

20 SHARE OPTIONS (Contd)

On 11 August 2014, a total of 18,000,000 share options
(the “Share Options”) were granted to certain qualified
participants of the Group (including an executive director
of the Company) (the “Grantees”) under the Scheme.
The Share Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe for
a total of 18,000,000 new shares of $0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company. Depending on the financial
performance of the Group and other conditions of the
Share Options, not more than 50% of the Share Options
will be vested on 1 August 2015 and not more than 50%
of the Share Options will be vested on 1 August 2017. The
exercise price of the Share Options is $0.419 per share,
which represents the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company of $0.405 per share as stated in
the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company of $0.419 per share as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company of $0.10 per share. All the Share Options were
accepted by the Grantees.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &

20 BRE 2

“E-WNENA+—HE18,000,0001 &%
B([EREDERTASEEEAER 2SR
E(BRREARAIZHTES) ([EFEAL) - #Z
BERERTFTARARBESRAEMBAARLIOLZA

A Z R ARE 18,000,000 /% - 1R & £ B B 75 2
B H MR THBB50% 2 EIRAE SR
“TE-RAFNA—BwWEE RTEBiBS50% 2
BERESR-_ZTE—tFN\A—BHEE - BlE
TEBATRR0.4197T  LAG)ZAR R 7% 7 7 B A%
ERFHzZWHESRR0.405T: (VBERTE
BEBMABI S EARARBKRND 2 FHRME
0.41970: R(i)ARERMH 2EEC.10T =&
MNEReERE-FMMEEREEHARAZN-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

20 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd) 20 BERE®
(@) The terms and conditions of the Share Options are (a) BREZEKREHEDT :
as follows:

Exercise price Number of

per share options Vesting condition  Expiry date
BROEER  BREHE BT HMAH
Options granted to a director BRERT-—BES
—-on 11 August 2014 —-RZE—MF $0.419 5,000,000 Not more than 10 August
NR+—H 5,000,000 options 2024
will vest on

1 August 2015 *
T%H5,000,00088 —TMNF
BEER-_T—HF NA+H

NA—BEB*

—-on 11 August 2014 —-RZE—NF $0.419 5,000,000 Not more than 10 August
NA+—H 5,000,000 options 2024
will vest on

1 August 2017 *
T%H5,000,0008 —FTMF
BEEN-T—+F NA+H

NA—BEE*

Options granted to an employee BRERF—EET
—on 11 August 2014 -R-T—NF $0.419 4,000,000 Vesting on 10 August
NA+—H 1 August 2015 2024
R-E—h% CZT-QNF
NA—BEBE NA+A

-on 11 August 2014 -RZE—mF $0.419 4,000,000 Vesting on 10 August
NR+—H 1 August 2017 2024

R-_F—+tF _—T_MF

NA—B&E ANR+H

Total number of share options ERELEY 18,000,000
* The vesting of the Share Options granted to an executive * MARRMITESE T ZBRE 2 BEIURNAE
director of the Company is subject to the performance of the i 3P e AP St

Group and other conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MG ERME
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)
20 SHARE OPTIONS (contd) 20 BRE#)
(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices (b) MEREHEERMNEFHITEERT:
of share options are as follows:
2016 2015
ZB-RF —ZT-hF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
g INHEF
TEE BREHE TEE FBRIEHR
‘000 ‘000
T +
Outstanding at the REDN-ARITE
beginning of the year $0.419 18,000 - -
Granted during the year RERK T - - $0.419 18,000
Outstanding at the end of the year W& i AKITE $0.419 18,000 $0.419 18,000
Exercisable at the end of the year W& AI{T{F $0.419 9,000 - -

The Share Options outstanding at 31 March 2016 had an
exercise price of $0.419 (2015: $0.419) per share and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.4 years
(2015: 9.4 years).

(c)  Fair value of the Share Options and assumptions
The fair value of the Share Options granted was estimated
at the grant date using the Trinomial Model, after taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the
Share Options were granted. The significant assumptions
and inputs used in the valuation model are as follows:

Fair value at grant date $0.176 to $0.194
(11 August 2014)

Share price at grant date $0.405
Exercise price $0.419
Risk-free interest rate 1.97%
Expected volatility 52.84%
Expected dividend yield 2.47%
Expected exercise multiple 221028

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIRF 12/ 5 R 2 &

RIE—RNFZA=ZF+—H RTEZERE
ZIFEER0AMIT(ZE—RHE:0.41971T) &
I ITE A NFERIAF (ZE—FHF:9.4
F)o
(0 BREZATFERMEERR
NW=BAEBERGBTRZETHEZEFARTE 2
BREZATE HEEIZEEREBEREZ
B EGEERTFERE - FARNEEREXNZEKXR
A M A B

REHBZAYE
(ZZ2—mENA+—8)

$0.176£$0.194

RELBZMEER $0.405
TIEER $0.419
I [ B ) R 1.97%
T8 HA R 1R 52.84%
TEHARR B s 2.47%
TEHTTEEH 2.2%2.38



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

20 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

(c) Fair value of the Share Options and assumptions
(Cont’d)

Risk-free interest rate is based on the yields of the Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Notes at the grant date. Expected
volatility is based on the historical volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the Share
Options). Expected dividend yield is based on historical
dividend trend of the Company and expected future
dividend policy determined by management.

The vesting of the Share Options granted to an executive
director of the Company is subject to the performance
of the Group and other conditions. Such non-market
conditions have not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the Share Options.
There are no market conditions associated with the Share
Options granted.

The Trinomial Model is subject to certain fundamental
limitations because of the subjective nature of and
uncertainty relating to the assumptions and inputs to the
model as well as certain inherent limitations of the model
itself. Any changes in the above assumptions or inputs may
materially affect the fair value estimation.

(d)  The total expense recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2016 in respect of the Share
Options is $1,020,000 (2015: $1,267,000) (note
29(a)).

20 BRE &)
(0 BEREZAFERABER (£)

ERRANEXEREFBIEESBEFERLA
ZWas & o FHEHK IR R RIRE 2K 1R (RIEBK
BZMEFORGHRAE) BHREXEE
RARMZBREBESLCHELREREBETRAKERE
UK ©

AARBATEETR T ZBEREZHBIORR
REE 2 KA MEAIRM - SIET IS IRTFEZE
RERLHEARERIATFEZAE-RAERA
HEHERERE 2T SEEATHZE -

SHEABRERLEARS BEMZEERA
BB R BR 2 T M - DA R T B A A
52 BIRIE . LIRS BRI e
AFEEHEEEATE

d BHE-F-R"F-ZA=-t+-HLEFE
RESCHRIAZEBBRELERR
1,020,0007C (=% — F 4 : 1,267,000
7t) (KfEE29(a)) °
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A 35 50 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

21 OTHER RESERVES 21 HtfEE
(a) Group (a) &&
Available-for-
Capital  Share-based sale assets
Share Capital Merger redemption  compensation revaluation Translation
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
URBXM THEEEE
R EE ERGE AURE EXRERE ZHMeRE ZEfhiE RERE At
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr T Tr
Balance at 1 April 2014 “E-MEMA-AEH 274,454 2,608 (38,000) 459 - 2,506 15,599 257,626
Equity settled share-based MR X 2% 5 (H20)
transactions (note 20) - - - - 1,267 - - 1,267
Fair value losses on available-for- AJ il ESBEEATFEL
sale financial assets BB - - - - - (2,302) - (2,302)
Balance at 31 March 2015 —E-RfZR=t+-H2
3] 274,454 2,608 (38,000 459 1,267 204 15,599 256,591
Balance at 1 April 2015 “E-EIEMA-A&H 274,454 2,608 (38,000) 459 1,267 204 15,599 256,591
Currency translation differences E¥BREZE - - - - - - (17,447) (17,447
Reversal of translation reserve  FEBE AR ZAEREL
upon liquidation of an associate 1% - - - - - - 769 769
Equity settled share-based MRS %2 % 5 (HiFE20)
transactions (note 20) - - - - 1,020 - - 1,020
Fair value gains on available-for  AJ it ESBEEATEL
sale financial assets 6 - - - - - 53 - 53
Reclassification of fair value gains i HESREENTEL
on available-forsale financial ~ WEMNHERENHBEE
assets to profit or loss upon B
disposal - - - - - (201) - (201)
Balance at 31 March 2016 “E-R"EZA=t-Hz2
333 274,454 2,608 (38,000) 459 2,287 56 (1,079) 240,785
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A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

21 OTHER RESERVES (Contd)

21 HMREE#)

(b) Company (b) ZAAF
Available-for-
Capital Share-based sale assets
Share redemption  Contributed compensation revaluation
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve Total
DRGBERS AHRLEEE
ROEE BEXEERE BABH ZHEeRE ZEHRE R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Tr T Tr T
Balance at 1 April 2014 “E-MEMA-Bz&H 274,454 459 193,185 - 2,506 470,604
Equity settled share-based URAZR2Z5
transactions (note 20) (Hi3k20) - - - 1,267 - 1,267
Fair value losses on AfHESHEAEATEL
available-for-sale financial assets 18 - - - - (2,302) (2,302)
Balance at 31 March 2015 “E-HAf=Zf=1+-H2
533 274,454 459 193,185 1,267 204 469,569
Balance at 1 April 2015 “Z-IFEMA-Az&HR 274,454 459 193,185 1,267 204 469,569
Equity settled share-based MRH T 2Z5
transactions (note 20) (HiF£20) - - - 1,020 - 1,020
Fair value gains on available-for- ~ AT HESREERTFEY
sale finandial assets Woss - - - - 53 53
Redlassification of fair value gains AL HESBHEEATEY
on available-for-sale financial WHEREERENIEE
assets to profit or loss upon B
disposal - - - - (201) (201)
Balance at 31 March 2016 —E-X"E=ZA=1+-H2
&6 274,454 459 193,185 2,287 56 470,441

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

At 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $260,681,000 (2015: $271,795,000). After
the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend of HK2.75 cents and special dividend of
HKS$Nil per ordinary share (2015: final dividend of HK1.8
cent and special dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary
share), amounting to $54,895,000 (2015: $55,894,000)
(note 34(a)). This dividend has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

REARE-NN\—FRBVER  SARGKAH
DIRT R - BEXMERERG)A AR T
AR E HMMEEECAEREGE/HSAM
IREBEEREEHITRAREKMD®EE Z A
R AIARRAAAIEM RS A
BEHBIEH DK

RZE—RNFZA=+—H d#HOELRT
EHEFEE A2 FHERE5260,681,000T (=
—HRF:271,795,000T) - MEHKRE EE=
ERRERBRESRE AR 75810 & &#
KERRE (ZE—RAF  ARHBREERTER
1.8 RERREFRERZ1.0BWL) &5
£54,895,0007t (—ZF — A % : 55,894,0007T)
(KizE34(a)) c AR ERNBERRT KX ERAE

5 o
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A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A BN LABTTHIR)

21 OTHER RESERVES (Conta)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
0 Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of entities outside Hong Kong. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2(y).

(i) Available-for-sale assets revaluation reserve

The available-for-sale assets revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-
for— sale equity securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 2(g).

22 TRADE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER

21 HMREE 2
(0 BEZHERAN

) BEEE
BRERBERARETEUNINERBMBHRRM

ELXZRBINEEZR - BRREIIREME2Y)
Iz @t RREE -

(i) AL EEEE R G
AL EEEERHBERNBEMRTAZ

AL EREESFAFEZRFAEFHFHR AR
B E2(g)E I 2 &St BURE I ©

22 B ErEAREMEMIKRK

PAYABLES

2016 2015
= —ZT—4F
$'000 $'000
Fr Ft
Trade payables H ZEMIRNK 259,352 218,892
Accruals for rental expenses EEtiE® 42,746 46,549

Accruals for purchase of property, JEETIEE M B R
plant and equipment 24,268 37,310
Salaries and staff welfare payable Bt EHe kB IER 113,464 98,321
Other payables and accruals Hib IR N EETE M 103,818 96,359
284,296 278,539
543,648 497,431

The carrying amounts of trade, accruals and other payables B9 BAEBAREMEMNERZIEEEEAD T
approximate their fair values. All trade payables and BRI RZE—R"FERZTE—RAF=A=+—
accruals as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are expected to be AeHEESENAREFERERHNR—FR

settled within one year. e
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A 35 30 R B o

22 TRADE, ACCRUALS AND OTHER

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

22 EZ EAEAREMEMIRR

PAYABLES (Cont’d) (%)
Trade payables ageing analysis, based on invoice date, is as ESRMEFRREZAMAEZREITAT -
follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —AF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
0 to 90 days 0£90H 240,857 204,504
91 to 180 days 91£180H 15,439 12,102
181 to 360 days 181£360H 2,928 2,239
Over 360 days 360H A 128 47
259,352 218,892
23 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 23 BEMETAE
LEASES
At 31 March 2016, the Group had obligations under RZFE-—RFZA=Z=+—HB XAEEFEERE
finance leases repayable as follows: MEAERT:
2016 2015
“E-RF —hfF

Present value

Present value

of minimum  Total minimum of minimum  Total minimum

lease payments lease payments lease payments  lease payments

RIEHEE RERE HEHE HEHE

REZBE MEAH FEZBRE FIEBE

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T T T T

Within one year —F R 6,848 6,988 7,891 8,386

In the second to fifth years, inclusive &£ -ZFHFR - - 6,848 6,988

6,848 6,988 14,739 15,374

Less: future finance charges W RRBEE A (140) (635)

Present value of lease obligations HEAEZRE 6,848 14,739

Representing: K&k

Non-current portion EREI D - 6,848
Current portion REE D 6,848 7,891
6,848 14,739

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no FIEHERBETEEEERSBIILEMIA

arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental

payments.

MEMRE e
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

24 BANK BORROWINGS 24 #RITREE
2016 2015
ZB-AE —T-RF
$'000 $'000
Frx Tz
Portion of bank borrowings repayable within ~ —F R{Ei& 2 R1TEE 2 15
one year 331,528 269,705
Portion of bank borrowings due BERERBEEGRZ
for repayment after one year which —FIREEY
contains a repayment on demand clause RITEE Z &5 - 75,495
Trust receipt loans EEBIRE R - 5,610
Bank borrowings classified as current liabilities D8 A RSB EZEITEE 331,528 350,810
Portion of bank borrowings repayable —FREERIER
after one year and classified ERBEEZ
as non-current liabilities RITEE 2 EH 60,278 -
Total bank borrowings IRITEEBTE 391,806 350,810
Representing: Rk
Secured HHEA 188,005 154,705
Unsecured AR 203,801 196,105
Total bank borrowings RITIEE BT 391,806 350,810
At 31 March 2016, certain banking facilities of the Group RZE—RF=ZA=1T—B KAEEZAE TR
were secured by land and buildings with an aggregate BEEEA L REFTS HIREE /99,389,000
carrying value of $99,389,000 (2015: $102,424,000) T (ZZE—HRHF:102,424,0007T) kI & R
and bank deposits of $Nil (2015: $30,815,000). Such THER(ZZE—HF:30,815,00070)E#HK 3 o
banking facilities amounted to $188,005,000 (2015: ZERITRLE £188,005,000 (= F—Hh
$231,250,000) and were utilised to the extent of % :231,250,0007C) - MERKB B ZBRE R
$188,005,000 (2015: $154,705,000). 188,005,000 (=ZZE —H % : 154,705,000
JL) e
At 31 March 2016, bank borrowings totalling RZE-—RF=ZA=+—RB HRITEEEHIH
HK$331,528,000 (2015: HK$350,810,000) have a HER—FRAIZRNITENK EEM,AZﬁﬁE
contractual maturity within one year or are subject to #£331,528,0007t (=% — F % : 350,810,000
repayment on demand clauses. Some of the group's L) AEBEEFSRTHEAFEAERS TH
banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants BARAREEBB 2 RmBERBITEAIEE - W
relating to certain of the Group's statement of financial AEEEREBARG AEXHIRMEKKEESR
position ratios. If the Group were to breach the covenants Eiﬁ $%E HERHEBETERIZE RN
the drawn down facilities would become payable on RZB-—RF=ZA=1T—H0 HEEESINHEE
demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance FzHwEER-

with these covenants. As at 31 March 2016 none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been

breached.
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate BEZRASBEAAFTEROIRAELAE
their fair values and are denominated in HK$. i

222 Karrie International Holdings Limited 35 7E 12 K5 R 2 &



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

25 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RERE M BARR R P BIE

(@) Current taxation (a) AHIFLIE
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—hF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FEBRBNET 2 EHE
for the year 18,896 10,389
Provisional Profits Tax paid ENEHEH (9,946) (5,602)
8,950 4,787
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to R FEMMSTHER &5
prior years 5,364 1,306
Provision for overseas taxation EINFTIS B 2 24 44,236 42,688
58,550 48,781
Current tax recoverable 7K BR AT U [o] 75 78 (712) (3,207)
Current tax payable 7K B S R T8 59,262 51,988
58,550 48,781
(b) Deferred taxation (b) EEFIIE
Fair value
gain of
Accelerated investment
depreciation properties Others Total
REWE
Deferred tax liabilities ELERHBEEE MEFE LAFEZKE Hit i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F T Fr T
At 1 April 2014 “E-NFEmNA—H 7,672 3,298 4,257 15,227
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss #1828 (5t A) /X 84 (2,750) 1,175 - (1,575)
At 31 March 2015 and —E-HF=A=1+—-H
1 April 2015 E=—E-HEFNHA—H 4,922 4,473 4,257 13,652
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss R 1E# 8,/ (5 A) 1,261 (2,754) - (1,493)
Exchange difference HpzE - (133) - (133)
At 31 March 2016 —E-R"E=ZH=1+—-H 6,183 1,586 4,257 12,026
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 A RSN LABTTHIR)

25 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Cont’d)

(b) Deferred taxation (Cont’d)

25 RESHBERRKRFHE &)

(b) EIEBIR (&

Tax losses Others Total

Deferred tax assets EEHEEE HIEEE Hith A

$'000 $'000 $'000

T T FT

At 1 April 2014 —E-NFEMA—H (1,471) (587) (2,058)

Charged/(credited) to profit or loss RE=ZHE/ (GFA) 459 (961) (502)
At 31 March 2015 and “E-RF=ZHA=1+-HRK

1 April 2015 —E-FFEMA—H (1,012) (1,548) (2,560)

(Credited)/charged to profit or loss Rz (5tA) /X8 (1,416) 910 (506)

At 31 March 2016 —E-R"E=ZA=+-H (2,428) (638) (3,066)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction.

EREERNABEEREEERRETEHIES
B MEEREHSRE—HE%EE A8
HvukfﬁlﬁiﬁﬁéﬁiutmlﬁﬁTfﬁ*ﬁ%fﬁiﬁ E’\\E

The following amounts, determined after appropriate NEEHRER  TH2EREEMBRARNE
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of N
financial position:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Deferred tax assets EXERIBEE (638) (1,130)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEBE 9,598 12,222
8,960 11,092

At 31 March 2016, in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(v), the Group had unprovided
deferred tax assets of approximately $20,990,000 (2015:
$18,769,000) primarily representing the tax effect of
cumulative tax losses (subject to agreement by relevant tax
authorities) which can be carried forward against future
taxable income, of which, tax losses of $123,213,000
(2015: $109,752,000) can be carried forward indefinitely.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(a) Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group and its employees makes monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group’s and the employees’ mandatory contributions are
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000
($25,000 prior to June 2014) and thereafter, contributions
are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group’s
annual contributions to these plans represent defined
contributions, and the Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

(b) Defined benefit retirement plan - Long service
payments

Provision for long service payments represents the Group'’s
obligations for long service payments to its employees
in Hong Kong on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
Such long service payment obligations are valued by
Mercer Human Resource Consulting Ltd, an independent
qualified actuary valuer.

26 RAERNEE

(a) HREMKEE

AEECLHBEEELEABFURNELETE
([2E2sTE]) RBESFTIBRARTERKG
g BABURIEATE -RBERBESHE A5
BErHEEBAHEEHEE AR (TXE R
FlEREEED )% B ZTEIEE MR - AKE
FEEZ® A ABZB30,000T (ZF—4F
NARIA25,0000T) & LR - Hig 25k RIE A
814 E o

RIEPBEERBE AREARNATEEE MR
BEZBERE RN EEH K - ARBREL
2 FHFR/FERI - LS EEAERERK
& X SRR AR A R BB b ] A o ARAK
BEZHARKEH —HHBERE ZEK
FEIEE-

(b) REBRBKBANFE-RERES

EHRBEEGELSAKBRET SRR G T
ETEATHRIIEREEMX N ZRBARE S
PrTE 2B E-

ZEETENEABMEEAAE UG ERRE
RMBEASBRNRG S N AKRER-RAE 2R
AR RRPREEETHBILSERBEM
XEANEBERERBRARGE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&5 A RSN LABTTHIR)

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(Cont’d)

(b) Defined benefit retirement plan - Long service

payments (Cont’d)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are determined as follows:

26 RBRAREFEET &)

(b) REBRKBAFE-RORBE (F)

R W BARARER 2 S RIZ NI T AEE

2016 2015
—EB-AF —ZT—hF
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Present value of unfunded obligations and REBEBEAZBRELERES
liability in the consolidated statement of MBARRAEANZ BE
financial position 7.653 6,356

A portion of the above asset/liability is expected to be
recovered/paid after more than one year. However, it is not
practicable to segregate this amount from the amounts
payable in the next twelve months, as future contributions
will also relate to future services rendered and future
changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions.
The Group expects to pay $353,000 in contributions to
defined benefit retirement plan for the year ending 31
March 2017 (2016: $261,000).

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as
follows:

FMEE/ BBz HBLoBHENBE—FE
e e R BB EARK+T @A
BRzeBEI>RAL AT REABRKERIN
BRARRBHZRBEERARBERIETHIB
Mz - REBEE-_ZT—+tF=ZA=1+—HILF
B AEBEEHRRTRKEF G E A H#H3R
353,000 ( ZZF— /N4 :261,0007T) °

SRR EMERRARER 2 SBOT

=
i
op

2016 2015

ZE-REF —T-0F

$'000 $'000

Fr T

Current service cost 7 HA AR 75 BX AR 135 155

Interest on obligation BEEHME 100 242

Total amounts recognised in profit or loss RERCERZASHE

(note 29(a)) (Kt7E29(a) ) 235 397
Net actuarial losses/(gains) recognised REMEEWASERZ

in other comprehensive income BEFEE () 1,374 (3,444)

Total wiAE 1,609 (3,047)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 26 ERAREINEE (2
(Cont’d)
(b) Defined benefit retirement plan - Long service (b) REBRKBAFE-REBRES(Z)

payments (Cont’d)

The current service cost and the net interest on obligation REREEKARFEENEEBRERNGaER
were included in the “general and administrative KPP —BEITHERA-
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Movements in the provision for long service payments of AEBRARBERBLEHOT :
the Group are as follows:
2016 2015
—E—REF E—FHF
$°000 $'000
T Tt
At 1 April RmA—A 6,356 9,533
Remeasurements: BT E:
— Actuarial losses arising from changes —HBARRETREE
in demographic assumption FREL 2 EE BB - 1
— Actuarial gains arising from changes in —HUBRINEREEZ
financial assumption EE M= (267) (487)
— Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from —H i%%ﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁiz
experience adjustment BEEE (W 1,641 (2,958)
1,374 (3,444)
Payments made during the year FREREEHK (312) (130)
Current service cost AN AR 7 A AR 135 155
Interest cost FILE KA 100 242
At 31 March R=A=+—H 7,653 6,356

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligation is 14.0 years (2015: 15.1 years).

ATERMNETZMEFHHR B140F (==
—FHE:15.14F) o

Hi

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 F #

227



228

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(Cont’d)

(b) Defined benefit retirement plan - Long service

payments (Cont’d)

Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis are
as follows:

26 RBRAREFNEE &)

(b) REBRKBEAFE-RORBE (F)

EEZREZBREBBESTAT

2016 2015
—®-XF  -T-HF
Per annum Per annum
BF BF
Discount rate AL 3R &K 1.70% 1.60%
Expected rate of future salary increases RERF 2 FEHE R 5.00%
for 2016,
4.00% p.a.
thereafter
—E—-REF:
5.00%
H#%4.00% 4.00%

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit
retirement plan — long service payments as at 31 March
2016 and 2015 would have increased/(decreased) as
a result of 0.50% change in the significant actuarial
assumptions:

RZE—AN_E—RFE=ZA=+—H BEH
BRFEM, R )0.50% % 7 F @& FE KT
E-RERBe2EESTWOT

2016 2015
—E-XF —%-If

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

in 0.50% in 0.50% in 0.50% in 0.50%

12 £10.50% #40.50% 12 1910.50% 40.50%

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T T T T

Discount rate B & (1,404) 1,567 (1,406) 1,640

Expected rate of future RIRE B BEIE R &

salary increases 211 (223) 244 (312)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption
that changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated
and therefore it does not take into account the correlations
between the actuarial assumptions.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

27 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME/GAINS AND 27 WA -EHiA WER (EE)
(LOSSES)
2016 2015
—E-RF —hF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Revenue WA
Sales of merchandise and 2 on 35 B MR AR
provision of services
— Metal and plastic business — T BRBER 1,500,133 1,074,753
— Electronic manufacturing services business — & FEHE R T X 1,369,868 1,489,483
— Consumer and services business —BEBERRGEER 26,068 26,387
2,896,069 2,590,623
Sale of properties MEHE 1,536 -
2,897,605 2,590,623
Other income/gains and (losses) HiA =Kk (BE)
Rental income Ha WA 2,353 2,284
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BER&EEZEE
equipment (388) (282)
Fair value gain on derivative financial MESBMIAZ AT EKS
instruments - 17,756
Realised loss on forward derivatives EHTETAELRER (1,228) (8,345)
Impairment losses on property, plant and M WE MEE2RERRE
equipment (note 7) (Bt3E7) (13,129) -
Gain on liquidation of an associate BEBE AR 2 W 1,684 -
Loss on disposal of investment HERBE QAR ZRE CEER
in an associate (58) -
Gain on disposal of disposal group HEHESRESHERIFE
classified as held-for-sale (Note) &z WS (FEE) - 9,572
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEESREEZRERRE
financial assets (299) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEE e/ EE 2 W
financial assets 1,086 -
Others HAh 7,579 6,322
(2,400) 27,307

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 F #



230

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R RO

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

27 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME/GAINS AND 27 WA -EHttA hEKk (EE)
(LOSSES) (cont'a) (#)

Note: On 10 December 2014, the Group entered into a disposal Miz: RZTE—NF+A+H AKEES-—F=F%
agreement with a third party to dispose of its 100% 5137 & #p7% LA (858,000,000 A R % (FE R4
equity interest in Grandway Investment (Group) Limited 72,500,0007T) HEFZZHRE (EE) AR G RE
and its subsidiary (“Disposal Group”), a subsidiary by MEAR (FBAHEERE]) 2R HXHE
then, at a consideration of RMB58,000,000 (equivalent to REZE—RAF-_A+—HBHZK RHEALEEEZ
approximately $72,500,000). The transaction was completed IREE 460,549,000  HE-—ZT—AF=A=+—
on 11 February 2015. The carrying amount of the Disposal HIEFE SR EZNER 2 HEWE /9,572,000
Group at the date of disposal was $60,549,000. A gain on JL e
disposal of $9,572,000 was recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

28 EXPENSES BY NATURE 28 BRMEIEZER

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
$'000 $'000

T Tz

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEFEZIREE 2,125,924 1,900,885

Carrying amount of properties sold EEMEZIREE 288 -

Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEMREEIITE

equipment (note 7): (MI5E7)
— owned assets —-BEEE 78,665 71,447
— leased assets —HEEE 5,205 7,522
83,870 78,969

Amortisation of land use rights (note 6) b A 2 #EH (FYEEe) 620 641

Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9) | EE B (M5E9) 3,543 2,400

Employee benefit expenses (including EERNAX (BREFHE)

directors’ remuneration) (note 29(a)) (PF3E29(@a)) 378,200 372,561

Operating lease rental of premises MEZKEHERE 23,322 28,217

Net exchange loss MEH BB HEE 1,367 766

Auditor’s remuneration 2% HAD B & 2,792 2,780

Recognition/(reversal) of allowance for B 5 & B Ah & YR FORVE

impairment of trade and other receivables B2 HER, ()
(note 13) (HM$5E13) 3,220 (821)

Write-down of obsolete and slow-moving PR &8 I %5 S5 17 & OB

inventories (note 16) (FFsE16) = 848

Other expenses H 3 110,407 141,404

2,733,553 2,528,650

Representing: R&k:

Cost of sales 5 B 2,546,039 2,306,523

Distribution and selling expenses DEREEER 44,450 57,110

General and administrative expenses — R ERITHER 143,064 165,017

2,733,553 2,528,650
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTIIR)

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 29 EEREANZH-BEESE#HE
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION
(a) Employee benefit expenses during the year are (a) FAEEREINZHWMT:
as follows:
2016 2015
—E-KR¥ —ZE—h*F
$'000 $'000
Seo Tz
Wages and salaries FRIE 355,448 350,906
Contributions to defined contribution AEHFRIKRET B 2 7R
retirement plans 21,497 19,991
Provision for long service payments (note 26) K EIRRS & M (M 5526) 235 397
Share option expenses (note 20) R AR 2 (P EE20) 1,020 1,267
378,200 372,561
(b) Directors’ remuneration (b) ==&
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 BIEESRRIEFIEISIER R AIEH 2 E —F
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the M(EBHAEERANZEEER) AN ZEETE
Companies Ordinance (Disclosure of Information about WENT:

Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

2016
“E-RE
Employer's
contributions Share-based
Discretionary to retirement payments
Name of director Fees Salary bonuses plans Subtotal (note) Total
BiERRz BAEHE DR 3% £
B34 fig ik T 2ETHER hat o BM (K At
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i i i r i i
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (ER% & - 4,616 1,890 - 6,506 - 6,506
Mr. Zhao Kai itk - 958 1,601 12 2,571 525 3,096
Mr. Lee Shu Ki EXigpe S - 870 7 17 964 - 964
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia N - 774 545 18 1,337 - 1,337
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fEHR%E 325 - - - 325 - 325
Mr. Ho Kai Man XL 405 - 91 18 514 - 514
Independent non-executive directors BUFRTEE
Mr. So Wai Chun BERERE 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond Riniri & 58 - - - 58 - 58
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing HasRE 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Yam Chung Shing FEHLE L} - - - LY} - Ly}
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A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 29 EERMNZH-SREESEME »)
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION (cont'd)
(b)  Directors’ remuneration (Cont’d) (b) EEME (£)
2015
“Z-Rf
Employer's
contributions Share-based
Discretionary ~ to retirement payments
Name of director Fees Salary bonuses plans Subtotal (note) Total
BEEH  RIRS5E AR A3
B4l ik ¢ ti ZEEER E R (M) A
$'00 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T T T T T i
Executive directors HTEZE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai EEEE - 4,436 1,470 - 5,906 - 5,906
Mr. Zhao Kai izl e - 825 880 7 1,712 645 2,357
Mr. Lee Shu Ki TR 4 - 924 115 18 1,057 - 1,057
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia R4 1R/ ME - 738 426 18 1,182 - 1,182
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming PEL P 400 - - - 400 - 400
Mr. Ho Kai Man WMEXEE 392 - 83 17 492 - 492
Indevendent non-executive directors BUHHTEE
Mr. So Wai Chun BRELE 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond BinHaE 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing bbbt 100 - - - 100 - 100
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted Mizr: WRRBBEAAFERESERTES ZEER

to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to the
Group's accounting policies for share-based payments as set
out in note 2(u). The details of these share options, including
the principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION (Cont’a)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three (2015: three) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2015: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

29 RERAMXH-BRERESEME &)

(0 IEBREFMAL
AEBEERLZSESFMN s ATBE=2 (2%
—RAF ZR)EBEF HEMEEHR XD R
FRNEH _Z(ZE—AF: ZZ2)F5H AT
ZEMBEIT

2016 2015

—E—RE —T—H%F

$'000 $'000

Fr T

Basic salaries and allowances HAR ¥ & KoEB 1,504 1,403
Discretionary bonus B 1E & Pz TEAL 877 740
Contributions to retirement plans RIRETEI 2 3K 36 35
Share-based payment LA BR 1 32 1<F 3 B 495 622
2,912 2,800

The emoluments fell within the following band:

ZEMEE TIAGHENR

Number of individuals

AT A
2016 2015
—B-RF —E-hF
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,0017C%1,500,0007T 1 2
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,0017T %2,000,0007T 1 -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

30 FINANCE COSTS, NET

30 FAEEAAS - RER

2016 2015
—E—XRE¥ —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Finance costs B 75 AR 7R
— Interest expense on bank borrowings - RAFREHEEL
wholly repayable within five years RITEENEZH 15,544 12,405
— Finance charges on obligations under —BMERETRENBEA
finance leases 495 783
16,039 13,188
Finance income B 75 W A
— Interest income from bank deposits —IRIT AT B WA (1,137) (3,252)
— Other interest income —H M F B A (396) (286)
(1,533) (3,538)
Finance costs, net BAFSRA » J5ER 14,506 9,650
31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 31 REEEBRRPHAER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
The amount of taxation charged to profit or loss RESYHIHMBENT
represents:
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—HRF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Current taxation AHEA B8
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEMH
— Current year —KREE 18,896 10,389
— Over-provision in prior years —FFE 7 HBEE (728) (6,245)
Overseas taxation Y HNFR I
— Current year —KREE 3,319 6,362
Deferred taxation (note 25) IELERE (MEE25) (1,999) (2,077)
19,488 8,429
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)
31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 31 MGEEBEZERTFAEH (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Cont’d)

FTEREERILZEERATIIRIBEANE 25T
JEER R FIR165% (T E—HF :16.5% ) 2
REIRBEBMESRHES - BINGEF 2 B A%

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year for all group companies incorporated in Hong

Kong. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates

HER 2RI o

of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.

The tax on the Group's profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the profits

SR N 2 ik 5 B AR Bt MR AN 5= B

S

AEBEBRBRAZEMNZHAEBERARR
AEBFBERX 2ANSHREMAE 2 ERHE

tax rate in Hong Kong, the Group’s home country, as ZEEMT:
follows:
2016 2015
A —T—hF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Profit before taxation B B A& A 136,159 84,135
Calculated at taxation rate of 16.5% (2015: 1ZFBi=165% (=T — A :
16.5%) 16.5% )it & 22,466 13,882
Effect of different taxation rates in other THMBRBEREE 8
countries (2,396) (503)
Associates’ results reported net of tax Bt N RIZEE R EIIAE (48) 32
Income not subject to taxation B GRZ WA (21,888) (17,535)
Expenses not deductible for taxation TAMH0% 2 2
purposes 18,678 16,166
Temporary difference not recognised AERZERHER 1,353 3,774
Over-provision for Hong Kong taxation TFEZEEMIB B
in prior years (728) (6,245)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised EATFERERNGEE
tax losses (159) (3,516)
Unused tax losses not recognised RER TS 2 BIEEE 2,210 2,374
Income tax expense FTiS i i 19,488 8,429
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

32 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company to the extent of approximately $60,120,000 WA ERIE -

(2015: $58,660,000).

33 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by

33 #R=F

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

32 ARAREZEFEABMGERN

RARESEA ARG EF460,120,0007T (=
T —F{F:58,660,0007T)  E AR A 2B

BRERGNIDREBERAQRERFE ARG G
MEBERFERE BT ZERRNEFOHRTE -

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—H%F
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of AR G5 A A FE1G i 7
the Company 117,076 76,298
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 277 %38 i% 2 f1HE F 5 &
in issue (in thousand shares) (FR&ET) 1,996,196 1,996,196
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) & REAGF| (FRLLABIET) 5.9 3.8
Diluted earnings per share e REN
(HK cents per share) (R LABMET) 5.9 3.8

There was no dilutive effect on earnings per share for the

HRAERITEBRES A REEE  RHE

year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 since all E_T-RF=ZA=+—RAKZZT—HF=A
ST BLEFEZERAFNZEHEEIZ EE-

outstanding share options were anti-dilutive.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

34 DIVIDENDS 3 RE
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (a) BREAFEEMNXQATGEZFEAZERE
the Company attributable to the year
2016 2015
—E—ARE —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Interim dividend declared and paid of EEM&EIRES RS
HKO.75 cent per ordinary share FEBR0.75%81L
(2015: HKO.5 cent per ordinary share) (ZE—RF:
BT REAR.5E) 14,971 9,981
Final dividend in respect of previous year éiﬁ%ﬁﬁ*fé%ﬁ/ﬁiﬁﬂﬂ
proposed after the end of the reporting BAR2.7578 11
period of HK2.75 cents per ordinary share ( g FF
(2015: HK1.8 cents per ordinary share) BEER1.88) 54,895 35,932
Special dividend proposed after the reporting 7%k £ Hi 7K 14 £ K 45 7))
period of HK$Nil per ordinary share BRE(ZE—HEF:
(2015: HK1.0 cent per ordinary share) TEBAR.0B) - 19,962
69,866 65,875
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting REEBHRERIK 2 KRR SR ®EHARIL K
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of WRAEBE-
the reporting period.
(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (b) BRLE-BBBREFEE IRKRFEEMERIKE
the Company attributable to the previous ZENELATREEREAZRE
financial year, approved and paid during the
year
2016 2015
— N —E-1F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Final dividend and special dividend in respect Bt _E— B BRF[E - B HLMAE R
of the previous financial year, approved ERARFEIRE 2 REAR
and paid during the year, of HK2.8 cents FRIR ST EEAR2. 878
per ordinary share (2015: HK1.0 cent per (ZF— £$
ordinary share) FEBR1.081) 55,894 19,962
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 3R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The Group had the following significant commitments and
contingent liabilities which were not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements:

(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following authorised and contracted
capital commitments at 31 March 2016:

35 FAERIARERE

AEEALTRARAKGAHBERE L5HRE
BrEERERAARR:
() EAEHE

RIZ-—RF=ZA=1T—RH AEBBEAUTER
BRFRZEARALE:

2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—hF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Construction of commercial premises R EEZEEER
in the PRC - 19,454
Construction of investment properties R EEEREYE
in the PRC 105,019 105,625
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ B E WX B E k&R E 19,393 29,329
124,412 154,408

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group had lease commitments in respect of land
and buildings under various non-cancellable operating
lease agreements extending to October 2055. The total
commitments payable are analysed as follows:

(b) RKEHEERSE

AEBMEZEMRE_STRAF+ AT HEH
ZEMELEHERZ BRNEAESNET

2016 2015

—EB-ARF —T-RF

$°000 $'000

T Tt

Not later than one year THiE—F 11,945 21,260
Later than one year and not later BE—FETHEARTF

than five years 30,173 34,456

Later than five years HBBRF 173,936 172,100

216,054 227,816

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA RSN LABTTIIR)

35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Cont’ad)

The Group had future minimum lease rental receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

35 HEERIAREEH)

(b) REHEERE(F)

AEBMENTIAIHEEERE Z RRREE
Wile

2016 2015

—B-RF —F—hF

$°000 $'000

Fr T

Not later than one year THE—F 169 149

(o) Guarantees

At 31 March 2016, the Company has given guarantees
totalling approximately $1,010,731,000 (2015:
$825,909,000) to financial institutions in connection with
the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. Such
banking facilities utilised as at 31 March 2016 amounted
to approximately $391,806,000 (2015: $350,810,000).

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions with related parties

(0 H#R

RZE—ARNFZAZ=Z+—B ARBHKTUHH
BEEHRERTRE FTEMKMNB AR ZRE
R4 %4 4A1,010,731,000C (ZFE— R F:
825,909,0007L) R - ZE—XRNF=ZA=+—
B - BERZETEL A391,806,0005T (=
£ — 74 :350,810,0007T) °

36 FEBHEALIXRS

(a) EHBEEALZXRSH

2016 2015
—B-RF —F—hF
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Purchase of goods: BEEY:
Purchase of raw materials from an associate [ B4 A 7] B B Rk 3,637 4,322
Others: Hl:
Rental income from an associate M A R 2 WA 301 220
Management service fee income MEAER R WEEEERA
from a related company 97 526
Rental charged by a related company X fNHEE THEENR 2,870 2,870
Consultancy service fee charged by TR B R TR E A A
an associate 311 384
Purchase of machinery from an associate A B N B B B M R 11,017 5,272
Repair and maintenance charged by XN ERRETHE QA
an associate 1,331 259
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 50 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont‘d)

(b) Balances with related parties

36 FEBEAIXRZ (&)

(b) HREEALzZ&ES

2016 2015

—E—AE —E—hEF

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Amount due to associates (note 11) JEAT B A AR (BTaE11) 6,741 6,536

The amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest-free ENEEARIRKAERR TEHANE WEE

and repayable on demand. KEEEE-

() Key management personnel remuneration (0 FEEEEBEMSE

Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEBEZEZETBAEBHFM BREIXNTALAA

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors BEEZHRERMF290) T - A T &= 5

as disclosed in note 29(b) and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 29(c), is as follows:

B8 2 BRI BY 5E29() B B8 » &5 an T -

2016 2015

—E-RF —E—1F

$°000 $'000

T Tz

Short-term employee benefits EHE SR 18,603 16,922

Post-employment benefits Bt B3 ra A 173 172

Share-based payment VAR 19 32 A~F 3 B 1,020 1,267

19,796 18,361

Total remuneration is included in “employee benefit 18 @JI cBEEEIEERMEZE]I RN (KM
expenses” (see note 29(a)). a)) e

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transaction in respect of rental charged
by a related company above constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are provided in section “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Reports of the Directors.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

37 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 37 REEEZMBRRLE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2016 2015
—E—XRF —ET—RF
Note $'000 $'000
M aE T Tt
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIRE 702,589 707,932
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 17,889 21,820
720,478 729,752
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary JE i B 88~ B R K 25,000 25,000
Prepayments, deposits and other B e R
receivables EH th JiE IS R 5% 3,714 1,378
Cash and bank deposits Bae NMIBITER 852 1,743
29,566 28,121
Total assets EEHAE 750,044 757,873
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable EARERBFEA
to equity shareholders of the R AR @S
Company
Share capital i 7 19 199,620 199,620
Other reserves Hth (15 21 470,441 469,569
Retained earnings R A
— Proposed final dividend —RRARHRE 34 54,895 55,894
— Others —HAth 12,601 22,716
Total equity EmAE 737,557 747,799
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kEREBERE
Provision for long service payments REIRG £ aa1 378
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEETB R &
H h FE IR 5K 12,046 9,696
Total liabilities EEEE 12,487 10,074
Total equity and liabilities EEREaEHEE 750,044 757,873
Net current assets REBEEEE 17,520 18,425
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBAE 737,998 748,177

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 27 June 2016.

Ho Cheuk Fai Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
Epey: PR & ok

Director Director

EF EF

RT3 -

RZE-—RFAA-ZTELtRBREFTEHEMK
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 50 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A HEASN - LABTTHIR)

38 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 March 2016, the directors regard TMF (B.V.l.)
Limited, which beneficially owns 40.96% of the
Company's equity interests, to be the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Company. Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are the
beneficial owners of TMF (B.V.l.) Limited. TMF (B.V.l.)
Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
does not produce financial statements available for public
use.

39 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

383 HERRAEHAL

RZE—ARFZA=Z+—H EFRETMF
(B.V.I.) Limited B z= ¥ A 42 7]40.96 % % {5 F|
W WAARRNRZEHERGEIES AL [IE1E
EE-MBHRZERAEBLEEBTMF (B.V.1)
LimitedZ Bz5# A A > TMF (B.V.1.) Limited A %
BELZBEKRIMESELARAETBIHRE-

39 CEMEERREBE-ZT—RE=
A=+t—BIFEERZIER - #
ZARBREUEBRZZE

BEEAMBRRERER BEGAMASRM
TEZHERBE-_T-R"F=_A=T"HLFE
AR R 2 ZRIERT R R - M & B AR R A
MEBMERANRFRMN - T RETAEEERA
EPACHP SRS

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTHE#HS 2%

HazatHEER

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016
ERMBHRELEN T FE_T-MFERFELE —E-R"¥—-HF—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between an

investor and its associate or joint venture

1 January 2016

FRMBHRELERNE 10 LB LG ERE28R 2B WEF LA Z QRN

BERRZEMNEELERTE

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations

—E-RXF—A—H

1 January 2016

FRAPVHREERNFE1R2ER] WEH S S ERD 2 SrTRIE —E-R"¥—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative
BB ERFEIR 2B BEZHE

1 January 2016
—E-XF—HA—H

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of

depreciation and amortisation

1 January 2016

BRI N E 16 RE B R EIRE 2T WE T EE RE O S i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 35 30 R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (xR A SN LABTTIIR)

39 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2016 (Contd)

39 BHEAMEMAREBE-ZE—XRE=
B=+—HLEFEERZIET -
EAGREBUREBRZEE (®)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTHHBARZ%
HaeastBBER

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

TRV BERMEERNE 155 ERNEP AR ZBATER

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BV BRELEAFS ST A

HKFRS 16, Leases
BEAVBmEEAF 165 HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application.

1 January 2018
—ZF—\F—A—H

1 January 2018
—T-NF—H—H

1 January 2019
—ET-nF—-—H—H

AEELFARFETHENERRR 2 ZE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hAEMBGIHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTIR)

The results of the Group for the last five financial years
ended 31 March 2016 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 March 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016
are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

AEBHE _T—XRKE=ZA _+—Eltﬁ1lﬁ7f
BEEH¥BE T ——F - _FT—=%F-
—NEFE - —FE-—HER_FT— /\E_H_‘f‘ E|

BERBEMT:
mERE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-NE —hE —E-NE -—Z2-=F C—E--F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Revenue WA 2,897,605 2,590,623 2,033,018 2,291,404 2,290,165
Operating profit R R 150,371 93,978 47,183 67,085 65,518
Finance income IR 3N 1,533 3,538 799 4,237 3,825
Finance costs IBERA (16,039) (13,188) (3,487) (7,536) (7,664)
Share of gains/(losses) of associates ~ FE{f B & A Al
wAl,/ (&) 294 (193) (201) (3,031) (4,081)
Impairment loss for investmentinan ~ HEBE AR Z
associate HEEE - - - (4,864) -
Profit before taxation BREADRR 136,159 84,135 44,294 55,891 57,598
Income tax FrigH (19,488) (8,429) (11,708) (16,613) (28,701)
Profit for the year EERF 116,671 75,706 32,586 39,278 28,897
Attributable to: FEf
Equity shareholders of the Company ~ AR RIEZBA A 117,076 76,298 34,291 39,308 28,608
Non-controlling interests R ER (405) (592) (1,705) (30) 289
116,671 75,706 32,586 39,278 28,897

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBGBHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTI7R)

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HREeEBEERERE
31 March
=A=t-A8
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“2-R"E —T-hnf CZT-mFE ZET-=F CZT--F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T T T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 922,326 991,959 792,233 707,198 647,371
Current assets MBEE 1,155,765 973,809 870,262 991,143 1,319,445
Total assets BE®E 2,078,091 1,965,768 1,662,495 1,698,341 1,966,816
EQUITY Ei
Share capital R 199,620 199,620 199,620 199,620 99,810
Reserves & 817,560 788,529 739,765 724,533 786,542
1,017,180 988,149 939,385 924,153 886,352
Non-controlling interests FERER (1,344) (939) (347) 1,358 424
Total equity EFEE 1,015,836 987,210 939,038 925,511 886,776
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities EREEE 78,044 26,560 39,843 23,553 20,713
Current liabilities MEEARE 984,211 951,998 683,614 749,277 1,059,327
Total liabilities BERE 1,062,255 978,558 723,457 772,830 1,080,040
Total equity and liabilities ExkaGeaE 2,078,091 1,965,768 1,662,495 1,698,341 1,966,816
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

FREIFHZYE
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR EXELIES
SALE
Site area Stage of Percentage
Location (sq.m.) Lease expiry completion holding
THEE
1t B (FEFHXK) HERS BREE KEEDL
1. No.47-1, Jiahui Lu, 61,864 2085 Planning stage 100%
You Gan Bu Da Long Industrial District, (residential purpose) fak-les
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City, (FEAE)
Guangdong Province, 2055
The People’s Republic of China (commercial purpose)
B B AR A SR 5 1 JBL el 4R (BERZ)
AHBARLERZERATH-
Note: The Group expects to commence the construction of above Mizk: UEEBASEESR-_T—LFHIEN=-Z
project by 2017 and to complete in 2019. —NEFRT-
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE ERE/E S
Gross floor area Percentage
Location (sg.m.) Lease expiry holding
EEEE
i B (FEFHK) HERMH BEES K
1. Unit 2B, 132 2062 100%
Sunlight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
Hh B B 3R 4 3R 5= i B e 4R
38 5 BE A 1S 218 B
2. Unit 25B, 165 2062 100%

Sunlight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
B E R A RS2 Bl i $R
SIS E B IEE25EB
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
FRERAZYE

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE FaWME B
(Cont’d)
Gross floor area Percentage
Location (sq.m.) Lease expiry holding
EEEE
1 26 (EHH) HE R BEEAL

3. Unit 15A, 148 2062 100%
Twilight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
B E R A RS Bl i iR
FESEMERISEASR

4, Unit 16A, 148 2062 100%
Twilight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
B E R A RS Bl i iR
RIEFEXIEE161ZATR

5. Unit 25C, 143 2062 100%
Skylight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fenggang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
B ERE R M B E
B REEEIRE25ECHR

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 €3¢ 247



248

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
FRERAZME

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

MEFFERE

Percentage
Location Existing use holding
Hb B Ar REESL
1. East of Jingyi Road and South of Wenzhuang Road, Idle 100%
Yixing Economic Development Zone, =B
Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
BT g BT
B A 7 B 2 [ S B e
7 & 55 R A
2. Wenzhuang Road, Idle 100%
Yixing Economic Development Zone, =E
Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REI# & ®E5 T
BB A 7 B 2 [ SRR
Note: The above properties are either leasehold, held on long or Mizk: UEMERBELH RAZORPHLZYNZER

medium-term leases or have no specified lease term.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F/EIR¥ 12/ 5 R 2 &
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